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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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HONG KONG
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Hong Kong
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Luso International Banking Ltd.
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Banco Tai Fung, S.A. Macau
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Kin Pang Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2024.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

The Group is an integrated construction contractor which provides
building and ancillary services. Since its establishment in 20086, the
Group has accumulated experience in providing a wide spectrum
of construction services to its customers. The services are required
in various building and construction projects in relation to hotel and
casino resorts, property developers, infrastructures of water supply,
and public amenities and utilities (such as carriageways, footpaths,
drains and sewers).

The building and ancillary services mainly include foundation
associated works, hard landscaping, alteration and addition works,
road works, water pipe works, electrical and mechanical works and
other ancillary building works.

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2024, the Group has continued to focus on construction projects
within the public sector in Macau, leveraging opportunities in the
development of the new reclamation area. This strategic focus aligns
with the Group’s commitment to supporting public infrastructure
development in Macau. Meanwhile, in Hong Kong, the Group has
expanded its operations by being awarded a new construction
project involving bored pile construction works, further strengthening
its expertise in piling operations.

To enhance its construction capacity and efficiency, the Group
acquired additional equipment in 2024 for deployment across various
construction projects. These acquisitions are expected to enable the
Group to meet the growing demand for its services and undertake
a greater number of large-scale projects. By investing in advanced
equipment, the Group aims to improve operational efficiency and
maintain a competitive edge in the construction industry.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group completed 39
building and ancillary services projects and was awarded 29 building
and ancillary services projects. The Group’s revenue increased by
approximately 15.8% from approximately MOP582.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately MOP675.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2024. For the year ended
31 December 2024, the Group recorded loss for the year of
approximately MOP17.7 million.

Despite the Group’s effective business development initiatives that
result in revenue growth, the gross profit of construction projects has
been adversely impacted by rising costs and competitive pressures.
The Group remains committed to addressing these challenges while
capitalizing on opportunities in both Macau and Hong Kong to drive
long-term growth.

MARKET REVIEW

With the Macau Government launching new construction projects to
stimulate growth, the public sector market in Macau remains vibrant.
The tourism industry in Macau is experiencing a revival, positively
impacting the casino sector and overall economic performance. As
a result, the private sector market is expected to expand in 2025,
and the Group holds an optimistic outlook for the overall construction
market in Macau moving forward.

In Hong Kong, the Group has observed emerging opportunities
within the infrastructure sector, including projects related to large-
diameter bored pile works. However, the construction market in
Hong Kong is facing significant challenges, with high construction
costs and a competitive environment leading to tough conditions for
many operators. Strict cost control measures are a top priority for the
Group, which remains confident that the Hong Kong market can still
contribute to its business growth despite these difficulties.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ER|E

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group anticipates an increase in construction
market activities in Macau, driven by the resurgence of the gaming
and tourism sectors. This growth presents opportunities for the
Group to expand its footprint in the private sector while continuing
to enhance its market share in the public sector. Additionally, the
Group remains dedicated to exploring business opportunities in Hong
Kong, focusing on the development of foundation works, which are
expected to provide strategic benefits and support overall growth.
The Group also aims to diversify its business portfolio by pursuing
ventures in emerging markets, including the Greater Bay Area.

While challenges exist due to potential tariffs affecting construction
material costs, the Group is committed to improving financial
performance through strict cost control. Continuous monitoring of
market conditions will keep us informed of the necessary strategic
adjustments to ensure ongoing financial stability and sustained
success.

Maintaining a strong reputation for quality project delivery is a top
priority. By integrating cost management with strategic business
development, the Group is well-prepared to address challenges such
as rising costs while seizing growth opportunities. With a seasoned
management team in place, the Group is equipped to navigate
economic uncertainties and capitalize on emerging trends in the
construction sector. Overall, the outlook for future prospects remains
positive, with a commitment to delivering value to stakeholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere appreciation to our shareholders, business
partners and other professional parties for their continuous support.
| would also like to thank our management team and employees for
their exceptional effort and valuable contribution during this year. We
look forward to continuing this success moving forward.

Kong Kin |
Chairman
Hong Kong

28 March 2025

RE

REARW - AEBEFERZANER MkiE EE AR
B RFINZEMIZEBGEM - ERHNAE
BRENSZERENAETEMSNENRE -

MERENLETSNENOEE o 1o NEBEE
BOIREBERREGHE - BINMETIEMNH

% KSR RS MR BRBIER - A%
B IRt BIE B E 5 (B AE R ) R EBIA
EELTCEEBAS -

BERBERHZEZEMBRART AR T HhE -
AEBEANPEBEABORAZHIRT BRI -
RS SE TSI KRBT P 0 R AR R
IREF BN ERE L RITERE -

HEREERARNNRIBEEHER - BB
RAE IR R REARES - NEED M
BELB (A L) - FACEEREE - B
ERKAREIRER - RERE R BT E
EMWIREZEZNTBE - BRME - RADE
ARABRRFEENES - UBRORBFHHERE
BfE -

MRS 54t

AANERREZSHMHERRMIOBIR - X%
R EMFERA L —EH RIS EA RO H#
B AAMBHERER REERAFEELNHT
WENRBEEER - RPIPFEREERISKY -

EY

BEf@5

BE
—E-RF=A=-+NH

Annual Report F[Z R 2024 7



8 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENmRE DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is an integrated construction contractor which provides
building and ancillary services. The services are required in various
building and construction projects in relation to hotel and casino
resorts, infrastructures of electricity and water supply, and public
amenities and utilities (such as carriageways, footpaths, drains and
sewers).

The Group’s revenue was derived from Macau and Hong Kong and
the Group was engaged in projects in both private and public sectors.
Public sector projects refer to projects of which the project employer
is the Macau Government, while private sector projects refer to
projects that are not within the public sector. The Group’s customers
mainly included (i) hotel and casino owners or their main contractors;
(i) water utility company; (i) the Macau Government; and (iv) other
private developers or their contractors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, 29 building and ancillary
services projects with an aggregate contract sum of MOP650.8
million were awarded. The Group had completed 39 building and
ancillary services projects during the year ended 31 December
2024. As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s backlog consisted
of 21 building and ancillary services projects, which exclude those
completed but not certified with an aggregate outstanding contract
sum of MOP763.8 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group’s revenue by
business segments during the years ended 31 December 2024 and
2023:

B 35 Bl B
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Gl

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLFE

2024 2023
—ENEF B
MOP’000 % MOP’000 %
TRFMT % TR %
Building and ancillary services BEENEERE 675,230 100.0 582,928 100.0

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s total revenue
increased by approximately MOP92.3 million or 15.8% as compared
to the year ended 31 December 2023. The increase was attributable
to the increase in the number of construction works performed by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2024.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by approximately MOP3.3
million or 32.0% to approximately MOP7.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2024 from approximately MOP10.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023. The Group’s gross profit margin
decreased to approximately 1.0% for the year ended 31 December
2024 from approximately 1.8% for the year ended 31 December
2023.

The decrease in gross profit for the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024 was mainly attributable to a reduction in the
gross profit margin of construction projects undertaken, which were
characterized by very tight profit margins. This decline was further
exacerbated by an increase in construction costs due to inflation and
increase in depreciation of property, plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Other Income and Other Gains/(Losses)

The Group’s other income and other gains/losses recorded a gain
of approximately MOP4.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2024 compared to a loss of approximately MOP1.1 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Such increase in gains was mainly
attributable to a combined effect of the increase in sundry income
during the year ended 31 December 2024 and the absence of a loss
of approximately MOP4,470,000 from the fraudulent payment in
relation to machinery acquisition during the year ended 31 December
20283.

Reversal of/(Provision for) Impairment Losses of
Financial Assets under Expected Credit Loss Model

The Group’s reversal of impairment losses of financial assets under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model were approximately MOP1.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2024 and the provision for
impairment losses of financial assets under ECL were approximately
MOP6.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group
applied simplified approach to measuring ECL which used a lifetime
ECL for all trade receivables and contract assets, and general
approach to measuring ECL which used a 12-month ECL for amount
due from a joint venture since initial recognition. To measure the ECL,
except for certain balances of contract assets being assessed on
an individual basis, trade receivables and contract assets have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment
losses under ECL on the contract assets which remained unsettled
for more than a year were approximately MOP5.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately MOP7.2 million).

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by approximately
MOP1.2 million or 4.0% from approximately MOP29.8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 to approximately MOP31.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024. Such increase was mainly
attributable to increase in professional fees and stamp duties for the
newly awarded projects.

Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs decreased by approximately MOP2.2
million or 35.8% from approximately MOP6.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2023 to approximately MOP4.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the decrease in interest expenses on bank borrowings
as a result of the decrease in the interest rates thereon.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)
Income Tax Credit/(Expense)

The Group has income tax credit of approximately MOP4.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2024 compared to income tax
expenses of approximately MOPO.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2023.

Loss and Total Comprehensive Loss for the Year

The Group’s total comprehensive loss was approximately MOP17.7
million for the year ended 31 December 2024 compared to total
comprehensive loss for the year of approximately MOP34.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. It was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of the aforementioned items.

Basic Loss per Share

The Company’s basic loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2024 was approximately MOP1.61 cents (20283: basic loss per share
of approximately MOP3.12 cents).

Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group’s property, plant and equipment was approximately
MOP115.0 million as at 31 December 2024 compared to
approximately MOP86.8 million as at 31 December 2023. Due
to business expansion, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment of approximately MOP52.1 million during the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: approximately MOP32.7 million). The
capital expenditures were financed by the proceeds from internal
resources and general bank borrowings of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Failure to Bid New Contract

The Group’s revenue is typically derived from projects which are
non-recurrent in nature. The Group secured new businesses mainly
through direct invitation for quotation or tender by customers. The
Group generally does not enter into long-term agreements with its
customers and its customers are therefore under no obligation to
award projects to the Group. As such, there is no guarantee that
the Group will be able to secure new businesses from customers
after completion of the existing awarded projects. Accordingly, the
number and scale of projects and the amount of revenue the Group
are able to derive therefrom may vary significantly from period to
period, rendering it difficult to forecast the volume of future business.
In the event that the Group fails to secure new contracts or there is a
significant decrease in the number of tender invitations or contracts
available for bidding in the future, the business and financial position
and prospects of the Group could be materially and adversely
affected.

Deviation from the Actual Time and Costs Involved in
Projects

The Group needs to estimate the time and costs involved in a project
in order to determine our quotation or tender price. There is no
assurance that the actual amount of time and costs would not exceed
the Group’s estimation during the performance of our projects. The
actual amount of time and costs incurred in completing a project
may be adversely affected by many factors, including adverse
weather conditions, accidents, unforeseen site conditions, departure
of key project management personnel involved, non-performance
by the Group’s subcontractors, unexpected significant increase in
costs of construction materials agreed to be borne by us, and other
unforeseen problems and circumstances. Any material inaccurate
estimation in the time and costs involved in a project may give rise
to delays in completion of works and/or cost overruns, which in turn
may materially and adversely affect the Group’s financial condition,
profitability and liquidity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

(Continued)

Uncertain External Factors

The future growth and level of profitability of the construction industry
in Macau and Hong Kong are likely to depend primarily upon the
continued availability of major construction projects. The nature,
extent and timing of such projects will, however, be determined
by the interplay of a variety of factors, for example, the Macau
Government’s spending patterns on the construction industry in
Macau, the investment of property developers and land owners, the
general conditions and prospects of economy in Macau and Hong
Kong, cyclical trends in the economy as a whole, fluctuations in
interest rates and the availability of new projects in the private sector.
Furthermore, the economy of Macau substantially relies on its gaming
industry, which can be affected by various factors, including policies
and measures adopted by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and Macau Governments. In recent years, the gaming industry
experienced slowdown primarily due to the anti-corruption measures
adopted by the PRC Government.

As a result, there is no assurance that the number of construction
projects in Macau will maintain at a desired level or continue the
rising trend in the future. In case of a drop of construction activities
in any circumstances, our business and results of operations will
probably be adversely affected. In the event that the downturn in the
economy of Macau continues or gets even worse, which may be due
to a recurrence of recession in Macau, deflation or any changes in
Macau’s currency policy, or a decrease in the demand for building
and ancillary works in Macau, the Group’s financial position and
results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.
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14 Kin Pang Holdings Limited 28 AR A 7]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES

The Group’s customers mainly include (i) hotel and casino owners
or their main contractors; (ii) water utility company; (i) the Macau
Government; and (iv) other private developers or their contractors.
The Group has long-standing business relationship with some of the
major customers. The Directors believe a strong relationship with
customers would increase the Group’s recognition and visibility in
the construction industry in Macau. The Group can leverage on our
existing relationship with the major customers to further develop new
business opportunities in the construction industry.

The Group has established and maintained working relationship
with a network of suppliers and subcontractors. In the event that
any of the suppliers and subcontractors fail to provide favourable
price quotation, deliver materials in a timely manner or complete
works assigned up to the Group’s required standard, the Group
still has other approved suppliers and subcontractors in its list for
replacement. The Directors believe that such extensive network with
the major suppliers and subcontractors will enable us to have higher
chances in winning construction projects.

The Group has adopted the risk management and control measures
in order to ensure subcontractors’ compliance with the terms of the
subcontracting contracts and the relevant laws, rules and regulations
regarding occupational health and safety and environmental
protection. The Group conducts regular reviews, checks and
inspections on the work done by the subcontractors to ensure
that the works done are in line with the contract terms. The Group
supplies its subcontractors with the Group’s internal guidelines on
occupational health and safety and environmental protection issues
and on compliance with applicable rules and regulations, and require
them to follow.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS, SUPPLIERS AND
EMPLOYEES (Continued)

The Group has an experienced management team in the Macau
and Hong Kong construction industry and has maintained good
relationship with our employees. The Group has not experienced
any significant problems with the employees or any disruption to the
operations due to labour disputes nor has the Group experienced any
material difficulties in the recruitment and retention of experienced
core staff or skilled personnel. The Group provides various training to
the employees and sponsor the employees to attend various training
courses, such as those on occupational health and safety.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group believes that its stringent quality assurance system and
strong commitment to environmental management will allow the
Group to be better positioned to deliver quality works on time and
within budget, thereby strengthening its position as an established
construction contractor in Macau.

The Group has set up an environmental management system to
promote environmental awareness and to prevent pollution of the
environment resulting from projects undertaken by the Group. Since
June 2015, the Group has been assessed and certified to have
complied with the requirements of ISO 14001:2004 (currently ISO
14001:2015) for our environmental management system.
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16 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT
REGULATIONS

The Group mainly undertakes building and ancillary services in Macau
and Hong Kong. The Directors confirmed that during the year ended
31 December 2024 and up to the date of this annual report, the
Group had obtained all the registrations and certifications required
for its business and operations and had complied with the applicable
laws and regulations in Macau and Hong Kong in all material
respects.

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had bank balances and cash
of approximately MOP28.7 million (2023: approximately MOP19.0
million).

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had an aggregate of pledged
bank deposits of approximately MOP27.2 million (2023: approximately
MOP49.9 million) that are used to secure banking facilities.

As at 31 December 2024, bank borrowings amounted to
approximately MOP106.4 million (2023: approximately MOP73.2
million), including bank overdrafts of nil (2023: approximately MOP2.6
million). The bank borrowings amounts containing on demand clause
of approximately MOP58.5 million and nil (20283: approximately
MOP24.1 million and MOP5.0 million) will mature within one year and
one year to two years respectively. The breach of loan covenants in
bank borrowing amounts were approximately MOP47.9 million (2023:
approximately MOP44.1 million).

Current ratio remained 1.1 times as at 31 December 2024 compared
to 1.3 times as at 31 December 2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Liquidity and Financial Resources and Capital Structure
(Continued)

Gearing ratio is calculated based on debts divided by the total equity
as at the respective reporting dates. Gearing ratio increased from
41.0% as at 31 December 2023 to 66.2% as at 31 December 2024.
It was mainly due to the increase in bank borrowings during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

There has been no change in the capital structure of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024. The capital of the Group
only comprises ordinary shares. As at 31 December 2024, the
share capital and equity attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately MOP11.3 million and approximately
MOP160.8 million, respectively (2023: approximately MOP11.3 million
and approximately MOP178.5 million, respectively).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had capital commitments
for purchases of property, plant and equipment of approximately
MOP6.4 million (2023: approximately MOP5.4 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2024, performance guarantees of approximately
MOP92.1 million (2023: approximately MOP298.8 million) were given
by the banks in favour of the Group’s customers as security for the
due performance and observance of the Group’s obligations under
the contracts entered into between the Group and its customers.
The Group has contingent liabilities to indemnify the banks for any
claims from customers under the guarantees due to the failure of the
Group’s performance. The performance guarantees will be released
upon completion of the contract works. At the end of the reporting
period, the management of the Group does not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Group.
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18 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group entities collect most of the revenue and incur most of the
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily through sales proceeds
received from customers and the proceeds from issue of shares upon
share offer that are denominated in a currency other than the Group
entities’ functional currency. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily Hong Kong dollar.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from the Group’s bank
deposits and borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing market
interest rates arising from the Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank
balances and MOP best lending rate, MIBOR and HIBOR arising from
the Group’s variable-rate bank borrowings. The Group does not use
financial derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade receivables,
contract assets, deposits, other receivables, amounts due from joint
operations, pledged bank deposits and bank balances as at 31
December 2024 and 2023.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge the obligations
by counter-parties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the end of the reporting period.

HEmEREAREER®

S EE L B

AEBERHUES BN ERBIEUKE D /UL
AR ARED X - AR EE R INERE R E 2
RENASEERINEEHAINERTENRE
P YEBR ) $HEE PTG SRR R R AL B2 B B BT T AR D Y
PRG3R - EXLBRBRNEE TR RET -

AREBRF I BINELIREEK - AT > AEEERE
EBHINERMRERER  EEFENERT K&
ZEEMEANINERL

F=mER

REBEHF R R E 2K B ANREORITER RS
K e TR R EIEANEHEITOERD BISAE
EEERREREN KRR I ALEBENERER - K
SENRERENERREEETREALEEND
EIRITER - SRITRBRELNE R IHHR LA
SELUF BN R BRI TIERE ERRPITa&RE
EFRIR - RPIRITRIEFR ERBBRITRERE
RN E) o AEEN B RSB OTE T RSP =AE

B o

EERRE

AEEBR-_ZE-_NFR T -_=F+-_F=+—H
WEERKREZXRAEFREIE aNEE 1
& - EMEWNIE - EUA EEBTE - BIEHR
TR ARITHERR

AEERARZHFHAREBTEEMSERAKH
MIERNRSEERRIRENREARGE M
BIRARES A R eREENREE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

CORPORATE FINANCE AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk (Continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risks as 35.6% (2023: 26.9%)
and 77.1% (2023: 86.4%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest debtor and the five largest debtors respectively
within the building and ancillary services segment. In order to
minimise the risk, the management of the Group has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits and credit
approvals.

For deposits, other receivables and amounts due from joint
operations, the Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability based on historical settlement records, past experience,
and also quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportive forward-looking information.

The credit risk for pledged bank deposits and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable banks with high credit
ratings assigned by international credit rating agencies.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this report, during the year ended 31 December
2024, the Group did not have any significant investments held,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures. There was no other plan for material investments or capital
assets as at 31 December 2024.

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 295 full-time employees as at 31 December 2024
(2023: 598).

The Group offers remuneration packages that include salary,
discretionary bonuses and other cash subsidies. In general, the
Group determines employee salaries based on each employee’s
qualifications, position and seniority. The Group has designed an
annual review system to assess the performance of our employees,
which forms the basis of the decisions with respect to salary raises,
bonuses and promotions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

EMPLOYEES (continueq)

The Group’s gross staff costs from operations (including the
Director’s emoluments) were approximately MOP151.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: approximately MOP111.1
million).

The Company adopted a share option scheme so that the Company
may grant options to the eligible persons as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to the Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions passed
on 24 November 2017. The Share Option Scheme enables the
Company to grant share options to the eligible persons as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. No share option has
been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption on 24 November 2017 and up to 31
December 2024.

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to the relevant requirement under the Rules (the “Listing
Rules”) Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the change in Directors’
information during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out
below:

Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky resigned as an independent non-
executive director of AV Promotions Holdings Limited (AVR 21 #E & (35
i%)BBRAR]) (Hong Kong stock code: 8419) in December 2024,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENmRkD

PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES

The Group expects an increase in Macau’s construction market
activities, driven by the recovery of the gaming and tourism industries.
This anticipated growth presents opportunities for the Group to
expand its presence in the private sector market, while continuing to
reinforce its market share in the public sector. At the same time, the
Group remains focused on exploring business opportunities in Hong
Kong and is committed to driving growth by prioritizing foundation
works, which are expected to provide strategic advantages.
Additionally, the Group aims to diversify its business portfolio by
pursuing opportunities in emerging markets, including the Greater
Bay Area.

However, potential tariffs and their impact on construction material
costs pose challenges to the industry. In light of these uncertainties,
the Group places a strong emphasis on cost control and operational
efficiency to safeguard financial performance. The Group will continue
to monitor market dynamics and adjust its strategies as needed to
ensure financial stability and sustained growth amid fluctuating costs.

Maintaining its reputation for delivering high-quality projects remains
a core priority. By combining its focus on cost management with
strategic business development, the Group is well-positioned to
address challenges, including rising costs, and leverage emerging
opportunities in the construction sector. Despite potential economic
uncertainties, the Group remains optimistic about its future prospects
and is dedicated to creating value for its stakeholders while navigating
evolving industry trends.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

BEENSNEEERBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Kong Kin | (3E §& 52 55 &), aged 55, co-founded the Group in
June 2006, and was appointed as a Director on 22 June 2017 and
was re-designated as the chairman, executive Director and chief
executive officer on 20 July 2017. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for overall management of the corporate strategic planning, business
development and daily operation of the Group. He also serves as the
director of each subsidiary of the Company.

Mr. Kong has over 30 years of experience in construction industry. He
founded Kin Pang Construction and Engineering Company Limited
(“Kin Pang”) in June 2006 and Construtor Civil Kong Kin | in March
1991 respectively. Mr. Kong was appointed as a vice president
of Macau Association of Concrete Inspection, Maintenance and
Waterproofing (BFTRkEE T #0R 4& X [H/K T2 %) in March 2016.
Mr. Kong was also appointed as a vice president of Y2 F9JE{= T pg
¥ Bt & € (Shun De Federation and Commercial Union Association
of Macao*) since September 2016. Mr. Kong was further appointed
as a vice president, the 10th supervisory council of 8 9 i & /g €
(Macau Construction Association) since January 2021. Mr. Kong was
appointed as a committee member of the 14th Qingdao Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(CPPCC) (FEIARBUAHEERFE THESTSMEE®) since April
2022.

Mr. Kong is the husband of Ms. Choi Fong Lan, an executive
Director, and the father of Ms. Kong Ka Wan, a member of senior
management.

For Mr. Kong’s interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
report.

Ms. Choi Fong Lan (Bl % 1), aged 58, co-founded the Group
in June 2006 and was appointed as a Director on 22 June 2017 and
was re-designated as an executive Director on 20 July 2017. Ms.
Choi is primarily responsible for overall management, administrative
matter and daily operation of the Group. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Choi worked in #h Bt %4 X i B BR 2 7] (Union Garment Factory
Limited*) as a worker from September 1980 to January 1994.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Ms. Choi is the wife of Mr. Kong Kin |, the chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer, and the mother of Ms. Kong Ka
Wan, a member of senior management.

For Ms. Choi’s interest in the shares within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report” in this
report.

Mr. Chan Wai Keung (PR 1& 58 5t 4 ), aged 72, was appointed as
an executive Director on 18 October 2024. Mr. Chan is primarily
responsible for business development of the Group.

Mr. Chan has over 35 years of experience in the operation of
business, China trade, international trade, investments and venture
capital. Mr. Chan is currently the chairman and chief executive
officer of China Trend Investments Limited, a privately held company
focused on developing major projects including promoting a China
Football concept to enhance the sport’s global standing.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan had been the committee member
of the People’s Political Consultation Committee of Lungguang,
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China during the years from
1998 to 2008, and a member of Hong Kong New Territory Lions
Club International during the years from 1986 to 2001. Mr. Chan
took senior managerial positions in a number of companies in the
past, including (i) the chief executive officer and chairman of board
of directors and executive director of China Energy Development
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0228) during the period from April
2006 to September 2009 and (ii) the non-executive director of ZO
Future Group (previously known as Birmingham International Holdings
Limited) (stock code: 2309) during the period from December 2007 to
October 2012.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky ( 5k 1& 1@ 5 &), aged 51, joined the
Group and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director
on 24 November 2017. Mr. Cheung is primarily responsible for
overseeing the Group with an independent perspective and judgment.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung has been a consultant of Loeb
& Loeb LLP, a law firm in Hong Kong, since April 2015. Mr. Cheung
served as a solicitor in D.S. Cheung & Co., a law firm in Hong Kong,
in May 2013 and was further promoted to a partner in July 2014. Mr.
Cheung had been a senior associate in Mayer Brown for the periods
from November 2008 to September 2012, and from September 2001
to December 2007.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Cheung was an independent non-executive director of AV
Promotions Holdings Limited (AV 5k £ # & (3£ 1% ) B R 2 7)) (Hong
Kong stock code: 8419) from December 2017 to December 2024,
an independent non-executive director of Century Group International
Holdings Limited (42 & [ B B % % B IR A &) (formerly known as
CHerish Holdings Limited (3 £ 1% & & R 2 7)) (Hong Kong stock
code: 2113) from September 2016 to May 2020, an independent
non-executive director of Geotech Holdings Ltd. (BUEZEIZERAB R A
7)) (Hong Kong stock code: 1707) from September 2017 to January
2019 and an independent non-executive director of Cornerstone
Technologies Holdings Limited (£ A £ £ 15 & B R A &) (formerly
known as Elegance Commercial and Financial Printing Group Limited
(FEHEEMSERIEE AR R F) (Hong Kong stock code: 8391)
from April 2018 to October 2018.

Mr. Cheung is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and was admitted
as a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in November 1998.
He obtained a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws and a degree of
Bachelor of Laws from The University of Hong Kong in June 1996
and November 1995 respectively.

Mr. Cheung Kin Wing (& i &8 5% %), aged 70, joined the Group
and was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 24
November 2017. Mr. Cheung is primarily responsible for overseeing
the Group with an independent perspective and judgement. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung has been a director and lead
consultant of Sunplex Consultants Limited, a company providing
management consulting service and human resources related IT
solution service, since February 1999. Mr. Cheung has been a
director of Self Strengthening Service Centre Limited (& 58 AR 7%/ /0y
B R 2~ d]), a company limited by guarantee engaged in charitable
activities to help the underprivileged, since September 2019. He
was a consultant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants between April 2008 and August 2008, and a director
of the finance and operations department of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants between July 2004 and April 2008.
Mr. Cheung was a partner of Coopers & Lybrand (now known as
PricewaterhouseCoopers) from March 1995 until his resignation in
May 1999.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(Continued)

Mr. Cheung has been an independent non-executive director of ENM
Holdings Limited (Z 2% G R 2 7)) (Hong Kong stock code: 0128)
since June 2016, and an independent non-executive director of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (5 F BIFR (S8 2%
BBR7A 7)) (Hong Kong stock code: 1338) since November 2014. Mr.
Cheung was an independent non-executive director of Trio Industrial
Electronics Group Limited (M E T2 E T &£ B AR 2 al) (Hong
Kong stock code: 1710) from February 2017 until May 2022, and
an independent director of AXA China Region Trustees Limited from
August 1999 until August 2015, and an independent non-executive
director of Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (X iBR1TIE5EE
FR 2 7)) since November 2003 until January 2018.

Mr. Cheung has been a fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales since February 2015 and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 1986. He obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from The
University of Calgary in Canada in June 1979.

Mr. Zhao Zhipeng (i 7 lI§ 5t &), aged 41, joined the Group and
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 24
November 2017. Mr. Zhao is primarily responsible for overseeing
the Group with an independent perspective and judgment. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Zhao has been working in Patrick Mak & Tse
Solicitors, a law firm in Hong Kong since 2011 and is currently its
senior partner.

Mr. Zhao has been appointed as the company secretary of ArtGo
Holdings Limited (F =12 A% B R A 7)) (Hong Kong stock code: 3313)
since June 2016. He was an independent non-executive director of
Hanvey Group Holdings Limited (& {& & E %% A R 2 7)) (Hong Kong
stock code: 8219) from June 2018 until December 2023.

Mr. Zhao is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and was admitted as
a solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong in December 2013. Mr.
Zhao obtained Postgraduate Certificate in Laws and a degree of Juris
Doctor from City University of Hong Kong in July 2011 and October
2009 respectively. He also obtained a degree of Master of Laws
from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 2007 and a
degree of Bachelor of laws from The East China University of Political
Science and Law in China in July 2006.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEER

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fan Cheuk Lun (% = {f 5% &), aged 46, joined the Group in
February 2017 and was appointed as the financial controller of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company on 22 February
2017 and 20 July 2017 respectively. Mr. Fan is primarily responsible
for accounting, financial management and company secretarial
matters of the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Fan had served
as a finance manager in Risun Coal Chemicals Group Limited (JEF5
HAL T& B AR A R]), a coking and coal chemicals company, from
June 2010 to February 2017. He worked as a consultant of Wise Top
Management Limited (%5 7 & 12 A BR A 7)) from September 2002 to
May 2010, primarily responsible for various PRC assignments.

Mr. Fan has been admitted as an associate of The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance
Institute since November 2015. He has been registered as a chartered
global management accountant of American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since July 2012 and admitted as a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since December
2010. He has been registered as a certified public accountant of
Washington State Board of Accountancy since November 2010. Mr.
Fan obtained a degree of Master of Corporate Governance from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in September 2015 and a degree
of Bachelor of Commerce from The University of British Columbia in
Canada in May 2002. Mr. Fan was awarded a diploma of Arts and
Science in Commerce from Langara College in Canada in May 2000.

Ms. Kong Ka Wan ( 88 & 8 % £ ), aged 32, joined the Group in
October 2015 as the administrative officer of Kin Pang and was
promoted to the human resources and administrative manager of Kin
Pang on 13 June 2016. Ms. Kong is primarily responsible for overall
administrative and human resource management of the Group.

Ms. Kong graduated from The University of Warwick in the United
Kingdom with a degree of Master of Science in Human Resource
Management and Employment Relations in November 2015. She
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in the Social Sciences
in Economics and Management Sciences from University of
Southampton in the United Kingdom in June 2014.

Ms. Kong is the daughter of Mr. Kong Kin |, the chairman, executive
Director and chief executive officer, and Ms. Choi Fong Lan, an
executive Director.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. Ng Kin Fai (RE}E5E4), aged 56, joined the Group in May 2013
as the project manager of Kin Pang and was promoted to the senior
project manager of Kin Pang on 11 May 2015. Mr. Ng is primarily
responsible for the overall management of the Group’s construction
projects in Macau. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ng worked as an
engineer of East Pacific (Holdings) Limited (B/BHtA £ AR A ), a
real estate company, from July 2011 to April 2013, mainly responsible
for the management of construction projects in Shenzhen. From July
1996 to July 2011, he worked at Hip Hing Construction Co., Ltd. (1%
B AR A 7)) (“Hip Hing”), a construction company in Hong Kong.
He joined Hip Hing as an assistant project co-ordinator in July 1996
and was further promoted to a project co-ordinator in January 2001
and a senior project co-ordinator in October 2007.

Mr. Ng graduated from City College of San Francisco in United
States with a degree of Associate in Science and fulfilled the specified
requirements in construction management in May 1996. He further
obtained a degree of Bachelor of Science in the Construction Project
Management from University of Central Lancashire in the United
Kingdom in December 2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Fan Cheuk Lun ( # £ {f 5 4 ), aged 46, was appointed as
company secretary of the Group on 20 July 2017. Please refer to the
sub-section headed “Senior Management” in this section for details of
his biography.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to achieving a high standard of corporate
governance standard. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework for
the Company to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholders”), enhance corporate value, formulate
its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements set out in
the section head “Part 1 — mandatory disclosure requirements”,
and the principles and the applicable code provisions set out in the
section headed “Part 2 — Principles of good corporate governance,
code provisions and recommended best practices” of Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix C1 to the
Listing Rules. The Board is of the view that for the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code except the deviation from code
provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, the Company
does not have a separate chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Kong Kin | currently performs these two roles. The Board believes
that vesting the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person has the benefit of ensuring the consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and efficient overall
strategic planning of the Group. Besides, with three independent non-
executive Directors out of a total of six Directors in the Board, there
will be sufficient independent voice within the Board to protect the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Therefore,
the Board considers that the balance of power and authority for
the present arrangement will not be impaired and this structure will
enable the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and
effectively. The Board will continue to review and consider splitting
the roles of chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of the
Company at a time when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into
account the circumstances of the Group as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
DRERRE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions of the Company by
the Directors. Upon specific enquiries of all Directors, all of them
confirmed that they have fully complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code and there was no event of non-compliance
throughout the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of
this report.

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

Corporate Culture

The Board and the management of the Group set the tone and shape
the corporate culture, which is underpinned by the core values of
acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly across all levels of the Group.
The Board leads the management in defining the purpose, values
and strategic direction of the Group and in fostering a corporate
culture that is building a long-term sustainable business model
where customers, partners, investors, suppliers and employees can
benefit in the shared value of corporate success. The desired culture
is developed and reflected consistently in the Group’s business
operations, workplace policies and practices as well as relationships
with the Shareholders and other stakeholders. The Board, together
with the management of the Group, creates an organizational culture
of maintaining and developing an effective corporate governance
framework with stringent corporate governance practices and
mechanism through workforce engagement, employee retention and
training, robust financial reporting, whistleblowing, data privacy and
anti-corruption policies, and legal and regulatory compliance. Taking
into account the corporate culture in a range of contexts, the Board
considers that the Group’s culture, purpose, values and strategy are
aligned.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERBRE

CORPORATE CULTURE AND STRATEGY

(Continued)

Corporate Strategy

In order to achieve the Group’s principal objective of enhancing long-
term values and interests to the Shareholders and other stakeholders,
the Group focuses on achieving sustainable growth in both financial
and environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) performance.
The Group executes disciplined management of revenue and
profitability, margin and costs, capital and investment return and
other financing activities. The “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and
the “"MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” in this annual
report include discussions and analyzes of the Group’s performance,
the basis on which the Board directs to generate the Group’s core
values in the longer term and delivers the Group’s corporate culture,
strategy and objectives. The Group is increasingly conscious of ESG
and focusing on supporting the global low-carbon and sustainable
future transition. Further details on the Group’s ESG initiatives and
relationships with its key stakeholders are disclosed in the section
headed “ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT”
of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

The Board consists of six Directors including Mr. Kong Kin | (chairman
and chief executive officer), Ms. Choi Fong Lan and Mr. Chan Wai
Keung (appointed on 18 October 2024) as the executive Directors
and Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky, Mr. Cheung Kin Wing and Mr. Zhao
Zhipeng as the independent non-executive Directors. Their name and
biographical details are set out in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

Save that Mr. Kong Kin | and Ms. Choi Fong Lan are spouses, there
are no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
members of the Board.

In compliance with Rule LR3.09D of the Listing Rules which took
effect on 31 December 2023, Mr. Chan Wai Keung (“Mr. Chan”), who
was appointed as a Director on 18 October 2024, obtained the legal
advice referred to in Rule 3.09D on 16 October 2024, and Mr. Chan
confirmed that he understood his obligations as a Director.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Attendance Records of Directors and Committee
Members

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic
means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

The attendance record of each Director at the Board committee
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out in
the table below:

EEgw
EERZEERENLERE

SFecHesREFELAMNR  RBNES
MEHE SR BEME BN EEG2H -

EEERBE-ToNET - AS+—RILERER
BITEFEBRRENLBEEHATE

Attendance/Number of Meetings

BRELERRLR#
Remuneration  Nomination Audit
Board AGM Committee ~ Committee Committee
Name of Director EENA EEE RRBEFAE HMES REZEE EKZEE
Mr. Kong Kin | BRRLAE 10/10 1/1 2/2 2/2 N/ANER
Ms. Choi Fong Lan HEELL 10/10 11 N/ATER N/AT 38 N/AT 3
Mr. Chan Wai Keung BRiESR KA~ N/ATER N/ATER N/ATER N/AT R N/AT B
(appointed on (RZZ=-m&F
18 October 2024) TATN\BEZHE)
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky — KEm%EE 10/10 1/1 2/2 2/2 3/3
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing REREE 10/10 11 2/2 N/A/iE 3/3
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng ik pited 10/10 1/1 N/ATNE A 2/2 3/3
Independent Non-Executive Directors BAaAIEHITES
During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times met REZ-—_Z-—NE+—-_A=+—HIFERXN &=
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at & —EH&F4 tmiRAEBEZEE LD =ZB 7 IEHT

least three independent non-executive Directors, representing at least
one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company for a
period of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”).

EF HABRESER =Nz REFHRD—
ZENIFNTEEAARAEEXRERNGETHAE
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continueq)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

The Board has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
are available to the Board. The summary of the mechanisms is set
out below:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Composition

The Board ensures the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and at least one-third of
its members being independent non-executive Directors (or
such higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules
from time to time), with at least one independent non-executive
Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Further,
independent non-executive Directors will be appointed to Board
committees as required under the Listing Rules and as far as
practicable to ensure independent views are available.

Independence Assessment

The nomination committee of the Company strictly adheres
to the nomination policy with regard to the nomination and
appointment of independent non-executive Directors, and is
mandated to assess annually the independence of independent
non-executive Directors to ensure that they can continually
exercise independent judgement.

Compensation

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to independent non-executive
Directors as this may lead to bias in their decision-making and
compromise their objectivity and independence.

Board Decision Making

Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
entitled to seek further information from the management on
the matters to be discussed at Board meetings and, where
necessary, independent advice from external professional
advisers at the Company’s expense.

A Director (including independent non-executive Directors) who
has a material interest in a contract, transaction or arrangement
shall not vote or be counted in the quorum on any Board
resolution approving the same.
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(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
independent non-executive Directors as mentioned in item (i) above.

The Company has received written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Nomination Policy of Directors

The Company has adopted a nomination policy of Directors (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the criteria and process in
the nomination and appointment of Directors in order to hominate
suitable candidates to the Board.

Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Company considers a
number of criteria in evaluating and selecting candidates for
directorships, including but not limited to (i) character and integrity;
(i) qualifications including professional qualifications; (iii) willingness to
devote adequate time to discharge duties as a Board member and
other directorships and significant commitments; (iv) requirement
for the Board to have independent non-executive Directors in
accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the candidates would
be considered independent with reference to the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules; (v) board diversity policy of the
Company and any measurable objectives adopted by the Board for
achieving diversity on the Board knowledge and experience that are
relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy; and (vi)
other perspectives appropriate to the Company’s business.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Nomination Policy of Directors (Continued)

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination
Committee”) and/or the Board may select candidates for directorship
from various channels, including but not limited to internal promotion,
re-designation, referral by other member of the management and
external recruitment agents. The Nomination Committee and/or
the Board should, upon receipt of the proposal on appointment of
new Director and the biographical information (or relevant details)
of the candidate, evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as
set out above to determine whether such candidate is qualified for
directorship. The Nomination Committee should then recommend
to the Board to appoint the appropriate candidate for directorship,
as applicable. For any person that is nominated by a Shareholder
for election as a Director at the general meeting of the Company,
the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. Where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board should
make recommendation to Shareholders in respect of the proposed
election of Director at the general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy annually
to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company for a specific term, subject to renewal after the
expiry of the then current term.

The Articles of Association provides that all Directors appointed by
the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until and shall be eligible
himself for re-election by Shareholders at the first annual general
meeting after his appointment.

Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less
than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall review the overall contribution
and service to the Company of the retiring Director including his/
her attendance of Board meetings and, where applicable, general
meetings of the Company, and the level of participation and
performance on the Board. The Nomination Committee shall also
review and determine whether the retiring Director continues to
meet the criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy. The Nomination
Committee and/or the Board shall then make recommendation to
Shareholders in respect of the proposed re-election of Director at the
general meeting of the Company.

Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board takes the responsibility collectively to oversee all major
matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval
of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal control and risk
management systems, and monitor the performance of the senior
executives. The Directors have to make decisions objectively in the
interests of the Company.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing
a balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement
on corporate actions and operations.

The Board delegates to the management, consisting of executive
Directors along with other senior executives, the responsibilities for
implementing the strategy and direction adopted by the Board from
time to time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) whereby it recognises and embraces the benefits of a
diversity of Board members. The Board Diversity Policy aimed to
set out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from
numbers of measurable aspects including gender, age, length of
services, knowledge and professional industry background. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regards to the
benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and as at the date of this
report, the Board comprises six Directors, one of which is female.
The Company promotes and will timely review the gender diversity
of the Board in accordance with the business development of the
Group. The Company believes the balance of gender in the Board
would bring more inspiration to the Board and enhance the business
development of the Group, thus gender diversity is the essential
factor for the Company to select suitable candidate as a Director. The
following tables further illustrate the diversity of the Board members as
of the date of this annual report:
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Age Group
FE4E R

40-49 50-59 60-69 70-79
Name of Director EENA 40ZE495% 50ZF595% 60Z695% 702795
Mr. KONG Kin | Bl v
Ms. CHOI Fong Lan RERZ v
Mr. CHAN Wai Keung PBRIE5®R T AE 4
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing ~ SRE& %4 v
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Lun RIEmEE v

Jacky

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng FEEME A v
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (continueq)

BEEEREZTILBR @)

Professional Experience

E ¢ 3
Construction Administrative Accounting
industry management and Finance Law
Name of Director EENA BETE THEE i R EE
Mr. KONG Kin | Lt v
Ms. CHOI Fong Lan RIEEE 2T v
Mr. CHAN Wai Keung BRIZSR AL v
Mr. CHEUNG Kin Wing ~ SRiZ& %4 v
Mr. CHEUNG Wai Lun SREMRTE v
Jacky

Mr. ZHAO Zhipeng b Pt v

The Company’s diversity philosophy including the gender diversity
was generally followed in the workforce throughout the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2024. As of the date of this report, 83%
of Directors and 93% of total workforce were male. The Company
will continue to take steps to promote diversity, including gender
diversity, at workforce levels.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, all the Directors have
been provided with relevant reading material including legal and
regulatory update for their reference and studying. All the Directors
have also provided the Company a record of training they received
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

BOARD COMMITTEE

The Board has established three committees and has delegated
various responsibilities to the committees including the audit
committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee on
24 November 2017. All the Board committees perform their distinct
roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference which are
available to Shareholders on the websites of both the Company and
the Stock Exchange and upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman
and members of each Board committee is set out under the section
headed “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 4 of this annual report.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 24 November
2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of
the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to, among other things, make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and removal of external auditor, review
the financial information and oversee the financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems of the Company.
The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors who are Mr. Cheung Kin Wing, Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky
and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng. Mr. Cheung Kin Wing is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy which was established
to achieve the highest possible standards of openness and
accountability, and for employees, customers, suppliers and other
stakeholders of the Company to raise concerns of any suspected
misconduct or malpractice within the Company. Proper procedures
were in place for investigation of any reported cases. The Audit
Committee will review the final report and make recommendations
to the Board and will review and monitor the effectiveness of this
whistleblowing policy from time to time.

The Audit Committee convened three meetings during the year ended
31 December 2024.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Audit Committee (Continued)

The Audit Committee performed the following work during the year
ended 31 December 2024:

(@ conducted an audit planning meeting for financial year 2023 with
the independent auditor of the Group;

(b) reviewed the Group’s annual audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2023 and reviewed the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2024 including the accounting principles and accounting
standards adopted with recommendations made to the Board
for approval;

(c) reviewed the changes in accounting standards and assessed
their potential impacts on the Group’s financial statements;

(d) reviewed the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems and related matters; and

(e) considered and made recommendations on the re-appointment
of the independent auditor of the Group, and the terms of
engagement.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2024
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 24
November 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the CG Code. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee are to, among other things, make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors and senior management of the
Group, review performance-based remuneration, and ensure none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three members who are Mr. Cheung Kin Wing,
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky and Mr. Kong Kin I. Mr. Cheung Kin Wing
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee convened two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2024.
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Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The main works performed by the Remuneration Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2024 included reviewing the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors, independent non-
executive Directors and senior management for the year ended 31
December 2024 and reviewed the remuneration packages of the
appointment of Mr. Chan Wai Keung (“Mr. Chan”) as an executive
Director.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
remuneration of the senior management (other than Directors) by
bands for the year ended 31 December 2024 are as follows:
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Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 “NB3B1,000,00078 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 L% 2,000,000/%8 7T 2

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 24
November 2017 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
to, among other things, review the structure, size and composition of
the Board, access the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, and make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment of Directors. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members who are Mr. Kong Kin |, Mr.
Cheung Wai Lun Jacky and Mr. Zhao Zhipeng. Mr. Kong Kin | is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the Nomination
Committee is responsible for monitoring the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to the talent, skill, regional
and industry experience, background, gender and other qualities.
The Board will consider putting in place measurable objectives to
implement the Board Diversity Policy and review such objective
annually to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.
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BOARD COMMITTEE (continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

The Nomination Committee convened two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2024. The main works performed by the
Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2024
included reviewing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors, considering the qualifications of the retiring
Directors standing for election at the 2024 annual general meeting of
the Company, reviewing the structure, size, and composition of the
Board and reviewing the Board Diversity Policy and reviewing and
recommending the appointment Mr. Chan as an executive Director.

The Nomination Committee considered that an appropriate balance
from diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed and was satisfied with the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2024 in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable
accounting standards. The Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The statements of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the remuneration paid or
payable to Linksfield CPA Limited, in respect of its audit services is
HK$1,068,000.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022, 2023 and 2024 were audited by Linksfield CPA
Limited, who were appointed as the Company’s auditor on 15 June
2022 to fill the casual vacancy arising from the resignation of Moore
Stephens CPA Limited on 29 April 2022. Save as disclosed above,
there has been no other change of auditor for the preceding three
years.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain effective risk
management and internal control systems in order to safeguard the
Group’s assets and investments and the Shareholders’ interest and
conducts a review on an annual basis. The Board acknowledges that
such risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board had
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Company in aspects of the Group’s
financial, operational, compliance controls and risk management
functions through the effort of the Audit Committee.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continueq)

The Group currently has not established an internal audit function
internally and the Board is of the view that it is more cost effective
to engage an external independent consultant instead of recruiting a
team of internal audit staff to perform such function. During the year
ended 31 December 2024, LIF Consultants Limited (the “Consultant”)
was engaged to review the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. The Consultant worked closely with the
Group to identify risk components and risk owners in different aspects
through interviews with and workshops provided to the Group’s
management. Also, the Consultant assisted the Group to evaluate the
adequacy of existing risk mitigation plans. In addition, an independent
review was conducted by the Consultant under the Committee
of Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway Commission’s 2013
framework (“COSQO”) to identify weaknesses and enhance the
effectiveness and efficiency of the internal control system of the
Group. Last but not least, findings and recommendations resulting
from the review were reported to and discussed with the Audit
Committee and the Board, and the Consultant concluded that no
significant area of concern that may affect the financial, operational,
compliance control and risk management of the Group has been
identified.

The Board has the overall responsibility for maintaining the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs
and budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting
function and the Board had reached the conclusion that the Group’s
risk managements and internal control systems were in place and
effective.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s environmental,
social and governance strategy and reporting. The Board is
responsible for the Group’s environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) risk management and internal control systems to ensure that
the ESG strategies and reporting requirements are met. Detailed
information on the environmental, social and governance practices
adopted by the Group is set out in the section headed “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2024” (“ESG Report”) of this annual
report.

DISCLOSURE OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group acknowledges its responsibilities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) and the Listing Rules and the overriding
principle that inside information should be announced immediately
when it is the subject of a decision. The procedures and internal
controls for the handling and dissemination of inside information are as
follows:

e the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the disclosure
requirement under the Listing Rules as well as the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” published by the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong in June 2012;

e the Group has formulated inside information policies and
disclosed its policies on fair disclosure by pursuing broad,
non-exclusive distribution of information to the public through
channels such as financial reporting, public announcements and
its website;

e the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential
or inside information; and

e the Group regularly reminds the Directors and employees about
due compliance with all polices regarding the inside information,
as well as keeps them apprised of the latest regulatory updates.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Fan Cheuk Lun, who is an
employee of the Company as its company secretary. Mr. Fan has
confirmed that for the year ended 31 December 2024, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. The biography
of Mr. Fan is set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association, an extraordinary
general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the voting rights (on a one vote per share basis)
in the paid up capital of the Company at general meetings, and the
foregoing Shareholders shall be able to add resolutions to the meeting
agenda. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 calendar months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association or the Cayman
Islands Company Law for Shareholders to move new resolution at
general meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene a general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph. As regards
proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to the
“Procedure for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election as a
Director” of the Company which is posted on the Company’s website.

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests to the Board
through the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Unit B, 23/F, Centre Mark I, 305-313 Queen’s Road Central, Hong
Kong (email: info@kinpang.co).
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COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy
with the objective of ensuring that the Shareholders will have equal
and timely access to information about the Company in order to
enable the Shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner and allow them to engage actively with the Company.
Information will be communicated to the Shareholders through the
Company’s website, corporate email, financial reports, AGMs and
other extraordinary general meetings that may be convened as well as
all the published disclosures submitted to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness of
the shareholder communication policy during the year and concluded
that it is effective in light of the fact some minority shareholders have
personally approached the company and ask for relevant news.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

There was no change to the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report. The Articles of Association is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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INTRODUCTION

Kin Pang Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) is an integrated construction contractor
principally engaged in providing building and ancillary services. The
Group persistently strives to operate its business in an economic,
social, and environmentally sustainable manner. The Group is
committed to making continuous improvements to its Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG”) practice to better meet the changing
needs of an advancing society.

The Group is pleased to present its annual Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”), which aims to demonstrate
its efforts on sustainability developments to both internal and external
stakeholders.

ESG governance structure

The board of directors (the “Board”) holds ultimate responsibility for
the development of the Group’s ESG strategies. To ensure effective
implementation, senior management was assigned to monitor
the ESG policies and initiatives as set by the Board. Management
meetings will be held regularly to (i) identify and priorities perspectives
from different stakeholder groups, (i) recommend ESG initiatives and
measures to the Board, and (jii) review the past ESG performance of
the Group. In addition, relevant departments and business units will
collaborate closely to execute the ESG initiatives and measures; and
assist the collection of ESG data for annual reporting.
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INTRODUCTION (continued)
Reporting principles

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Code (the “Code”)
as set out in Appendix C2 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The ESG
Report adheres to the following four reporting principles as set out in

the Code:

Materiality:

Quantitative:

Consistency:

Balance:

The Group undertakes materiality assessment to
identify stakeholders’ concerns and key areas of
interest for its ESG Report. Following an internal
assessment, the Group has shortlisted 24 issues
that span four distinct subject areas, including
environmental protection, employment and labour
practices, operational practices and community
investment. Based on the issues identified, the
Group gathers opinions, through interviews
and questionnaires, to understand the core
issues that hold the greatest significance for its
internal and external stakeholders. By leveraging
this understanding, the Group can formulate
corporate strategies to continuously enhance the
sustainability of its business and operations. The
detailed outcomes of the materiality assessment
are disclosed under the section headed “Materiality
assessment” of the ESG Report.

Where applicable, all key performance indicators
(“KPIs”) will be disclosed in quantitative terms.
Each disclosure will be accompanied by a narrative
within the respective sections of the Environmental,
Social, and Governance (“ESG”) Report, providing
insights into its purpose and impact. This narrative
will include details on methodologies, assumptions,
and the sources of conversion factors used in each
KPI calculation.

As far as practicable and unless stated otherwise,
the Group applies consistent measurement
methodology to allow for meaningful comparison of
the ESG performance over time.

The ESG Report discloses information in an
objective manner, which provides stakeholders
with an unbiased picture of the Group’s overall
ESG performance.
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INTRODUCTION (continueq)
Reporting boundary

The ESG Report primarily highlights the Group’s major initiatives and
activities implemented from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024.
The reporting scope covers the business operations in Kin Pang
Construction and Engineering Company Limited, Kin Wah Machinery
and Equipment Company Limited and Greatway Construction
Engineering Limited, all of which are located in Macau and Hong
Kong.

Stakeholder engagement

The Group has established stakeholder engagement policies to
understand the needs of stakeholders and ensure its activities align
with their interests. Continuous communication with stakeholders
allows the Group to identify ESG-related issues, assess stakeholder
expectations and determine the materiality of various aspects
outlined in the Code that are relevant to the Group. Below sets forth
the communication channels used for engagement with respective
stakeholder groups.
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INTRODUCTION (Continued) Bsw)
Stakeholder engagement (Continued) KRENSHE®)
Stakeholder group Communication channels
KBEERE BERE
Customers e (fficial website of the Group
B o KREEEH
e Customer assessment
. EFFE

e Project progress meeting
e HEMEER

Employees e Annual appraisal
== o FEE

e |Intranet

o NEKH

e Training

o I3

e Meetings

o @i
Suppliers/Subcontractors e Project progress meeting
HwEn,/ »en o HEEESZ

e Supplier assessment
o HERATA

e Site visiting

o EihER

Investors/Shareholders e Annual general meeting
REE/TRRE o WEAFKE

e Annual and interim reports

o FERPHHE

e Circular/announcement

L NN

e Corporate website

o AL

Community e |ndustrial event

gl o TXEH
e Corporate social responsibility activity
o EMHGHEMED
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INTRODUCTION (continueq)

Materiality assessment

The materiality assessment presented below is based on the
responses from stakeholders, where 19 issues out of a list of
24 identified issues were assessed to be critical. Among these
critical issues, 37% relate to environmental protection, along with
employment and labour practices, and followed by operational
practices at 26%.
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As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback is always
welcomed. Readers are also welcomed to share their valuable
insights and opinion with the Group at info@kinpang.co.
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INTRODUCTION (continued) - )

Materiality assessment (Continued) EEMFTE 2

Details of the 24 issues identified for materiality assessment are listed & E GBI 24 E:H BB 25T ¢
below:

Air emission EERBEK

Noise pollution &35 4

Wastes management B3 4)& 18

Dust pollution 3 EE55 %

Water use and efficiency 7K &R 1 A & ik =

Energy use and efficiency 8EJR 1% A & &

Packaging materials B35+ #}

Natural resource management XA & RE 12

B

Climate change F{& &1t

Employment management {&{# & 12

Discrimination and equal opportunity 4% & & &

Promotion and compensation system & 7+ & B &l &

Other benefits and welfare ELth 7|25 B2 45 F)

Prevention of child labour and forced labour By 1F 2 T} 3R3:8 44

Safety working environment and occupational hazards % 2 #) TER B R BB E

Development and training /& K23l

Quality assurance B &8

Protection of intellectual property rights R4 &N3%ZE 1

Consumer data protection & & & B {RfE

Anti-corruption R EJE

Whistle-blowing policy £2 R 5

Supply chain management fi f& ## & 12

Sub-contractor management %8 7 & 12

Community investment 1t &% &

0 O O O O O O O (|| | || R NN VNN NN
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Environmental protection is one of the core values of the Group. To
minimise environmental pollution, the Group proactively explores and
implements new measures at various stages of construction. Over
the years, the Group has adopted energy-efficient equipment and
combined it with streamlining operational processes, significantly
reducing fuel, electricity, and water consumption. By doing so, the
Group has enhanced resource utilisation efficiency and actively
contributed to sustainable construction practices.

The Group’s environment management system was developed based
on, among others, Environmental Laws and Regulations in Hong
Kong, Base Law of Environment in Macau, Guideline for Site Pollution
Control (18255 42 ##55]) and Guideline for Waste Classification (3
T EER} ) £8353]). The system has been assessed and certified as
compliant with ISO 14001 standards since 2015.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.

Emissions

The air emissions generated by the Group primarily stem from the
consumption of liquefied petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) in staff quarters and
during construction activities, and fuels usage in self-owned vehicles.
While the greenhouse gas (*GHG”) emissions in CO,e are mainly
generated by the fuel consumption of the Group’s equipment and
machinery.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Emissions (Continued)

The relevant emissions data are set out below:

IRIBIRE )
B &)
BREEHESERIMT -

Note  Unit 2024 2023
Bz EBfI —EBCONE —To=%
Gaseous Fuel Consumption SRR RLHAEBER
Emissions
NO, emissions BEABERR kg T3 111,780.00  124,200.00
SO, emissions PR LB kg T3 558.90 621.00
Vehicles Emissions EERHER
NO, emissions REIWHER kg T52 533.86 518.49
SO, emissions PR LB kg T3 1.02 1.01
PM emissions AR kg T52 45.94 45.35
GHG Emission in CO,e BEREHER
(FE—s|tiRE=5T)
Scope 1 - Direct emissions R 37 37
Stationary combustion sources E e WA IR tonnes MA 1.83 2.04
Mobile combustion sources B EER tonnes M 169.31 168.16
Non-road mobile combustion FEE R R BIRER tonnes M 9,985.96 6,282.86
sources
Scope 2 — “Energy Indirect” FE2 [ gelRMEE JHER
emissions
Electricity consumed Epabich=a 1 tonnes A 660.59 546.93
Scope 3 — Other indirect F[E3— HA M HERR
emissions
Paper waste disposed at RIS R B AR tonnes A 9.69 5.32
landfills
Electricity used for processing ERAT BRI B IR A K 2 tonnes MA 18.02 20.14
fresh water and sewage by VELNEEEES)
government department
Notes: Hat -

1. The emission factors used for the calculation of GHG emissions for
electricity consumed in Hong Kong and Macau were based on the latest
sustainability report published by HK Electric Investments Limited, CLP
Holdings Limited and Companhia de Electricidade de Macau — CEM,
S.A. The comparative figures have been revised to reflect corrections in
electricity usage for several units in Macau from the previous year.

2. The emission factors used for the calculation of GHG emissions for
electricity used for processing fresh water and sewage in Hong Kong
and Macau were based on the latest annual report published by Water
Supplies Department and Macao Water Supply Company Limited; and
sustainability report published by Drainage Services Department.

1.

FHEEEMEFIREMELNRERBIRMRA
PR R B ERBBEENRERRAR - hEE
BB DR SRFIE RN B R QRS EHR
AREERRE - LBREFEEETARBRME
TEAEANENR E—FEEMELE -

SHEERERPIEERKRSKERNENRE
REBHHA IR AR BRI ERKBE RRFI 8
FOKBIDERARRIHBMOFR - ARRHKE
BN RHERRES -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Emissions (Continued)

As part of its construction operations, the Group regularly deploys
medium and heavy goods vehicles for waste disposal, along with
non-road mobile machines to support a wide range of site activities.
During the reporting period, the Group’s projects required extensive
heavy machine usage, such as drilling pile, air compressors and
crawler crane. Consequently, emissions from non-road mobile
machines increased compared to the previous year.

Regarding indirect GHG emissions, the primary sources were
electricity and water consumption. For further details on the Group’s
measures and initiatives addressing resource efficiency, please refer
1o the section headed “Use of Resources” in this ESG Report.

Since the Group’s emissions primarily stem from the use of machines
and equipment, its mitigation strategy focuses heavily on addressing
these sources. The measures begin at the procurement stage, where
the Group prioritises machines and equipment with low emissions
and utilises low-sulphur fuel. In addition, regular inspection checks
are conducted at the commencement of each construction project
to ensure that all machines and equipment are in optimal condition
without producing excessive emissions.

At the end of the reporting period, the majority of the Group’s
machines and equipment operated with the requisite environmental
licenses. With the aim of further reducing emissions, the Group has
set a target to gradually replace all aging machinery with models
conforming to lower emission standards.

Moreover, the Group actively implements measures to prevent dust
pollution. These include strict compliance with hoarding requirements,
minimising the dropping height of soil and dusty material, and
regularly spraying water on vehicles and surfaces of dusty materials.

IRIBIRE )
BERU (&)

TEREEEBN—87  AEEEHMEFERE
WEBRIPRERY)  WEMAIBERB PR FE
BHBRES  RHREHE ARENHEBFERE
REE  =EBEREETEEREKESIIHM -
It - SFERB BB E A -

PAEREEZFRME - TERFERFEELS
K o BRARE B IR P RE IR b S 2B 4E
MEZHE  F2EARE e REREE
IRER | —& -

RN A B PR B D = B E A es KRB
B AP EEREERAREE L2 ERRE
FRIREE - (ERBRIERARIUEIE - AREERE
B8 SE iR R E B A 25 N SR X0 (2 R R AR, -
AN - FERIZRIA R B TR Ble S e MRt
FEAR AT BRI R AT e S B IR

RI|ERR - REEAZ B MREOERE L
ZREAAUNBNBERNTET - BTE-FRDH
M AEBEREBR - BIHABZCAEME
BT 6 EAEPEIREM LSS -

BEAN - ANEE B IR RS MR IEMEE S - 25
HEEEEETERETE  [ERERLI R
BEVEESE - AR EBEEE KM AME R R
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Waste

The Group has established and integrated several procedures into
its operations for handling various waste materials. These materials
include concrete, mud, rebar, asphalt, wood, etc.. Similar to the
measures of emission, the Group incorporates waste management
considerations at the procurement stage. It promotes a system that
prioritises the avoidance and reduction of construction materials.
Project teams carefully plan work programs to prevent over-ordering
and unnecessary material waste.

Additionally, the Group is committed to implementing the “Reduce,
Reuse, and Recycle” principles across all its operations. To promote
sustainable resource management, the Group facilitates material
reuse by enabling resource sharing across construction sites. To
achieve this, waste management plans are implemented to streamline
on-site sorting, ensuring reusable and recyclable materials are
properly allocated, while waste designated for disposal is stored
separately and delivered to appropriate reception sites or public
disposal facilities in compliance with local regulations.

To the best of the Group’s knowledge, no material amounts of
hazardous waste were generated. The table below shows the
quantity of non-hazardous waste produced by the Group.

Note
s+

IRIBIRE )

BEEY

AEEC R FRABNE T ETRFL SEMALE
MM AE - REFRBIERET Bt - W - F
E o AME o EEHHE R - AN E B SRR
HAATEEVERNES - AEMETELES
TR R EEMR $IE - T8 E MBIT R8T
VEEt B AR IL ST BB R AU BRMERE -

AN AEEBOEEMBLETEEIRE - B
A~ BRERINRA - SEERREERER
AEBRBESEETH  ABERERLE @ #F)
MEEBRE - Bt - AEEEEERYEE
g RIS TAE - R AT BHIA RATEUL
MBS RIZENR  MIEERENEZEYASF
T WIRIRE M AREXE A EMRBE A
HEERM

AAREEMA  WEELRERZEREY - TRA
RAGEEMELNEZEZVHE -

Unit 2024 2023
BAL —EINE —T-o=%F

Non-hazardous waste mEREEY
Industrial wastes THREEEY)
Non-hazardous waste intensity BEBEEYEE
Notes:
1. In previous years, the quantity of non-hazardous waste was estimated

by multiplying the cargo capacity of dump trucks by the number of trips
to landfills. However, during the reporting period, the Group reassessed
this methodology and deemed it unreliable due to (i) the potential
inclusion of waste from other contractors and (ii) the challenges in
estimating the number of landfill trips for dump trucks charged on a daily
rate basis. Consequently, the Group adopted a more direct approach,
utilising the data from bills issued by the local government, to quantify
waste amounts. Accordingly, comparative figures have been adjusted to
align with the current year’s presentation.

2. The Group adopted the number of projects with wastes generated as
the basis for the calculation of intensity.

tonnes M 24,250.38 5,929.44
tonnes/project 3,031.30 1,482.36
18,18 B
HiaE -

1. BEFE  BEEREVEEDNREHRENHER
ERNEFSREIRS O RBCETHEE - A - R
REHAN - AEEEIEZIE - RBEZTEL
AR - RES : ()B A R E A BRI ER
MLBEEA (A LERRKENEEREE
ERIFIEIB SRR E - Bt AEERAEEEDN
I3 - BIM BT BRI R B R E BRI E(L
BEERYHHE - Fit - LERBFOERAR - UH
REZE2HRRFT—H

2. AEERACELBEZEVNEBNBEERFER
JEHYERE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Waste (Continued)

The quantity of non-hazardous waste generated was largely
influenced by the extent of foundation work, including excavation and
piling activities, carried out during the reporting year. The significant
increase in non-hazardous waste was primarily attributed to the
commencement of several excavation projects undertaken by the
Group during the year.

The Group remains steadfast in its commitment to sustainable
development, recognising waste management as a fundamental
aspect of its long-term strategy. Looking ahead, the Group will
continue to advance efforts in waste reduction and recycling, actively
exploring innovative waste management technologies and best
practices. By staying at the forefront of sustainable construction, the
Group aims to contribute to a greener future.

Use of resources

The Group recognises that resource conservation not only reduces
emissions but also effectively lowers expenses and operating
costs. To achieve its resource-saving goals, the Group has
implemented various measures. For instance, electricity conservation
is encouraged through the placement of resource-saving labels
in offices. Additionally, the Group utilises energy-efficient lighting
and ensures that office lights, air-conditioning, and computers are
switched off when not in use. Air-conditioning is maintained at an
average temperature of 25 degrees Celsius to optimise electricity
consumption. To further promote awareness among staff, the Group
actively encourages paper reduction by adopting double-sided
printing and increasing the use of electronic information systems for
communication and documentation.

IRIBIRE )
BEWE)

EERNBEEZEZMNBERAZE LRUAREEE
FRETERNITE TRAABEAME TR -
EEERMARIEINTEEBRARENS(EZ IR
HERFRFRREME -

AEEREHNRAFERR - XEEENEER
RERPRBNEARER - RERNK - AREKE
BIMANER D RERYESE R EEZE DB
A ERRRAFNERYEERMRREERS
& o BB FHE R AERIT R - AEE
EHERERRIARKIELER

BRERA

AEBEERD - SHHERMEELREE - TMERA
MERIFASE AR E A - REBE RN R
BERHFHOERNER - fln - AEBERLIER
MEREHIRE - IRIESHDEN eI AREE
WMAEEMENGERA  YENMERRAEMAEE
& =HELEMN o ARETHRAEERRTE
BEEXENFHRENEE - BIRSAEEET
MEREAER - ARESE B TREMmEEH &
REGREFESROETERRE M REIARD
ARIREVEM ©
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Use of resources (Continued)

IRIBIRE )
&BiRER®)

The details of energy and water consumption of the Group are set out ~ NEBRIGEREER FAKEFFEHINMT ¢

below:
Note  Unit 2024 2023
Bz EBfI EBECNE _—To=%F
Total Electricity Consumption BEIEEE
Offices NS KWh F FL B 16,268.00 16,874.00
Staff quarters BIEE KWh T FLEF 18,266.00 18,536.00
Warehouses B KWh T 5 B 39,489.00 35,897.00
Projects 1HH 1 kWh FEB& 1,029,932.00  836,887.00
Electricity Consumption Intensity & /1 ERTRE 1 kWh/unit 84,919.62 64,871.00
FRE
B{I
Total Water Consumption BRKE 2
Staff quarters BTIBEE m?3 3 75K 563.00 668.00
Warehouses BE m3 32 K 990.00 1,117.70
Projects 15 H 3 md 37 77K 51,817.71 59,397.00
Water Consumption Intensity RAKEE mé/unit 3,812.19 4,370.19
SRS
B
Notes: Wizt -

1. The comparative figures have been revised to reflect corrections in 1.
electricity usage for several units in Macau from the previous year.

HEREFEEER] - URBUEFIEEEM M HE
HE—FELBNELE -

feln

2. The supply and discharge of water for all offices in Hong Kong and 2.
Macau are controlled by building management. Therefore, the relevant
data is not available.

BE ORI AR R ENFOK RIS RETER
AR o Fitt - RS EREUE -

3.  For projects carried out by the Group as subcontractor, the water used 3.
in construction sites were provided by main contractors and shared
among different subcontractors, therefore the water consumption data
for these projects are not available.

HRAEEERD BRETHNRETS - BETH
FKkmEAEEEME Y TRNSBRHH’=E -
LS Z SR A W A7KEHIE -

4. The disclosure for the use of packaging materials is not relevant to its 4.
businesses.

BEMERZ KRR -

5. The locations where the Group operated did not encounter any issue in 5,
sourcing water.

AEE G B BUK T E L S BRI RE -

Annual Report F[Z R 2024 59



60 Kin Pang Holdings Limited 2 #512 A% A R A &)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024

“ECNFRE HERERERE

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Use of resources (Continued)

The Group is generally responsible for supplying electricity and water
to construction sites for projects where it acts as the main contractor.
The increased electricity consumption during the reporting period was
primarily driven by heightened project activities.

The Group remains committed to enhancing resource efficiency and
minimising its environmental footprint by actively promoting resource-
saving practices among subcontractors. Additionally, it plans to
strengthen its data analytics capabilities to gain deeper insights
into usage patterns and identify new opportunities for resource
optimisation.

The environment and natural resources

The Group is committed to sustainable construction through
minimising any adverse impact to the environment resulting from its
business activities. Below are the principles that the Group strives to
achieve:

° Integrating energy considerations into planning, design, review,
and performance monitoring as a key component of the core
management process.

e Ensuring adherence to applicable environmental laws,
regulations, and other commitments to which the Group
subscribes.

e Conducting regular evaluations to verify that energy objectives
are met and stakeholder expectations are addressed.

e Providing employees with training to enhance their
understanding, implementation, and continuous development of
sustainable practices across operations.

BREe
&BiRER®)
RAEEEABEOBERTS  ALE—KE
EMRETHMEEKS - BEPNAERENTE

FEMRIAREEIEN

AEBEEBHNNRERERMBRE - BEREA
DERERHOERNER ﬁiﬂd\%ﬁaf“mw
& o fbHh - AEBEETBIIRBIBONEES - A
FTREARARBEERB RS -

RIERBRER
KﬁlﬁlﬁFﬁiﬁ%ﬁ@é?ﬁ%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁiE’\JETEJT\
ML  WAMERAREEZRTE AKEZNE

BRI

o HEERAFRMARE - R e METE
NEE - FRZLERRENEZMEKED

o MWRETERNRFER ERNMAKER
FEHHEA AR
BEBREREZR

o TEHBETTAE - UEER
ERRDENER -

o REIRMEI  MRETHEEBRERA
FEZRERN TR  BHEMNFERT
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Climate change

The Group inevitably faces risks stemming from climate change.
In response, the Group has proactively implemented measures to
enhance preparedness and resilience. The Group has conducted
thorough evaluations to accurately pinpoint climate-related risks
that could significantly affect its business operations and supply
chain. Within the reporting period, the Group has taken steps to
disclose climate-related information, ensuring alignment with the
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (“TCFD”).

Governance

The Group adopts an integrated approach that integrates the
management of climate-related issues into existing standing
board committees. This approach ensures a comprehensive and
coordinated response to climate-related challenges.

The Board leads in formulating strategies and policies for addressing
climate-related matters. It sets the direction for the Group’s climate-
change initiatives, ensuring climate-related considerations are at the
forefront of decision-making. The Board also oversees the processes
for evaluating and managing climate-related risks. It determines
how often these risks are assessed to ensure regular and thorough
evaluations. By doing so, the Board can identify emerging risks in a
timely manner and develop appropriate mitigation strategies.

The management is responsible for leading the daily operations
related to climate-change initiatives. They translate the Board’s
strategies and policies into actionable plans that ensure climate-
related measures are implemented effectively across the organisation.
Additionally, the management provides the Board with the necessary
information and resources to conduct effective oversight. By keeping
the Board informed, the management enables it to make informed
decisions and provide strategic guidance.

Both the Board and management are committed to enhancing their
knowledge of climate-related risks. They stay updated on the latest
scientific research, industry trends, and regulatory requirements
related to climate change, which can help them make informed
decisions and develop appropriate risk management strategies.

IRIBIRE )
SEIREME

AEE @ HEBRERECHEROER - 5
It ASEEGREREUEN - oA EEMEE -
AEBCEITRE NG - AEREE e SRR
SERMERELBATENRIXEREAR - R]R
STHR - AEBECREERFERRAEER - #
RERIRAAEMHEERE LA TCFD)) i
mRE R

RN
B/A

AEBRAGZE L BREAEEENERMHA
RENEZERREEE - AN EREARE
FE T L R R AR R O DRER -

EEQERHIE YR IRAEHEE RO B MER
HEEAEERRE(CEZRNM - BRRKER
EEBREHBER -EFZSTAFEBERREE
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continueq)

Climate change (Continued)

Strategy

The Group has formulated climate strategies and action plans to
respond to mitigate risks and capture opportunities. The Group
carried out scenario analysis and risk prioritisation, which enabled it

IRIBIRE )

FiREb2)

BiBg

AEEE HIE RIRERS R TEEE - AREER -
TUEHE - REBETTIEROMMARE LY
Fr o e

ERETEHEEGREERELEX

to pinpoint climate-related risks and opportunities that significantly — S28H0RAEHERA RS K8 - A K B K FFat 75

impact its business and value chain, along with their financial and
non-financial implications. By doing so, the Group can manage
climate risks efficiently and leverage opportunities to strengthen
the Group’s resilience and sustainability. For a comprehensive

understanding of how the Group identify and assess climate-related
risks and opportunities, please refer to the “Risk management”

section below.

Climate-related risk

RARHE EAE B

Potential impacts
BERE

JIEE
R - AF A BRI E RN RE B K AR
R o NFRE T A SEAER MG ER R
AR ER RS - 2R T X ERERE | -

BIBILIENE - ANERE R B REERR

Mitigation strategy
IRAR SRR

Physical risk
SBENEN

Our employees may not be able to
work outdoors during heatwave and
raise in mean temperature, resulting in
an increase in cost of operations.

B E B REEREURK R TR E
FFEEER T FIMEEMEBUEEK R
HIE AN

The increased frequency of storm and
flood may affect the delivery schedule
of construction material and damage
the works structures and equipment.
This may result in an increase in the
cost of operations and depreciation of
equipment.
RERML KRR IE NGB EEM
LA 58I 15 TR AR A
FIREE BUE B AN S SR s HT B A AN

Provide safety trainings to employees,
such as work in hot weather.
RIESREZ2ET - WRBRET
(=

Arrange regular progress meetings
to develop action plan rectify any
possible delays.
ZHEHEE SR AR TR &
BOE AT RERERR ©

Provide guidelines to safeguard to
structures and equipment in the
construction site before anticipated
extreme weather event.

FATE B GuH R R EE SR AT IR (46 5]
VAR I LIRS 80 4518 S 18 -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued) IRIBERE =)
Climate change (Continued) RiR&bw)
Strategy (Continued) et )
Climate-related risk Potential impacts Mitigation strategy
SUREE = BERE IR AR SR
Policy and legal risks e  The tightened environmental regulations Review environmental policies
PR AR may lead to higher compliance costs or regularly to ensure they can
penalties because of non-compliance. keep up with any changes in any
o  RIBFRUNBLASBHSREHRAAK environmental regulations.
FEIERE© o o  TFHRMBMHORREE BERHEE
e New emerging regulations regarding IRAEMIRIRER A EREE) -
carbon pricing increase the Group’s Evaluate the potential impact of
pressure to invest in low-carbon carbon pricing to the Group’s
technologies and materials. operational processes and explore
o HTHANMEEERMAREBIZRER actionable strategies to reach the
R BT R R S © goal of carbon neutrality.

o FHEBUEBHAKEZERENELE
FE > WIRRATTRURES - AERHK

hAME B
Technology risks o Rapid development in the technology e Replace aged equipment and
Kigmps market may increase the cost of machineries with high environment
investment for latest equipment and standards.

machinery to keep up with the higher o  IZERIRIZTET BE(CRH RS -
emission standards.

o RTTARSNHIMTE - RIlTHSHaIR
RERS I IMNGEINHRME R RNIRE

B ©
Reputational and market risks e Change in market preference towardsa Promote the Group commitments of
BE K i E more environmentally friendly contractor low carbon operations.
may affect the tender success rate. o EBIAEBEEIREERFG
o  TMIGHIRGERAEFNRITESL®XEE o  Continually broaden the Group’s
ZhiEK o portfolio of green-certificated
buildings.
e TEHEAASENGZCRBFREEAR
/El\ °
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Climate change (Continued)

Strategy (Continued)

Climate-related
opportunities

RARHEEAHEE

IRIBIRE )
FiREb2)
BRE ()

Potential impacts
BERE

Expansion of green
building projects
ENsrERESEIER

Retrofitting and adaptive
reuse

EEguusiuEmE It ar A

Sustainable supply chain
collaboration

A EHERAE
Innovation in low-carbon
technologies

(s Np=lEiiy

Risk management

High demand for green-certificated buildings drives revenue growth and premium
pricing.
HERITRENS T RESRAERHEEE -

New revenue streams from upgrading aging infrastructure and converting structures
to mix-use spaces align with circular economy goals.

R ERREY KEER R RS AREHEGAGORARR - 4 ERE

BRI -

Partnerships with eco-friendly material suppliers reduce carbon footprint and
enhance brand reputation.

BEIRFEM RS ERDIREY - Wik mEaEE -

The development of carbon-negative concrete, modular construction, and smart
buildings opens new markets and improves energy efficiency.

FRZERHUOE - ERICEERS R  FRTISLIRSERYCE -

[ EE

The Group adheres to the TCFD recommendations by systematically ~— AN5 BB ETCFDAYEH @ R4 1% R IR A RS
integrating climate-related risks into its enterprise risk management  FIERMATERREZBIERT - WX RERE
framework. This approach involves a structured risk assessment  {LEYEERFHEBE @ SE R EiDEAHRIEEIE - A
process combining national and regional climate data, local HIE&RRAMBERIEMRLES @ SHIWERR &
operational insights, and expert knowledge to identify physical and ~ BERIE - AERBIED T RIEE L INEIR A
transition risks. The Group ensures proactive risk mitigation by B skAlE RS AR EBERER - BT HE
analysing how climate change may exacerbate existing risks or create ~ MBIZFEBIA T FERHET ¢

new risks. The risk assessment process is conducted through the

following steps:

Step 1: Define the context

2R ERER

- Align assessment goals with TCFD requirements (e.g., physical -  #&F{E B2 1ZTCFDR E Sk (0 - ¥R &,

and transition risk disclosures).

b MBIV R R EE)

- Determine geographic, operational, and organisational scope, - HETEHIE - LE MAAGEE(REEBE LR

including Hong Kong and Macau.

F3) -
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Climate change (Continued)

Risk management (Continued)
Step 1: Define the context (Continued)

—  Setting time horizons for analysis (short-term, medium-term, and
long-term).

—  Selecting climate scenarios and variables.

Step 2: Identify historical and current risks

— Review historical extreme weather events (e.g., floods,
heatwaves) in Hong Kong and Macau.
—  Evaluate current risk mitigation measures (e.g., infrastructure

hardening, insurance coverage).
—  Record gaps in current resilience measures.

Step 3: Identify future risks and opportunities

— Analyse climate projections for selected scenarios such as 2°C
warming by 2050.

- Identify new risks, such as extreme weather intensification.

—  Assess if historical risks (Step 2) will escalate under future
conditions, such as increased flood frequency.

—  Explore climate-related opportunities such as policy incentives,
green building subsidies, and carbon pricing benefits.

Step 4: Risk analysis and prioritisation

— Map risks to critical systems such as supply chains,
infrastructure, and ecosystems.

—  Quantify potential impacts.

—  Prioritise risks based on severity, likelihood, and time horizons.

- Mitigation strategies such as diversification are recommended.

- Identify opportunities for value creation.

Bz
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (continued)
Climate change (Continued)

Metrics and targets

The Group systematically assesses and responds to climate-
related risks and opportunities using key performance metrics. This
approach focuses on energy consumption and GHG emissions,
which are considered crucial indicators. During the reporting period,
these metrics played a significant role in evaluating the environmental
impact of the Group’s operations on climate change.

By continuously monitoring energy usage and GHG emissions, the
Group can gauge the effectiveness of its emission reduction efforts.
Based on these insights, it sets practical targets. These targets are
designed to minimise the Group’s contribution to global warming,
ensuring that its operations align with broader climate-change
mitigation objectives.

SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES

Employment

The Group regards employees as the most valuable and crucial
assets. Upholding the principles of “competition makes progress” and
“rewards and penalties”, the Group’s human resources (“HR”) system
is designed to attract and retain talent while fostering a fair, safe
working environment that supports career advancement and personal
development.

HR management of the Group takes proactive steps to strengthen
compliance with relevant labour laws and regulations. This includes
strict adherence to regulations such as the Labour Relations Law of
Macau, Employees’ Compensation Insurance Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Social Security System of China, laws and regulations for the
employment of non-resident workers, regulations on prohibition of
illegal work, and lists of restricted and prohibited works provided
by minors. To enforce procedural rigor, the Group has established
an employment compliance checklist, governing the mandatory
procedures and documentation throughout the employment lifecycle.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Employment (Continued)

Moreover, the Group ensures that all HR policies, including
organisational structure, working hours, leave entitlements,
termination protocols, recruitment procedures, promotion criteria, and
compensation systems are effectively communicated with employees.
These policies are formally disseminated via the employee handbook
upon hiring, with ongoing updates provided through supplementary
notices and revised documentation throughout the employment
period. This ensures employees remain informed of the regulatory
changes and procedural adjustments in a timely manner.

To promote equal opportunity and anti-discrimination, the Group
employs standardised evaluation criteria, ensuring that all employees
are assessed under a consistent framework. Promotion opportunities
and salary adjustments are determined based on individual
performance benchmarks. Additionally, voluntary exit interviews
are encouraged upon resignation, serving as a valuable feedback
mechanism to identify and address potential deficiencies within the
HR system.

During the reporting year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment,
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity,
anti-discrimination, and other benefits or welfare.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a total of 295 (2023:
598) employees with a direct employment relationship and an overall
employee turnover rate of approximately 112% (2023: 49%), of which
approximately 98% (2023: 99%) of the leavers are entry level staff.

The fluctuations in staff movements for both years were primarily
attributed to government-regulated foreign worker quota. With the
intensive labour demands from major projects, foreign workers
were engaged to perform specialised construction tasks, including
reinforcement fixing works, welding, machine operations, formworks,
concrete works, and other general construction works. As the
projects gradually reached the completion stage, the employment
relationship with these foreign workers ended accordingly.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-EERSIEN =
PRACTICES (Continued)
Employment (Continued) EE=
Below set forth of the Group’s employment data: TREP AN EBRBEIE
2024 2023
—F-MEF T
Turnover Turnover
rate Headcounts rate  Headcounts
MK ABK TR N
Gender L3z
Male B 117% 273 50% 569
Female pegis 39% 22 26% 29
Age groups FH AR
30 or below 30BRLA T 121% 20 45% 58
31-50 312505% 110% 173 48% 343
51 or above 51pRs LA b 114% 102 51% 197
Position levels R
Senior management BREERE 0% 14 8% 13
Middle management FRERRE 28% 31 18% 34
Entry level LTimES 123% 250 52% 551
Geographical regions HE
Macau SEFY 29% 64 30% 69
China H 138% 151 49% 460
Hong Kong B 81% 80 75% 69

Note: The employee turnover rates are calculated using the number of  ffi7 - EERKAZRITEBES ABBRAFENEE FHH
employees leaving employment divided by average number of sTE o
employees for the year.

Health and safety BEHZS
Health and safety are top priorities for the Group. To mitigate @Kgﬁ§§5$%.m§g1{ﬁ% B TESFT
workplace risks and prevent incidents, the Group has implemented o NMIE S et A - NEB R E A R EEE

effective health and safety measures and has earned the globally ;zi; e WHVEBIER 20 #91SO 45001 B 62 5
recognised 1ISO 45001 certification for its occupational health and  EAZ 2B IR X 2E o A ERIEBRINAEER HiE
safety management systems. These initiatives are part of a broader ﬂ 2ELZEEI - BEBRPETEI L EFIHERE
commitment to protecting employees from physical harm and (RIEERERT HEEERBERE -

occupational hazards through comprehensive safety training, hazard

identification programs, and updated protective equipment.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Health and safety (Continued)

The Group has established occupational health and safety manuals
that provide essential operational guidance for the execution of
construction works. Moreover, safety warning signs and health
protection notices are prominently displayed in all construction areas
to ensure awareness. In the event of an incident, a standardised
emergency response protocol is in place, including incident reporting
procedures and a designated list of emergency contacts, for swift
and effective accident management.

Additionally, the Group appoints full-time safety officers responsible
for overseeing operational safety at construction sites. Their key
responsibilities include (i) conducting regular patrols to identify and
address irregularities and emerging safety hazards, (i) preparing
inspection reports and recommending corrective actions or
improvements, and (i) performing follow-up reviews to monitor the
implementation and effectiveness of safety enhancement measures.

Despite the implementation of the above measures, work-related
accidents remain unavoidable. The work-related injury data for the
past three years are presented below.

HE - RS TEM )

RREHEER®)

AEECHERERFRZE TR - ATRETIR
HAISIRIEIEE) - Loh - BT I T E B ERTR R
R ETEEREEFEST  DRRESEH -
ERAEH - ALEREDEESBERS - £
HENRERF RIS EAHRA - UELREAN
R EL -

AN AEEZRERZEIE AEEE T
EELZE - HIBREBRE - ((EHKE - B
MERRBARFHENRZ2RE  ((RERER
& AR EREE - MipETREER B
Er LR B -

FERR T L - BTEERINAHIABE o
ATFHBE=FH TIEEE -

2024 2023 2022

—RCME —Fo=fF —E-—F

Number of lost days due to work injury  ETB18KM TIEBE 356 333 295
Number of work-related fatalities THTAE = - -

The Group will continue to evaluate the potential causes leading to
past work injuries and implement corresponding measures to foster
a safe, accident-free work environment for employees. Notably, the
Group has maintained zero work-related fatalities over the past three
years.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.

AEBREETHEETHEERNEEREA - AR
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Development and training

Staff training is regarded as a core strategic initiative for the
sustainable development of the Group. Through systematic skill
enhancement programs, the Group aims not only to elevate overall
professional competency but also to establish a proactive safety
mechanism, particularly implementing tailored training modules for
frontline construction workers.

Most of the employment positions in the Group require specialised
knowledge and skillsets. Internally, mandatory training is provided
to site workers covering personal protective equipment, machinery
operation and hazard management both at project commencement
and throughout construction phases. Externally, employees
receive financial support and encouragement to pursue industry-
recognised professional certifications, ensuring alignment with
evolving technological and regulatory standards. New hires undergo
comprehensive onboarding, which encompasses orientation on
corporate culture, operational process, and health and safety
compliance.

Furthermore, the Group fosters continuous improvement through
mentorship programs and job-specific skill enhancement initiatives,
focusing on critical thinking, problem-solving, and advanced software
proficiency to optimize daily workflow efficiency. This approach
reflects the Group’s commitment to cultivating a knowledgeable,
adaptable workforce that delivers excellence across all operational
domains.

The Group implements structured performance evaluations where
employees engage in regular reviews with their supervisors or
department heads. These evaluations not only align individual
objectives with corporate goals but also establish clear performance
benchmarks and mutual expectations. Employees receive actionable
insights through constructive dialogue to enhance their professional
capabilities and identify skill gaps. Management leverages these
evaluations to recognise achievements, provide targeted coaching,
and design tailored career progression strategies, ensuring that
employee growth remains integral to personal advancement and
corporate success.
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR HE-EEREIEG =
PRACTICES (Continued)
Development and training (Continued) BRENIEINE)

During the reporting period, the Group offered internal safety training ~ RAFREHA » AEBA193% (2 ==4F : 102
to 193 (2023: 102) of its employees, and the average training hours % )E B IRIEAZL 215 - R FHEEHFH
per trained employee was approximately 4.66 (2023: 2.69) hours.  I5FIB 4 54.66/ N\ (Z B =4 : 2.69/\BF) »
In aggregate, the percentage of employees trained (note 1) is &M= > FIEEE DL (1) B44% (=
approximately 44% (2023: 18%), and the average training hours per ZE =4 : 18%) * T4 (&8 8 89 F 153K & (5T

employee (note 2) is 2.03 (2023: 0.49) hours. 2)B2.03/NF(ZZE =4 : 0.49/\BF) ©
2024 2023
—F-MEF T
Percentage Average Percentage Average
of training of training
employees hours per employees hours per
trained employee trained employee
FilEE SaEESEN XiIEE EBREER
Bt FI9EANes Bt FEETIRE
Gender 5l
Male B 45% 2.07 19% 0.50
Female 7 24% 1.36 7% 0.20
Position levels ARSI
Senior management BREEE 7% 0.04 46% 12.12
Middle management HAREIRE 15% 0.63 9% 0.04
Entry level TREER 47% 2.22 18% 0.22
Notes: Hiat -

1. The percentage of employees trained is calculated using number of 1. FIEEN AN LIRTIEB ABSRAFAEES F
trained employees divided by average number of employees for the year. HYEHHE -

2. Average training hours per employee are calculated using total training 2. &% (& B #F 1955 I8 SUR AR LT 7| B 8% A F A8
hours divided by average number of employees for the year. BYHEEE -
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SOCIAL - EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR
PRACTICES (Continued)

Labour standards

The Group strictly adheres to all labour related regulations to
eliminate child and forced labour practices. As part of its recruitment
framework, the HR department conducts comprehensive background
verification processes for all prospective employees to confirm
compliance with age requirements, physical fitness standards,
and relevant labour regulations. This proactive approach ensures
alignment with ethical employment practices while mitigating potential
risks associated with non-compliance.

The Group maintains a zero-tolerance policy towards child and forced
labour, with strict procedures in place to address any violations.
In the event of non-compliance, immediate corrective actions are
implemented, including (i) terminating employment contracts with
underage workers; (i) reporting incidents to the local labour bureau
as required by law; (i) conducting thorough investigations to identify
systemic gaps or procedural failures contributing to the issue; and
(iv) enforcing disciplinary measures or legal proceedings against
wrongdoers.

These actions are complemented by enhanced monitoring systems
and employee training programs to reinforce ethical labour practices,
ensuring long-term adherence to relevant labour standards and
regulatory compliance.

Additionally, the Group maintains confidential reporting mechanisms
that empower employees to voice concerns, seek clarification
on workplace responsibilities, or report irregularities without fear
of reprisal. These channels are designed to foster transparency,
ensuring prompt resolution of grievances and continuous adherence
to labour rights across all operational tiers.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES

Supply chain management

Supplier selection is an essential process for supply chain
management. The Group is committed to collaborating with various
stakeholders to enhance sustainability performance across its
operations.

To this end, the Group has established a supplier management policy
which stipulates vigorous guidelines to monitor the tendering and
quotation process, covering areas such as sourcing, internal control
and risk management. In addition, the Group places significant
measures when selecting qualified suppliers and subcontractors,
conducting thorough business reviews to assess their capabilities.
The Group evaluates suppliers and subcontractors by taking their
recent service quality, skills and technique, prevailing market price,
competitiveness of pricing, ability to meet its specifications and
requirements, reputation, and environmental performance into
account. Approved suppliers and subcontractors are registered on
an internal approved list, which will be reviewed and updated on an
ongoing basis.

All key suppliers and subcontractors are evaluated regularly to ensure
they meet the required standards. Any suppliers or subcontractors
with inferior past records of material environmental or social
accidents with no improvements, such as excessive discharge to the
environment and exploitation of workers, will be removed from the
approved list.

Below sets out the suppliers and sub-contractors of the Group by
geographical regions.
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2024 2023
—ETME —EC-=FF

Geographical Regions HE
Macau P 624 591
China & 108 101
Hong Kong B 265 251
Others EAth 1 1
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product responsibility

The Group believes that the reliability and quality of the construction
works are crucial to its reputation. To ensure consistent excellence,
a robust quality control system has been established, incorporating
detailed documentation across every phase of the construction
lifecycle, from raw material procurement to project completion.
This comprehensive framework enables ongoing monitoring,
evaluation, and adherence to predefined standards, which ensures all
deliverables meet client expectations and regulatory requirements.

The Group has implemented a quality control system aligned with
the 1ISO 9001 international standard, reinforcing its commitment to
operational excellence. A dedicated project management team is
formed based on the scale and complexity of each project, ensuring
seamless execution and adherence to client specifications.

Each team member is assigned clearly defined responsibilities,
including client and stakeholder communication, resource allocation,
subcontractor coordination, site record verification, and periodic
quality assurance checks. If defects are identified, the team works
closely with employers or main contractors to promptly implement
corrective measures.

During the reporting period, the Group was honored with the
International Management Certification Recognition for Macau
Enterprises (Silver Award) from the Macau Productivity and
Technology Transfer Center, underscoring its dedication to superior
management and operational standards. Additionally, no customer
complaints or product recall requests were received regarding quality,
safety, or health standards in delivered work, further demonstrating
the Group’s unwavering commitment to excellence and regulatory
compliance.
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Product responsibility (Continued)

The Group places strong emphasis on protecting its intellectual
property (“IP”), ensuring that all business logos are registered in
jurisdictions where it operates to uphold brand integrity and market
reputation. Additionally, as part of its operations, the Group may gain
access to IP assets of its business partners, including trademarks,
copyrights, and proprietary contractual documents. To ensure
ethical compliance, employees are bound by strict confidentiality
obligations outlined in the code of conduct, which explicitly prohibits
unauthorised use, reproduction, or disclosure of sensitive commercial
information. Robust safeguards, such as non-disclosure agreements
and restricted access protocols, are implemented to prevent misuse.
In the event of infringement, the Group will not hesitate in defending
its rights and those of its business partners through legal action when
necessary.

Anti-corruption

The Group maintains rigorous standards in all market practices, with
employees mandated to adhere to stringent ethical principles across
operational domains. A comprehensive framework, including conflict
of interest guidelines, anti-corruption policy, and code of conduct,
outlines its zero-tolerance stance toward unethical behaviour. These
documents explicitly prohibit employees from exploiting professional
relationships for personal gain, engaging in activities conflicting with
corporate interests, or violating legal obligations regarding data
privacy and confidentiality.

All staff must participate in an induction program that introduces the
Group’s ethical philosophy. As part of this process, employees review
the employment handbook to ensure awareness of organisational
policies and regulatory requirements. Additionally, ongoing
compliance workshops reinforce awareness of evolving regulatory
requirements, fostering a culture of transparency and accountability.
The Group is committed to upholding integrity, mitigating operational
risks, and safeguarding its reputation as a responsible corporate
entity.
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SOCIAL - OPERATING PRACTICES (continued)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

Moreover, the Group prohibits all forms of corruption, bribery and
fraudulent activities. A whistleblowing policy has been established to
reinforce this stance, enabling employees and external stakeholders
to report any observed misconduct directly to the audit committee
through secure and confidential channels. All reported concerns are
subject to thorough and impartial investigations by the management.

Any identified irregularities trigger immediate corrective actions,
including disciplinary measures, legal prosecution, or other
appropriate remedies, implemented strictly with the Group’s zero-
tolerance policy and applicable regulatory frameworks. This proactive
approach ensures accountability, safeguards integrity, and upholds
the highest standards of corporate governance across all operational
areas.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact relating to bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering.

SOCIAL - COMMUNITY

Community investment

The Group realises the importance of corporate social responsibility
and has stepped up conscious efforts to establish closer ties and
interaction with local communities. During the reporting period, the
Group contributed approximately MOP70,000 in sponsorships to
support various charitable and community initiatives, including elderly
care programs, the “Walk for a Million” event, and other industry-
related activities. The Group will continue to actively engage in social
welfare activities, striving to better serve the community while inspiring
employees to participate in community-focused events.
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ESG INDEX

A. Environmental

HERER|ME

Rk - HERERES

A. IRIE

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect A1: Emissions

BHEA1 - BE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A1.1
RABEAENFEIZEAT A

KPIA1.2
RSB IEIRALL2

KPIA1.3
FRRAENIEIRALLS

KPIA1.4
BASAARUEIRAL 4

KPIA1.5
RS NIEIRALLS

KPI A1.6
B BUIEIRA1.6

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into

water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous

waste.

ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%?ﬁ&%x BHR - MK R EHEEET

MELEFH

@ BE: &k

b) EFEETABEAZENEBERLROINER -

BEEREERER

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.

BERUHIESE S ARRE HE DR B

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity.

B (#E1) M REE (FE2) B EREBHRE (AERTE) &
(WER)ZE °

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FFEAEEREEYRE (UBHE) R(ER)BE -

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity.
FrEAEEEEMEE (T E) R(WER)EE -
Description of emissions target(s) set and step taken to achieve
them.

M PTET I B E B R RRE R 5% B IR £ 8R
Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.
HMERIEEEREEEEYNE - ARG 760 REE B 1R
NREDZE B RAERIE R

Environmental
protection
RIGRE

Emissions

B

Emissions

iZ30.¢7)

Waste
BEZEY)

Waste
REZEY)

Emissions

B

Waste
BEEY)
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“ECNFRE HERERERE

ESG INDEX (Continued)

A. Environmental (Continued)

IRIE - HERERZS|2)

>
3l
}1!1'
D)

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2: ERER
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A2.1
BASRAERUEIRA2.1

KPI A2.2
BB NIEIRA2.2

KPI'A2.3

FABHERIEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4
BB NIEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5
BASRAARUIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.
BRERAER(BIERR « KEREMRMEL) BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity.
RERESMER R, SHEEER(INE - Geloh) @FEE (AT
BEFRESAE)REE -

Water consumption in total and intensity.

HIKENTE -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.
R P AT SV BETR(E A s B IR MO 22 55 B IR ERIR A 228K -
Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that
is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

FACSKEGERKR R B ERIRERE - PRI AR B 1R RER
%% BRI 28R -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
K mPTABEMHEE (CANEE) R(ER) BEEELL

E"

° Use of resources

o EREHM

° Use of resources

o EBERERM

° Use of resources

e ZEREFER
° Use of resources

o EREHM

° Use of resources

o EREM

° Use of resources

o EREM
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ESG INDEX (continueq)

A. Environmental (Continued) A.

I«%iﬁ M iE
RIg(2)

RERZES|»)

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

BHAS3 : RIERRAER

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A3.1
BASRAERUIEIRAS. 1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impact on the
environment and natural resources.

BIEEIT AR RAREREREAZ EOBR

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EHHRERAAERNEAFERCKNERFAY
20178 -

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BTHA4 : EIREML

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI A4.1
BASRAERUIRIRAL.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.
B RSB K AT
BB -

EEHBRTAEARENEARBKRERSEE

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the
actions taken to manage them.
HABEERAEEHETAEATENERRGHEEEE - KB
RIER BT ENTTE -

. The environment and
natural resources

o RERRARER

° The environment and
natural resources
o  RIERRKAER

e  (Climate change
e  RIEEML

e  (Climate change

. REBL

Annual Report F[Z R 2024 79



80 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024
“ECNFRE HERERERE

ESG INDEX (continueq) RIE - HERERES|I®
B. Social B. #t&
Section Reference
THEAEER

Aspect B1: Employment
[BEB1 : (&
General Disclosure Information on: e  Employment
—RH R (@ the policies; and o [EfE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and

promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,

diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

BN RE  BEREN  TERE - RE - TEKE %

TAb ~ ISR A R B Ath 548 S A A

() BSR: &

(o) BFHBITABEATENRBEERZLAONE -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and e Employment
R IEIRB .1 geographical region. o [EfE

=R - EFEER - FRARIRMESSHIESRE -
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical e Employment
RSB IIEIZB1.2 region. o [EfF

X

XX

020

0

X

%
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ESG INDEX (continued) IRIE - HENRERZES|I»
B. Social (Continued) B. &%)

Section Reference

THEAEER
Aspect B2: Health and Safety
[EHEB2: @EERZZE
General Disclosure Information on: ° Health and safety
—RH R (@ the policies; and o  [EERHZLE

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting

employees from occupational hazards.

BEARELZ 2 TIFRERREREESMABELBEN -

(a BOR: &

(o) BETFHBITABERZENERMEEIROINER -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the e Health and safety
RESR S IEIZB2.1 past three years including the reporting year. o [EFEHLE

BEZF(BRBEFE)BFRATTHOABKLE -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. e Health and safety
FASRAERIEIRB2.2 AT{GELTIEAS - e  [EEHMLE
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, e Health and safety
RAsRIE IEIZB2.3 and how they are implemented and monitored. o [RFEHLE

R PR BB R R B 2485 - PARABRERTT REERITE -
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ESG INDEX (continueq) RIE - HERERES|I®
B. Social (Continued) B. &%)

Section Reference

THEAEER

Aspect B3: Development and Training
JEEB3 : #RKIE
General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for ©  Development and
—RH R discharging duties at work. Description of training activities training

FRARAEREBITIEBRENMM RIREENEER - HlFINE o BREEV

g o
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee e Development and
RS A IBIZB3.1 category. training

RERIREEFEIDFINEEBESL - o ERIKIET
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender e Development and
RSB RIEIEB3.2 and employee category. training

R REERRED - BEEE TKREIIN TR - o R
Aspect B4: Labour Standards
[ETHEB4 : BT 2RI
General Disclosure Information on: o Labour standards
—RR % EE (@) the policies; and o AT H|

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a

significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

BREBIEE T Ko TH) -

(a BER: &

(o) BFHBITABERTENERIROINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid e Labour standards
RS AE WUIEIRBA A child and forced labour. o TR

s EFEREMERABRET REAST -
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when e Labour standards
RSB IIEIZB4.2 discovered. o TR

i IR RIBER R BRRB RIS LT EREH) 22 5 o




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024
—ECMFRE - HERERRE

ESG INDEX (continueq)
B. Social (Continued)

IRIE - HENRERZES|I»

B. &%)

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EMEBS5 : HEHEERE
General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B5.1
RS AA RIS IRBS. 1

KPI B5.2

RSB NIEIEBS.2

KPIB5.3
R AR E1RB5.3

KPIB5.4
PR RSBS54

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.
ERHEENRE M SRBREEK -

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

mitREIDMHEHHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored.

R EAERESHNEN  mERTEREMNNHEEREA
AR B BB HIITREEER X

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

AR P IRE Rt gRREEH - LAREBIEG
BITRERGE -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

B H RS BN EIRRE o LIRISEVED - AR BRIE
PIEVBIT REER % -

e  Supply chain
management
o  HEHEER

e Supply chain
management

o {REREIR

e Supply chain
management

o {HEHEER

e  Supply chain
management
o  HEHEER

e  Supply chain
management
o  HEREER
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ESG INDEX (Continued)
B. Social (Continued)

®iR - HERERES @

B. #&#)

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

[EEB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B6.1
B A IR 1RB6. 1

KPI B6.2
BB AE N IE1RB6.2

KPI B6.3
RASRAARUIEIRB6.3

KPI B6.4
BB IERIEIRB6.4

KPI B6.5
PR R IE1RB6.5

X

020

030

0Z0

T

%

3

Information on:

(@ the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising labelling and privacy

matters relating to products and services provided and methods

of redress.

B PR B qn A AR S e 2 R B

NI TT AR -

() BSR: &

(o) BFHBITABEATENRBEERZLAONE -

2 EE - REMMEEEN

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
EENRREBREMBHTELZEARFEEAMARKNE AL

Number of products and services related to complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

BRENERMREHRFEE A REE X -

Description of practises relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.
i ot B4 T I RPN EE RS OB B o

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
LS S0 TE RIE R EMEBIYWIET

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and
how they are implemented and monitored.

AU BEEBURRERALRBER - ARBERITRERIE -

e Product responsibility

° EmET

e Product responsibility
s EmAf

° Product responsibility
s EmAfME

e Product responsibility

° EmET

e Product responsibility
s EmAfE

e Product responsibility
s EmEHE



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT 2024
—BoMERS  HEREARS

ESG INDEX (continueq)
B. Social (Continued)

RiR - HERERES @

B. #&#)

Section Reference

1HEAEER

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption

[BHEB7 : RER

General Disclosure
—RR IR

KPI B7.1
BRI IRBT A

KPIB7.2

RASAEIEIRBT .2

KPI B7.3
RSB IEIZEBT.3

Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BREPILFERE - B - HGFROERER -

@ BE: X

(o) BETFTHBITABEARZENEBEERRIINER

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

HREMALH T ASEEEREND BENE BRRITRHFA
RIFEE MR

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.
FEL P S b R ERRAR T - A RABERIT RER T -

Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.
HEHTEERETHRERBIE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EHEBS : #HERE

General Disclosure

—RIKE

KPI B8.1

RAS 4B 1515881

KPI B8.2
BASAARUIEIRBS.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.
BN RBERTRETAEEMETERENRRELERE
BEERITEANRABER

Focus areas of contribution.

EIEREE -

Resources contributed to the focus area.

EFIRBAPHRNER -

e Anti-corruption

s RER

e Anti-corruption
s RERE

e Anti-corruption
s RER

e Anti-corruption
s RER

e Community
investment

s HREKRE

e Community
investment

o HREE

e Community
investment

o HREKE
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The Board presents this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an integrated construction contractor which provides
building and ancillary services.

The Company acts as an investing holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the year ended 31 December 2024 is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this
annual report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2024
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 112 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

SR A FRERAKEBRE_T_NF+ =
A=t HLLFENRERGAVHRE -

ERRE
REBAGAREFRE - REUEERIRERT -

ARBR/REZERRR] - EMBRRNEEXKEH
Wi E M HRME14 -

FBERE

HE_Z-_ME+-A=+—BIFENEBHLRE
FNANFEREIRE RO &

E 3]

AEEEE T _NF+-_A=+—HILFENE
BENAFREN2ENGEABEEMEE KSR
%

RERR
EERTRMENHE-T-ME+—A=+—B
FENRERE (T =F 1) -
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DIVIDENDS POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders to share the Company’s
profits and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
absolute discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend
will be subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any
dividend pay-out, the Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the
Group’s financial results, the general financial condition of the Group,
the Group’s current and future operations, the level of the Group’s
debts to equity ratio, return on equity and the relevant financial
covenants, liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group,
surplus received from the Company’s subsidiaries and any other
factors that the Board deems appropriate. The Company’s ability to
pay dividends is also subject to the requirements of the Listing Rules
and all relevant applicable laws, rules and regulations in the Cayman
Islands, Hong Kong and the Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 220 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of the bank borrowings of the Company during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

iz B BER

ARRERBIREBER ([REHE]) @ Bt - AR
AR AR E R MDA R - EBIREEND ZFARRF]
ZHE - B ERR R AR RRE TR
g o

EESRARYBBERE RN ERREHEZ -
M EIREA RIS BRI - FERFIRE
EARER  EFETEER (AP R AKEH
BEE  AEBEBRBYBAON - LB B 5 ARK
& AEBZEBRGLE - BADBE R
IRHEKRF - ARERBDESRN R EAFF -
ARBMBRAAGRZBHEETERSBEE
ZEMEMER - ARBELIKNKREIAER EH
RAZHRELFERS  BERABERRARIZAHR
BEBERER - RASRPIFTRR -

EFMFERNBRERR  WREEMAZER
BEBERENERREER - BT R REHBE
BUOK - RBBERL MR ER O RN A AGEER
NEBAMEATABSRBRNRS - R REEAR
RAAEGREMNRFEITREIRKE

B IS E

AEBBEIAEYRFENES EERAEHE
R ARFIRE2208 -

ME - BMERRE
AEEEE-_Z_NF+_A=1+—HIFEHNY
¥ BEMEHEDFBFIRGEYBREWE
15 ¢

RITIEFK
AARREE-Z-_ME+-A=+—HILFEDH
RITE BN G SRR 25 -
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company did not have any treasury shares (as defined in
Rule 1.01 of the Listing Rules) as at 31 December 2024.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had reserves available
for distribution to Shareholders in accordance with the Articles of
Association amounting to MOP33,435,000 (2023: MOP38,924,000).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2024 are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 115 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to
the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong Kin | (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Choi Fong Lan
Mr. Chan Wai Keung (appointed on 18 October 2024)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng

Pursuant to article 83(3) of the Articles of Association, any Director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board, shall hold office only until the first
annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment and
shall then be eligible for re-election. Mr. Chan Wai Keung, who was
appointed by the Board on 18 October 2024, shall hold office of
Director until the forthcoming annual general meeting, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or if their number is not 3 or a multiple
of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation at every annual general meeting of the
Company. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Ms. Choi
Fong Lan and Mr. Cheung Wai Lun Jacky shall retire from office by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

AR
AEBREE - _NF+_A=1+—RHIFEH
& AR B BT H N VSRR 522 -

RZZE-NMF+—_A=+—H ' "ARWETME
ERH(EER ETRANE10ME) -

o] ik {E
RZZE-_NMFE+-_A=+—8 RELHHEERE
Al ARREBAUHIRTBRREROFER A

33,435,00032 P90 ( —Z = =4 : 38,924,000/2
JL) °
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company, which is either for a term of three years or six
months. The service agreements shall continue thereafter until
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ written
notice for three-year agreements or one month’s written notice for
six-month agreements. Each of the independent non-executive
Directors has signed an appointment letter with the Company. The
appointment of each of the independent non-executive Directors is
for a period of three years and shall continue thereafter until being
terminated by either party giving not less than three months’ written
notice.

None of the Directors who are proposed for election or re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation, to him/
her than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BYFHITESNELYE

ARRERE EHRAIFEI AR R B IENT
EXENBIEHERE - ARRRABMABILIENT
EEYRBILAL -

EENRBEEL
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated

R=B-MET-A=+—R  ARTEERER
TRABRAR TR AR A (EE LES R
BRSO - EREALRES: AERE

corporations, within the meaning of the SFO, which had to be notified % & Hi & 1§51 & XV*B%?&%B“ET AHg AR
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 K3 ez I ﬁ(@?ﬂﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬂ?&w

HBREBESFMPE
&I FRHE z&aﬂ%
ETRAME AR

&ﬁ#%ﬁZ%ﬁ& B
&P 35215 F B NATIA
IS NORE ¢ SARIBIZ
R ZEmRARIAT ¢

and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
in which they are taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions), or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

() RERGPNEFR

(i) Long positions in Shares

Percentage of

Number of shareholding
Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests Shares interest
EEEE 513 EEME KAHEE SRERSEIL
Mr. Kong Kin | Beneficial owner, 684,950,000 62.27%
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1); (Note 3)
Interest of spouse (Note 2) (H17£3)
BEEREE E‘ HWEA -
RERhERES (M)
BoiBikes (Mat2)
Ms. Choi Fong Lan Beneficial owner, 684,950,000 62.27%
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1); (Note 3)
Interest of spouse (Note 2) (H17£3)
RERZ T E‘ HWEA -
RERh AR (M)
BoiBikes (Mat2)
Notes: Biat -

1.

Fortunate Year Investments Limited (“Fortunate Year”) is owned as
to 60% by Mr. Kong Kin | and 40% by Ms. Choi Fong Lan. Under

1. WEREERAR(HMFHERZEER
f%ﬂ%ﬁézi > BIEB 60% N 40% S © 1RIE

the SFO, Mr. Kong Kin | and Ms. Choi Fong Lan are deemed to BEHLEEEY  EREEERGFERLLT
be interested in all the Shares registered in the name of Fortunate ?&%ﬁﬁ%l«/{iﬁﬁi%%ﬂ‘uﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxfﬁqﬂ A
Year. M o

Ms. Choi Fong Lan is the spouse of Mr. Kong Kin I. Under the

2. BEMZLIRERZEENES - REES

SFO, Ms. Choi Fong Lan is deemed to be interested in the same KBRS 5 J HREEMZTWRARERTE
number of Shares in which Mr. Kong Kin | is interested, and vice HEERERIEREE AR A R
versa. [RZ IR e

The percentage is<calculated on the basis of 1,100,000,000
hares in issued-as at 31 December 2024.

3. HOWLDMIRBER-_Z-_W&E+=-A=+—H
23£171,100,000,0000% I 1D ETHE o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES (Continued)

(ii) Long positions in the ordinary shares of associated

corporation

ESEREETHRASRKG - HER
RREEREzESRKR =

(i) AHEEZEEERGTHERE

Percentage of
shareholding

in the
Name of associated Capacity/Nature Number of associated
Name of Directors corporation of interests shares corporation
RIBBGEE R
EEEB BBHEEAE 513 #xHE iaEE BHikaat
Mr. Kong Kin | Fortunate Year Beneficial owner, interest 200 100%
of spouse (Note)
R LS I ER#EBA
FetBrE s (A/5t)
Ms. Choi Fong Lan Fortunate Year Beneficial owner, interest 200 100%

of spouse (Note)

RRELZE e EnBEAA
FiBrEs (fat)

Note: Fortunate Year is owned as to 60% by Mr. Kong Kin | and 40% by

Ms. Choi Fong Lan. Under the SFO, Mr. Kong Kin | and Ms. Choi
Fong Lan are deemed to be interested in all the Shares registered
in the name of Fortunate Year. Ms. Choi Fong Lan is the spouse of
Mr. Kong Kin I. Under the SFO, Ms. Choi Fong Lan is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Kong Kin
|'is interested, and vice versa.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, there were no
other interests or short positions of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company in the Shares or underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) or pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, required to be
recorded in the register or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Wit WERERRAERGBBELLEIBIEES
60% Rk A40% s - RIZFE 5 KRB KM -
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22 IR o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO shows that, as at 31 December
2024, the following persons (other than the Directors or chief
executive of the Company) had notified the Company of its interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares and debentures
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 or Part XV of the SFO:

ERICRNILG - HEARG R AR
ZHEERRE

RAEMRIBEEF R AAEKROIFE336KAERMNEZEMR
RafthgE R RZE-WFE+_A=+—H" ' T
WAL (RAREFRATEHITHRABRINE NS A
NEIERARBIRRD SAERER G R ERFEFHEEIR
BEE LSS EXVEF2 K30 B G XA A
REFENERIOABNT ¢

Long positions in Shares REEBPHFE

Percentage of

Name of Number of shareholding
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interests Shares interest
TERREE ESME RIAEE SRiESESLE
Fortunate Year Beneficial interest 670,000,000 60.91%
ImeE EniEn (Note)
(Hi7E)

Note: The percentage is calculated on the basis of 1,100,000,000 Shares in
issue as at 31 December 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, no other persons
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
any interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 was the
Company or any of its holding company or subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions passed
on 24 November 2017. The Share Option Scheme enables the
Company to grant options to the Eligible Persons (as defined below) as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

The Board may, at its discretion, invite any Eligible Persons to take up
options. Upon acceptance of the option, the Eligible Person shall pay
HK$1.00 to our Company by way of consideration for the grant. The
option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date on which the option is granted. “Eligible Person” means any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive Directors, non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors, and any suppliers, customers,
agents, advisors and consultants of the Group who, in the sole
opinion of our Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 100,000,000 Shares, being
10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of listing of Shares on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Date”). No share options were granted
by the Company under the Share Option Scheme up to the date of
this annual report. Therefore, the number of Shares available for issue
is 100,000,000 Shares, being approximately 9.01% of the Shares in
issue as at the date of this annual report.

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options granted to a participant under the Share Option Scheme
and other schemes (including both exercised and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue from time to time. Any further grant of options in excess 1%
limit shall be subject to Shareholders’ approval in general meeting
with such participant and his associates abstaining from voting.

The subscription price for the Shares subject to options will be a price
determined by our Board and notified to each participant and shall
be the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the
options, which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options; and (iii) the nominal value of the Share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Unless there is any early termination of the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date, after which period no further options
may be granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects and options
granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme may continue to
be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

No share option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
above, there were no equity-linked agreements entered into by the
Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On 18 April 2024, Kin Pang Construction and Engineering Company
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Construtor Civil Kong Kin | entered into the subcontracting
framework agreement dated 18 April 2024 (the “Subcontracting
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which Construtor Civil Kong
Kin | conditionally agreed to provide subcontracting services for
construction and renovation works to the Group in accordance
with the terms therein, subject to the approval by the independent
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 6 June 2024 (the “AGM”). According to the
Subcontracting Framework Agreement, the proposed annual caps are
MOP10.0 million, MOP11.0 million and MOP12.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$9.7 million, HK$10.7 million and HK$11.7 million,
respectively) for the year ending 31 December 2024, 2025 and 2026,
respectively. The Subcontracting Framework Agreement is effective
from the commencement date to 31 December 2026 (both days
inclusive).
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Construtor Civil Kong Kin | is wholly owned by Mr. Kong Kin |
(“Mr. Kong”), an executive Director and a controlling shareholder
of the Company. Accordingly, Mr. Kong is a connected person
of the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
Subcontracting Framework Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Subcontracting Framework Agreement and the
transactions contemplated thereunder (including the proposed annual
caps) are subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and the independent Shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Subcontracting Framework Agreement was approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM held on 6 June 2024.

For details of the transaction, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 18 April 2024, circular dated 9 May 2024, and
poll results announcement dated 6 June 2024.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total construction service
fees payable to Constructor Civil Kong Kin | under the Subcontracting
Framework Agreement amounted to approximately MOP5.0 million.

The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have been
reviewed by independent non-executive Directors. The independent
non-executive Directors confirmed that the aforesaid continuing
connected transaction was entered into (i) in accordance with the
pricing principles of the Subcontracting Framework Agreement; (i)
in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (iii) on
normal or better commercial terms; and (iv) in accordance with the
Subcontracting Framework Agreement, and that the terms are fair
and reasonable and are in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

The Company has engaged the auditor of the Company to report on
the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
(Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in respect
of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transaction: (i) has not been approved by the board
of Directors; (i) was not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement(s) governing the transaction;
and (jii) has exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps in respect
of the disclosed continuing connected transactions.

Save for the Subcontracting Framework Agreement, there was no
connected transaction or continuing connected transaction which
requires compliance with any of the reporting, announcement or
independent Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in this annual report and in note 33 to
the consolidated financial statements, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance, to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity
connected with him/her had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2024 are disclosed in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. These transactions were
either exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, or did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2024.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2024, save for Mr. Kong Kin | as explained in the
“Compliance with the deed of non-competition” section below, none
of the Directors are considered to be interested in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE DEED OF NON-
COMPETITION

Save for Mr. Kong Kin I's registration for Construtor Civil Kong Kin | as
a sole proprietorship according to the laws of Macau, details of which
were set out in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus, none of the Directors nor the
controlling Shareholders nor their respective associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) had an interest in a business that competed or
might compete with the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024.

The controlling Shareholders entered into a deed of non-competition
in favour of the Company (for themselves and as trustee for the
subsidiaries) on 24 November 2017 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”),
details of which are set out in the section headed “Relationship with
our Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition Undertakings by
our Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus. The controlling
Shareholders confirmed the compliance with the undertakings given
under the Deed of Non-Competition.

The independent non-executive Directors were delegated with the
authority to review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the Deed
of Non-Competition. The independent non-executive Directors were
not aware of any non-compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition
during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets or profits of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur or about
the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto, provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter
in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any such
Director.

The Company has taken out appropriate Directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualification
and competence. The emolument of the Directors is reviewed and
recommended by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an incentive
to eligible persons, details are set out under the heading “Share
Option Scheme” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2024
and up to the date of this annual report.

DONATION

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group made
approximately MOP70,000 in sponsorships to support various
charitable and community initiatives (2023: Nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS
AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the aggregate amount of
revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 72.7% of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue
from the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
28.9% of the Group’s total revenue.

In addition, the Group’s purchases attributable to its five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 30.3% of the Group’s total
purchases. The Group’s purchases attributable to its largest supplier
accounted for approximately 13.2% of the Group’s total purchases.
The Group’s sub-contracting charges attributable to its five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 33.7%. The Group’s
sub-contracting charges attributable to the largest subcontractor
accounted for approximately 8.4% of the total sub-contracting
charges.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2024 did the
Directors, their close associates or Shareholders (which to the
best knowledge of the Directors) owning more than 5% of the total
number of issued Shares had any interests in any of the five largest
customers, suppliers or subcontractors of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year 31 December 2024, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the CG Code except the deviation from provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code. Detailed information on the Company’s
corporate governance principle and practices are set out on pages
28 to 47 of this annual report.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed, the Board is not aware of any significant events
requiring disclosure that has taken place subsequent to 31 December
2024 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Linksfield CPA Limited was appointed as the auditor of the Company
on 15 June 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the resignation
of Moore Stephens CPA Limited on 29 April 2022. Moore Stephens
CPA Limited has been the auditor of the Company from 30 December
2019 to 29 April 2022 to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who has been the auditor of
the Company since the Listing.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 have been audited by Linksfield CPA Limited who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
A resolution will be proposed to the Shareholders at the forthcoming
AGM to re-appoint Linksfield CPA Limited as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Kong Kin |
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BRI RS

LINKSFIELD

CPA LIMITED

To the Shareholders of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kin Pang Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
112 to 219, which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2024;

e the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising
material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

—  revenue recognition for provision of building and ancillary
services and recognition of contract assets; and

— impairment for trade receivables and contract assets.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
FAREZEIE )

Key Audit Matters
FAREXSE

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
ESEERTRERRERSIENSG X

Revenue recognition for provision of building and ancillary services and recognition of contract assets

EHEERIEREHIIRABZ RSB EREZ
Refer to Note 4(b), Note 6 and Note 20(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

B2 RR e M mRMT4(b) - M5E6 &MiEE20(a)

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s revenue
as recognised from provision of building and ancillary
services amounted to approximately MOP675 million and
the Group’s contract assets as arisen from the provision of
building and ancillary services amounted to approximately
MOP159 million as at 31 December 2024.
HE_Z-_WNF+-A=1+—HILFE  BE5EKREREH
BENEERBHERNWALRTSEERFIT - ARKRZ
Z_ME+_A=+—H E5EXRERHBEREER
B2 EHNEENR1598 &RPIT -

Revenue from provision of building and ancillary services is
recognised over time by measuring the progress towards
completion of the Group’s performance obligations as set
out in respective contracts.

RIEEENALERGHRATIE BT S
T B R B IO RCE ERER R RER ©

BEEEERALF

The Group used the output method to estimate the progress
of each performance obligation satisfied over time by
reference to the value of construction works completed to
date (as evaluated by the Group’s internal technicians and/or
certified by External Technicians) as a proportion of the total
contract value of the relevant construction contracts.
EEBEERARDAGAERRTKSEBNEENER -
ERR2RBECSETRNNEETREEE S£BRIRIMm
ABFHE R SREIND AT A BRFB )L EARES NN
SREELA -

We performed the following procedures to address the key
audit matter:
EENT T AT EFAEIREREZEE

o Understood management’s internal control on
the revenue recognition for provision of building
and ancillary services and recognition of contract
assets and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of estimation
uncertainty and other inherent risk factors;

s THREREUHRHEZENRERBEUAERREHE
EERRAIBIEES - IS HEt N IZE M E A E
BRBEZRTEEANRERALNES R ;

o Evaluated the outcome of the prior period assessment
on the estimated value of the construction works
completed to date for different projects (primarily focus
on those construction works as completed but not
yet certified by external architects, surveyors or other
representatives as appointed by customers (collectively
the “External Technicians”)) to assess the effectiveness
of management’s estimation process by comparing
with the actual value as subsequently certified the
External Technicians or the actual amounts as
subsequently settled by customers;

o HMAHTREIERZS TMEETIRMGE . BT
HER(EZEPZEFERTERRBINEBELSER  AlE
Rt PR H MR R (FE NIRRT A S 1) RE
BVEEEETRE) - B EIMNBRIT A B K2 Z AN ER
BEIFFEEEENERSHE  UTHEEE MG
SR 2 e

e Validated, on a sample basis, the key controls over
the revenue recognition from provision of building and
ancillary services and recognition of contract assets;

s MBERFHRHEBEENEERBHBABRREHE
E MR S
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
FAREZEIE

Key Audit Matters
R EREE

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
ESEERTERERRERSIENSG X

Revenue recognition for provision of building and ancillary services and recognition of contract assets (Continued)

BHEERIERBLRAEZR S B ELIER (E)

Contract assets arise when the Group has completed certain
construction works which are yet to be certified by External
Technicians and/or the Group’s right to payment is still
conditional on factors other than passage of time.

BREER BERBEETKETHARBRINBIMABREDN
BEIRE % BEEEENERDEUARE ERHIAS
MWRERFEL -

The determination of the estimated value of the construction
works completed to date for different projects involved
significant management’s judgment and estimates which
may have significant impact on the amount and timing of
revenue recognised.

B TRERLSAIETKNEETRENMEEESRE
BENEARAE AR - H AT s HHER AR @ BRI
HEERTE -

We focused on this area because the magnitude of revenue
as recognised from provision of building and ancillary
services and the contract assets as at the end of reporting
period is significant and determining the value of the
construction works completed to date for the purpose of
recognising revenue from provision of construction works
over time involved significant management’s judgment and
estimates.
EFZBNTENRRENRERARERBRHEEELRE
REREHNEENBACREREAN MEBELSRIEETK
MEZETRENEENEREERBREZEIRZNRAL R
EIREN B A AR R AGET

o Reviewed, on a sample basis, the key terms and
conditions of material construction contracts;

s MBEFEERNEESONBRIFEMGEMT

e  Checked, on a sample basis, the value of the certified
construction works completed to date for different
projects as used in determining the amounts of
revenue recognised against the amounts as set out
in the underlying supporting certificates issued by the
External Technicians;

e HMERBESRILA/TRIERTKNERERZETE
ZEBE  UETERRABASE  WHEIMNIRMA S
FHMEEFEEPIANSEER

e  Assessed, on a sample basis, management’s estimates
on the value of uncertified construction works
completed to date for different projects by inspecting
the relevant underlying supporting documents (e.g.
evaluation reports as prepared by the Group’s internal
technicians, payment applications to customers and
etc.) with assistance of our auditor’s external expert;
and

o RNESRBEMIMNBEREE) T MkinE 8B
H(flnd SEEERBEMASRENTERS - W
BERBEHZNFRFES)  HEEREHTRRAR/LES
EERAARERETIRZEBEMMG &

e Discussed with management and project managers
to understand the extent of completion of the
construction works of different projects in progress.

o HEBERBBLEN®  ATHIARERERNE
ETIRZTHERE -

Based on the procedures performed, we found that the
judgment and estimate adopted by management in the
accounting for revenue recognition for provision of building
and ancillary services and recognition of contract assets
were supportable by available evidence.

BRBEEDHRRZEF  EEEREEENRERRERERER
I ERBHBMATERIARE K EENERBZRA 2 HE&
RGO B ASH B -



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
FAREZEIE

Key Audit Matters
FREXSE

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets

ESBUMBEREHEERAE

Refer to Note 4(c), Note 18 and Note 20(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.
B2BER A MISIREMT5E4(0) ~ BisE18 R MiFE20(a) ©

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had gross trade
receivables and contract assets of approximately MOP71
million and MOP175 million, respectively, and the provision
for impairment of trade receivables and contract assets of
approximately MOP1 million and MOP16 million, respectively.
RZZE-_ME+=—A=+—H  E5ENESEKFER
BREERBEDNNRTBERMITRNI7T58ERM T
M ZRERKFERENEEREEEDFIA R B ERMT
k#1668 BRI -

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
EEEERTREMRERSENS

We performed the following procedures to address the key
audit matter:

BEENT NIEFAREERESZER

e Understood, evaluated and validated, on a sample
basis, the key control procedures over management’s
estimation of expected credit losses allowance and
periodic review of aged receivables and assessed the
inherent risk of material misstatement by considering
the degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors associated with estimating the
expected credit losses;

o DHBARXTE FEREEEBRERAIEHEES
BRELRTHEROHEKFIENBEESREF - I
FiRE REAN N EERE K E 4 R TERTE R E B
BREENERRREER  FHEEREERERRIENE
BREE

e Obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables.
We corroborated and validated, on a sample basis,
management’s assessment based on the historical
settlement pattern, correspondence with the
customers, evidence from external sources including
the relevant market research regarding the relevant
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors used in management’s assessment;

e EMEREMRBUERBEEEBEBELON
e EFEUHEARBAREE @ ERERBESLE
B - BREM - REISFRRNEBR(2EIAEH
AIBEEE R - PlAE IR BN TR A A B & B R
= ETRBETISHE) - FTEL SR
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
FAREZEIE

Key Audit Matters
FRERSE

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
EEEERTREMRERSENS

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

ESBRSEREHEENREE)

Management applied the simplified approach in assessing
the expected credit losses (‘ECL”). Trade receivables and
contract assets relating to customers with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of receivables are
assessed individually for provision for impairment allowance.
ECL are also estimated by grouping the remaining
receivables and contract assets based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood
of recovery, taking into account the nature and size of the
customer, and applying ECL rates to the respective gross
carrying amounts of the receivables and contract assets.
The ECL rates are determined based on nature and size
of customer, historical credit losses experience, ageing
of overdue receivables, customer’s repayment history
and customer’s financial position, and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.

ERENTAEREESE((RREESE]RERAGES
V% o BLEH B AP BN sk B U B IR GRIR R R BRI AY
Bt EREFEENE ZRWFIAR A LB ESEBIETR
ERETL - RREEBETEARERREERRFES
R T EIGRIE R & KB E DB T UAGET - W RETYE A
BRI - BRI REPUERSE - WTAREEBEX
ERARERRIBERENEES BNREAE - BHREEEE
EDRBEREPHEE RAE HENATEEEE  BHiE
WHIER RES ~ BRI ERCER T PRSI EE - I
KRR AR E T R ATIEMEE R - BN R P A FEIK
N RBKEBRE -

e Challenged management’s basis and judgment in
determining loss allowance on trade receivables and
contract assets, including their identification of credit-
impaired trade receivables and contract assets, the
reasonableness of management’s grouping of the
remaining customers into different categories in the
provision matrix, and the basis of estimated loss rates
applied in each category in the provision matrix (with
reference to historical default rates and forward-looking
information);

s HEREBEERTEIRUNERASNEENEIER
H ERKE R - REEBAEERENE S E
WHRIEREHNEE - ERESRTERoEREBERE
Peg i AN [RI 4B Il ) & 22 1A DA R R 86 e %2R | P 2
AT HEARNEKBR(2ZRELENERAELE
)

e  Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of information
used by management to develop the provision matrix,
including ageing analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets, by checking to the relevant sales
invoices;

s FAMTHBAHEEERE MEAHEEERTEGE
EFFRERNERE  BEEIRWHEREHNEE
AREC DT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
FAREZEIE

Key Audit Matters
FREXSE

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matters
EEEERTREMRERSENSE

Impairment for trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

ESBRSEREHEENREE)

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and contract assets as at the end of reporting
period is significant and determining the ECL allowance of
the trade receivables and contract assets involved significant
management’s judgment and estimates.
HRBERRESHRBFERANEENREBERANE
EEHRIFIARENEENEREEBREBIRERD
ERE LA LA - B SRR -

e  Considered the competency, capability and objectivity
of the independent professional valuer by considering
its qualification, relevant experience and relationship
with the Group;

s MAEERBUBEMEMER HELHRKE B
SECBEE  EREIOEE - Hee h REHIL

o Involved our internal valuation expert to develop
an auditor’s point estimate in assessing the
reasonableness of ECL allowance including forward-
looking information; and

e HEEZFNNBEEZRFERBEINTEEREE
EREHSIEERN S BEE - BREAIREER
)53

e Tested, on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement
of trade receivables and contract assets against bank
receipts.

o KEBRITHEBHEFIERKFIERENEENRBEE
ETHBAIR -

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation
and judgment made by management in respect of the
impairment for trade receivables and contract assets were
supportable by the available evidence.

ERFiEE  EERREEERESRUKERENE
EREPMER bt KA B AHSHE R = o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Au Ho Kwong.

Linksfield CPA Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Ho Kwong

Practising Certificate Number: P08240

Hong Kong, 28 March 2025
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEmkEMEEKGER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—ECME T =4
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Kz TR FBPIT
Revenue 1 ON 6 675,230 582,928
Direct costs BERAR 8 (668,196) (572,599)
Gross profit EX 7,034 10,329
Other income and other gains/(losses)  H AU A M EH MUz (E5E) 7 4,792 (1,096)
Administrative expenses 1T 8 (30,985) (29,797)
Reversal of/(provision for) impairment TEHEEEEENIE N
losses of financial assets under CRMEERBEEERR
expected credit loss model (Bm) 10 1,085 (6,658)
Operating loss KEER (18,074) (27,222)
Finance costs & AN 11 (3,966) (6,182)
Share of results of investments B2 E AR EG
accounted for using the equity method & 245 29 - (25)
Loss before income tax IRERSHAIEE (22,040) (33,429)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrisfiEe, () 12 4,349 (694)
Loss and total comprehensive loss AR EHE AEILEFREER
for the year attributable to the 2HEBESTE
owners of the Company (17,691) (34,123)
Loss per share attributable to owners A2 B G ABIESRE R
of the Company (in MOP cents) (BORFILET)
Basic and diluted ERREE 13 (1.61) (3.12)

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other LA F4R& 1825 N H b 2 T U 25 5% fE B B B pd s —fF
comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the g o
accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
meBRRE

As at 31 December 2024 A —Z —pUF+-A=+—H

2024 2023
—ECME T =4
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Kz TRMT FBPIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E YN L ] 15 115,043 86,844
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 2,541 5,327
Prepayments and deposits TEFRIE MRS 19 8,311 3,039
Investments accounted for using the BREmETEARNIRE
equity method 29 - -
125,895 95,210
Current assets MENEE
Trade receivables B SRR RIE 18 70,693 69,145
Prepayments, deposits, and other TENFRIE © e REAMERGRIE
receivables 19 25,795 21,138
Contract assets BHEE 20(a) 159,377 207,164
Amounts due from joint operations JEU A & FE TS RIE 33(b) 5,300 6,262
Pledged bank deposits EBIRITE 21(a) 27,245 49,883
Cash and cash equivalents ReERAEEEY 21(b) 28,701 18,952
S 17,111 372,544
Total assets HEE 443,006 467,754
EQUITY FE2S
Equity attributable to the owners of A TEIHEE AL
the Company
Share capital [N 22 11,330 11,330
Reserves e 149,449 167,140
Total equity RS 160,779 178,470
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114 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRAE

As at 31 December 2024 A —Z —pUF+-A=+—H

2024 2023
—EmE T =4
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Kt TR BT
LIABILITIES a8E
Non-current liabilities FERHEE
Deferred government grants IR BT BD 16(d) 74 239
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 458 2,594
Deferred tax liabilities EIETIEEE 17 - 17
532 2,850
Current liabilities mEaE
Trade and other payables B 5 M EAEFRIA 24 164,217 182,033
Contract liabilities BHEE 20(b) 1,357 =
Amounts due to joint operations JERI & & 5T 5RIE 33(b) 6,409 22,922
Income tax payable JERTERAS AR 1,034 5,401
Bank borrowings RITE 25 106,371 73,212
Deferred government grants IEAE B AT A B 16(d) 165 165
Lease liabilities HERE 16 2,142 2,701
,,,,,,,,, 281,695 286,434
Total liabilities HaeE 282,227 289,284
Total equity and liabilities HRSREE 443,006 467,754

The consolidated financial statements on pages 112 to 219 were  F£112E219E NG AR EHRRCEEEFTEN T
approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and were —HAF=A_+/\B#/&E  THTIALTRAER

signed on its behalf. -
Mr. Kong Kin | Ms. Choi Fong Lan
BERRR%E HREBErL
Executive Director Executive Director
HiTEEF HiTEEF

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be — BA_E#R& BF 755 L 3% & ER B P BT 5 — RIS -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEERBEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

Share Share Legal Other Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings equity
kx  RGEE EEfE Hifite REE B
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP’000 MOP'000 MOP'000
TRAT TRAT TRAT TRAT TRAT TRAT
(Note (i) (Note (i)
(Hitn) (W)
At 1 January 2023 R=B-=%—-H-H 10,300 80,932 125 12,731 97,175 201,263
Loss and total comprehensive FRERREEERER
loss for the year - - - - (34,123) (34,123)
Issuance of shares (Note 22) ki (KfzE22) 1,080 10,300 - - - 11,330
At 31 December 2023 and RBZ=F+-A=+-AR
1 January 2024 —E¥-M¥-A-H 11,330 91,232 125 12,731 63,052 178,470
Loss and total comprehensive FRERRZEEEES
|oss for the year - - - - (17,691) (17,691)
At 31 December 2024 R=B-MF+-A=+-H 11,330 91,232 125 12,731 45,361 160,779
Notes: Kt -

(i) In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code of Macau
Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary registered in Macau is
required to transfer part of its profits of each accounting period of not
less than 25% to legal reserve, until the amount reaches half of its share
capital.

(i)  Other reserve arose from the Group’s reorganisation in 2017.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

U

(i)

RECEPIRRITTR BRI )F 37716 - POBPIRE
oK 8 A RZARE S HEE TP RENEN
2BRBEETERM - EREAERBREERERA
BF BRI ©

Hib#ERE T FNAEEES -

A_E#7 6w o 8 Bh 2R 8 B BE BT B G — GFBAAE -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E_=4F
NOTES MOP’000 MOP’000
Kz TRMT FBPIT
Cash flows from operating activities REFHELENHEERE
Cash generated from operations EESE S 32(a) 17,232 75,323
Income tax paid B AT FTSRL (35) (1,665)
Net cash generated from operating LEEB TSRS F5E
activities 17,197 73,658
Cash flows from investing activities REFHELENHEESRE
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABERRITIEH (58,183) (48,899
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IREE AR TER 80,821 66,313
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE  BERR
equipment (57,384) (89,859)
Proceed from disposal of property, HEME - BE MRREBRIE
plant and equipment 32(b) 319 8
Net cash outflows from disposal of a HE—RHHBARAFREE S H
subsidiary (5) =
Investment in a joint venture R—EE & bR - (25)
Interest received BUFH 2 563 838
Net cash used in investing activities KEEEFTAIR €558 (33,869) (21,624)
Cash flows from financing activities RBIEFHELENRLSRE
Issuance of shares BATHR D 22 - 11,330
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHESR 32(c) (2,772) (2,614)
Repayment of bank borrowings EBIRITERK 32(c) (242,682) (695,357)
Proceeds from borrowings B RFT1S5RIE 32(0) 275,841 540,826
Interest paid BIHE 32(0) (3,966) 6,182)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RVEEEIFTS,(FTA)IRE R
financing activities 26,421 (561,997)
Net increase in cash and cash Re KR EEBYIEINFEE
equivalents 9,749 37
Cash and cash equivalents at the FURSRREEEY
beginning of the year 18,952 18,915
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FERBENACEED
of the year 21(b) 28,701 18,952
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in  _Fili4R &I S mERIEHEBEM M —GFEE

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kin Pang Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated
in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate and ultimate
parent is Fortunate Year Investments Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) with limited
liability. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Kong Kin | (“Mr.
Kong”), who is also the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, and Ms. Choi Fong Lan (“Ms. Choi”), the spouse
of Mr. Kong.

The Company’s registered office is located at Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business in Hong Kong
is located at Unit B, 23/F, Centre Mark Il, 305-313 Queen’s
Road Central, Hong Kong. The headquarter in Macau is located
at L17 Pak Tak (China Civil Plaza), No. 249-263 Alameda Dr.
Carlos d’Assumpcao, Macau.

The principal activity of the Company and its subsidiaries is the
provision of civil engineering in Macau and Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Macau Pataca (“MOP’000”), unless otherwise
stated.

1.

—RER
ZEBEZERBERAR(TARFDRASAHSTE
MR RERRER AR - ERHNE B
ERGMBRAR([HRPT]) LM« HEE
RERBRARANRBEARES ([RBH
BRES ) EMKINERARRFRER
Rm] - RRAERTT SRR EA([EE
£ BARARBERERITRAR) RIFR
(MRt BELNEE) -

N A 7] 5 it #¥ 3 B iz R Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands ° &
FELEMBUNEE 2R KEPI05-3135
KEFRL2SEBE © BB NRPIREE
[&3%249-2635% F T KE17HL °

ARRBREKE AR EBRE /R R
BEENLARIRER -

BR BRI ZBERA MG MER AT IRPT
([ FRMTHZ5 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EAEFHBEERME

POLICIES

of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The material accounting policies applied in the preparation iR
gl
#H

FHRAMBHRERMABANGFERE
ZBEERIN  ZFBRRAB 2

2
TQ
F‘Ef’%ﬁ(f‘ﬁﬁo

2.1 Basis of preparation 21 REEE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual HKFRS, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap.622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group
reported a loss attributable to owners of the Company
of approximately MOP17,691,000. As at 31 December
2024, the Group breached a financial covenant in a facility
agreement associated with secured bank borrowing
amounted to approximately MOP3,846,000. It triggered
cross-defaults of certain bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately MOP44,098,000. As at 31
December 2024, all the above-mentioned bank borrowings
were classified as current liabilities.

FEMBRKRTIBBEERBMERE LD
([BEMBREER | (ZEHAZBE
HEAGHAS([FEEHMRE])
BARE PR A B R R E R B M S wE £
A - BT ER([FEGTLER]) &
7E) BRI RAURBBEQFE
Pl(5E622% ) 2 RBEERFEE - 475 8
TEERR THIRE LK ANE B AR -

REN AT EMBHREERZRENT
BERFBRERETHRSE A - £F
EREEEERBARESTERR 2B
RPITREHE - FRBRERE 2 H 6
RAEFENE 2 SIS - SRR RAAET
WM BERZ SIS FE4EE

HE_Z_NWNFE+_A=+—HIF
Z Lkﬁlﬁ/aak/‘ﬁ%%ﬁ)\ﬁ%fﬁﬂgﬂé
#917,691,00038 P C - R=_ZF —_ O &F
+=—A=+—8 " zﬁ‘*l&&iﬁi EEES)
7/ 3,846,0008 F9 7T /) & K 1R R 17 {8 3K
EENBEHBREP % E - Ho5| %
#944,098,000)R FI T MY AN & B 35 TR 1T
ERNRNELY - R-_ZT_NF+_A
=+—HB FfALMRITERESEA
//lu@},@iff!\"



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In view of such circumstances, the directors of the
Company have given careful consideration of the future
liquidity and performance of the Group and its available
sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient resources to continue as a going concern.
The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group’s
cash flow projections prepared by management, covering
a period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2024 taking into consideration the following plans and
measures:

)

(i)

(i)

In March 2025, the bank issued a letter to waive the
breached financial covenant in the facility agreement
associated with the bank borrowing amounted to
approximately MOP3,846,000 for the year ended 31
December 2024. Based on the latest discussion with
the bank related to the bank borrowings with cross-
default clause, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the bank will not exercise its right under
the relevant cross-default clause for the demand of
immediate repayment of the bank borrowings and
believe that the bank borrowings will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled dates as set out in the
relevant loan agreements;

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had available
committed banking facilities of MOP49,056,000.
Subsequent to 31 December 2024, the Group
has drawn down MOP12,770,000 from the
abovementioned committed banking facilities. Based
on the past experience of the Group, the directors
of the Company are of opinion that the Group will
be able to obtain bank borrowings from the banking
facilities, as and when needed; and

The Group will continue its efforts to generate
operating cash inflows by implementing cost
control and measures expediting the collection of
trade receivables and contract assets while closely
monitoring its operation and take appropriate actions
when necessary.

2 EXE

AR E )

21 RBEEE)

EREBEBER  ARAREZEEEERE
REBRFRHES RMRIFTANEAH
BERR  WEAEEREHEE RS
BRFECE - ARREEEEHNERE
EBRIENAEERSRETEA - BT
EE-Z_NFE+A=1+—HERD
P+ —EA MR & EIA 2R
YT

(i)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account
the anticipated cash flows generated from the Group’s
operations as well as the possible changes in its operating
performance and securing of additional financing as and
when needed, the Group will have sufficient working capital
to fulfil its financial obligations as and when they fall due
in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2024.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

(@) Amendments to standards and
interpretation adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amendments to
standards and interpretation for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2024:

HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(Amendments)

HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with

Covenants (Amendments)

HKFRS 16 LLease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback (Amendments)
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification
by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand
Clause (Amendments)
HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 Supplier Finance
Arrangements
(Amendments)

HK Int 5 (Revised)

The adoption of these amendments and interpretation
has had no significant impact on the results and
financial position of the Group. The Group has not
changed significantly on its material accounting
policies or-make retrospective adjustments as a result
of adopting these amendments and interpretation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REBEE)
(b) New and amended standards and (b) ERIRABIFET RAZIEFT R
interpretations not yet adopted R
The following new and amended standards and ATRETE] REB AT R AR A
interpretations have been published that are not 1B 1) AR A 2N e 25 A o ) AE R
mandatory for the current reporting period and have BB #ARIERERA ¢

not been early adopted by the Group:

Effective for annual
periods beginning

on or after
FALLT B 85k > %58
R ERIR AR
HKAS 21 and HKFRS 1 Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments) 1 January 2025
EEEHERE2URRES RS ARBREGEETAR) —E-RF—R—H
B TSR S AERI B 5%
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 7 Classification and Measurement of Financial 1 January 2026
Instruments (Amendments)
BEANBMEENFIRLRES eRMITANSBERFTEUEETA) —ERE—HA—H
B RS IRESERIE TR
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9, Annual Improvements to HKFRS Accounting 1 January 2026
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 7 Standards
BBMBGmEERE1 - B BBMBmEER G LR FEUE T RF—-H—H
MR ELERIE TS - BB
BIRELRNEISR - BB
HEEAFE105E REBEE
RSB 75E
HKFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial 1 January 2027
Statements
BB ELER|F 1857 ISRk 25 R —E-t+F—H—H
HKFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: 1 January 2027
Disclosures
BB mELERIFE 1958 WERAREEMNMEAR : K& Tt —-H—H
HK Int 5 Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of 1 January 2027
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (Amendments)
BEREESTR BEEREESTUBHRE 2T - ERAEBER —E-_+F—-HA—H
ERERERNTERERN D HUERTA)
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an To be determined
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
(Amendments)
BEMBMELERFEI0K R REEFHRHBENFNSECEIRCEEHRE {FEE
BB G LERISE285 FOEE (EFTA)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHERMEe

POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REBEE)

(b) New and amended standards and (b) ERIRABIFET RAZIEFT R

interpretations not yet adopted (Continued)

In July 2024, HKICPA issued HKFRS 18 which is
effective for the Group’s annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted. HKFRS 18 introduces
significant changes to the presentation of financial
statements, with a focus on information about financial
performance present in the statement of profit or loss,
which will affect how the Group present and disclose
financial performance in the consolidated financial
statements. The key changes introduced in HKFRS
18 relate to (i) the structure of the statement of profit
or loss, (ii) required disclosures for management-
defined performance measures (which are referred
to alternative or non-GAAP performance measures),
and (i) enhanced requirements for aggregation and
disaggregation of information. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of applying HKFRS 18 on the
presentation and the disclosures of the consolidated
financial statements.

There are no other new standards, amendments
and interpretation that are not yet effective and that
would be expected to have a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. The Group
will adopt the above new standards, amendments
to existing standards and interpretations when they
become effective.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 2.2 FREFRAIRESFEE
accounting
(a) Subsidiaries (a) MIEATE

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control, joint control or significant influence, any
retained interest in the entity is remeasured to
its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or financial
asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

KB A BIEAREES 2 2R E R
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEHERMEe

POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

22 GZERARESEEE)

(b) Joint arrangements (b) EELTH

Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification
depends on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor, rather than the legal structure of
the joint arrangement. The Group has both joint
operations and joint ventures.

Joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group recognises its direct right to the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of joint operations
and its share of any jointly held or incurred assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses.

Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the
equity accounting (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

11
o
T

REFBVBRELENZ RIS
B BEERHIREED
BREEXBREELE - %0 R
BIEREEZERENREHN
o MAIELRFERER -
AEERAREEBRAERE -

BEEHK
AERBEREEAREHIEOE S
SHRAEEHAMOAERTIR
B EREN—BAERS - AR
SRR IR A 01 B — TR 2
BB R RIEEAE
BB A2 5T H 5 —
HRE AT -

AEERABEHEEXHNEE
BfE - MARFXHBERENAR
HAEEMARBSERELNEE
BE  WARFXHHOMNE -

AERE
RAEELENBRNES P BRR

RPNTRRAER R - RS
SFDE(R TR AL -



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity accounting (see (d) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates and joint ventures are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

2 EXE
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(c)

(d)
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2 BEXEFABEREBE»

Kin Pang Holdings Limited 22512 AR A &

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity

accounting (Continued)

(d) Equity accounting (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.7.

2.3 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiaries in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investments in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwiill.

11
o
T

22 GZERARESEEE)

(d) HEmEHEE

AEBERAEBENBNAELRY
B 32 5 B9 R B 30 e e 42 A S B 0 a%
SERNER TN - RERE
BINE TUARE  RIFZRZER
EEREERENZE - BaEAKR
RIRE TSI HRRENFERE
AR - URERKEMRAS
TR -

BE ARRENEESRRENE
2.7 PR BREETTIRUE R,

2.3 EBMBHRRE

R E AR R E BRI R ES
fR - MABRREEREBERA - B
NAMEERARRIZE W R B S
EHENER o

MR SEAERKREHAMBARNE
EEARRE - REBBHBHRROKR
BREEBRBFEAMBERRPERER
AEEFE(ERHE)NEEE - AR
WER Bz TR E MR B R VAL S
RENREERERR °



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Segment reporting 2.4 DEEHE

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker (the “CODM”). The CODM, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the management of the Group, who makes strategic
decisions.
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2.5 Foreign currency translation 25 JMEBE

(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Macau Pataca (“MOP”), which is the Group’s
presentation currency. The functional currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”).

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or
loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on a net basis within
“Administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

e income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other financial instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
foreign operation is sold or any borrowings forming
part of the net investment are repaid, the associated
exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at
the closing rate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Property, plant and equipment 2.6 Y% - RERE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings  Over the remaining lease
term of 30 years

Over the shorter of the
term of the lease, or

Leasehold improvements

3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 to 6 years
Plant and machinery 6 to 7 years
Office equipment 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 BEXEABEREHBE»

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised within “Other income and other gains/(losses)”
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition. To
the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “Right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there is separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Investments and other financial assets

28 RERHMEMEE

2.8.1 Classification 281 o348

The Group classifies its financial assets as those to
be measured at amortised cost. The classification
depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the
cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

AEERESREED B RIZEH
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28.2 Recognition and derecognition 282 MERRARIETER
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets ERBEEREENEREENRR S
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the AR XA EEAFREE
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial NHEEENBE - ZREKES
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive BEEMNRESRENENEBKE
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or g BAEBEETEE LBATAE
have been transferred and the Group has transferred 2R R EREZE - BES R
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. BEBIRIEER -

2.8.3 Measurement 283 &tE
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial RYIZHERE - NEEEEREE
asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are MARBENLLEESERKES
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial BEEMR HKANETE ©
asset.
Amortised cost - 37 /o

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in “Other income and other gains/
(losses)” using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in profit or loss. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

284 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the
expected credit losses (the “ECL”) associated with
its debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the trade
receivables and contract assets.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

2.10 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. Other receivables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents

211 MERBAELEEY

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are
shown within bank borrowings in current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

2.12 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.13 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade and other payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business, if longer). If
not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value, and subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Borrowings (Continued)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-
down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down,
the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated statement
of financial position when the obligation specified in the
contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as finance costs.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated
and the entity issues equity instruments to a creditor to
extinguish all or part of the liability (debt for equity swap),
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is
measured as the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity
instruments issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.15 Borrowing costs

215 {EFRA

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

2.16 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on
the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted
by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable
to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss and
does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEBERBES
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.16 BNEIRRIEFRSHi (&)

(i) Deferred income tax (Continued) (i) EEEFFBH (2

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the entity is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

{270 R BE A R 2R 8RR AR & B8 A it
ERANBRZFEREZENER
B - D EERELEMSHEE -

WARFIRIN R E BB (B BT
EZREREZRRIDELNIAR
BREE - ZIBN TR EBEME
1hl) T By 1M 2 R A 988 [ By [ DA S 28
FERIFAR KRR AT GE N REE -

ELERAEERBERERELTE
AR BT AR R B BIR A
E R AENA MBI IRERE R
— B HERNEE RBREEE
BB REREREREE A B
PEMITRERE I Rt SR B R E S
BE FEEREENREBEER
B T LAIKEH -

Annual Report FE 5 2024 137



138

Kin Pang Holdings Limited 22512 AR A &

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Retirement benefit costs

Group companies operate various defined contribution
pension schemes. The schemes are generally funded
through payments to insurance companies or trustee-
administered funds, determined by periodic actuarial
calculations. The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis.

Eligible employees of the Group are covered by a
government-mandated defined contribution plan
pursuant to which a fixed amount of retirement
benefit would be determined and paid by the
Macau Government. Contributions are generally
made by both employees and employers by paying
a fixed amount on a monthly basis to the Social
Security Fund Contribution managed by the Macau
Government. The Group funds the entire contribution
and has no further commitments beyond its monthly
contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued) 217 EEE®H (&)

RIKERI A (2)

(ii) Retirement benefit costs (Continued) (ii)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administrated fund. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme
(subject to a maximum of HK$1,500 per month
per employee), which contribution is matched by
employees. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed to the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme.

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. Accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
consolidated statement of financial position date.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled, share-based
compensation plans, namely the share option
scheme. Information relating to the share option
scheme is set out in Note 27. The fair value of options
granted under the Group’s share option scheme is
recognised as an employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in equity. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair
value of the options granted:

e including any market performance conditions (for
example, the entity’s share price);

e  excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

° including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save or holding shares for a
specified period of time).

11
o
T

2 BEXEFABEREBE»
217 EEE®H (&)
(i) EEEZ={REA
EEZENFBREEREREEEEZS
B AR RERR © E%%éﬁﬁi%ﬁﬁ
kB E - AEEE S FAEHES

(iv)

BmEEMFEROMGRE -HIFE
FT5RIA ©

R H B2 EA
AEBRENEREE - RO B
EW 2 NS - BIREARRERT 8 -
BERABEE SN E RSN M
27 - IRIBAK BB 8K
BRENLALBERRRERRN
P MARRERERRIE AN - T2
RBDH2RARLBEREZ AR(E
BHETE

o BREREMMHRIRMEMS(FHL0
ERHAE)

. TEEEARERIETERSR
S R fE (DI - 15 2
B2 R — B A
FERZER)NFE R

o  BRERMEMIEEBEF(HIMMA
ERENFEDRFESLFE
Befn) 2 7% -



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.17 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iv) Share-based compensation (Continued)

The total expense is recognised over the vesting
period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the
end of each period, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting and service conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (hnominal value) and share premium.

(v) Termination benefit

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Provisions (Continued) 218 &E &)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.19 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the rendering of services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple elements, the
transaction price will be allocated to each performance
obligation based on their relative stand-alone selling prices.
If the stand-alone selling prices are not directly observable,
they are estimated based on expected cost plus a margin
or adjusted market assessment approach, depending on
the availability of observable information.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the good or service may be
transferred over time or at a point of time.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued) 219. WL NFERR (&)

Control of the goods or service is transferred over time if
the Group’s performance:

e  provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised
at a point in time when the customer obtains control of the
asset.

(@) Revenue from provision for building and
ancillary services

The building and ancillary services mainly included
foundation associated works, hard landscaping,
alteration and addition works, road works, water pipe
works, electrical and mechanical works and other
ancillary building works. Generally, the contracts
entered into by the Group is for the provision of
significant integration services and the goods and
services within the contract will be highly dependent
on or highly integrated with other goods or services.
As such, different elements of a construction contract
are accounted as a single performance obligation. The
Group treated the construction contracts as a single
performance obligation as the construction works are
not capable of being distinct.
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Kin Pang Holdings Limited 22512 AR A &

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a) Revenue from provision for building and

ancillary services (Continued)

Revenue from individual contracts is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to
progress of the project towards complete satisfaction
of performance obligation. The progress towards
complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue based on the value of construction
works completed to date (as evaluated by the
Group’s internal technicians and/or certified by
external architects, surveyors or other representatives
as appointed by customers (collectively the “External
Technicians”) as a proportion of the total contract
value of the relevant construction contracts, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

The Group accounts for a modification if the
customers to a contract approve a change in the
scope and/or the price of a contract. A contract
modification is approved when the modification
creates or changes the enforceable rights and
obligations of the customers to the contract. If the
customers have approved a change in scope, but
have not yet determined the corresponding change in
price, the Group estimates the change to the contract
price as a variable consideration.

The estimated amount of the variable consideration,
including the claims and liquidated damages, is
included in the contract price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable considerations is subsequently resolved.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

219 W AFERR (&)
RBUHBERREREZIMA2)

(a) Revenue from provision for building and (a)

ancillary services (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully
the circumstances present at the end of the reporting
period and the changes in circumstances during the
reporting period.

For warranty embedded to the construction contracts,
the Group accounts for the warranty in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets unless the warranty provides the
customer with a service in addition to the assurance
that the contracting work complies with the agreed-
upon specifications.

The payment terms differed for different customers
due to the variety of projects. The Group does not
intend to give a financing to customers and the Group
make efforts to collect the receivables and timely
monitor the credit risk.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”.
In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the
passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a
net basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Other income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method, on a time-proportion basis.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are earned.

2.21 Earnings per share

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the Company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(i) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account the after-income tax effect of interest and
other financing costs associated with dilutive potential
ordinary shares, and the weighted average number
of additional ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Leases 222 HHE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payments that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e  the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received and makes any adjustments specific
to the lease, e.g., term, country, currency and security.

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available to
the individual lessee (through recent financing or market
data) which has a similar payment profile to the lease,
then the Group entities use that rate as a starting point to
determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING 2 EXEFBERME»

POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued) 222 HE(#)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs; and

° restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases
of low-valued assets are recognised on a straight-line basis
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less without a purchase
option.

2.23 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all the attached
conditions.

Government grants are recognised as “Other income and
other gains/(losses)” over the period necessary to match
them with the related costs which they are intended to
compensate, on a systematic basis.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property,
plant and equipment are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 HEREKRER

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to market risk (including
foreign exchange and cash flow and fair value interest
rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management programme focuses on the analysis,
evaluation, acceptance and monitoring of such risks which
are an inevitable consequence of being in business. The
Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance
between risk and return and minimise potential adverse
effect on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Market risk

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the relevant group
entity. The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong
and Macau. The Group entities collect most of
the revenue and incur most of the expenditures
in their respective functional currencies, namely
HK$ and MOP. The Group is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the Group
entities’ functional currency.

Management closely monitors foreign currency
exchange exposure and will take measures
to minimise the currency translation risk. The
Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposure. The Group has not
used any hedging arrangement to hedge its
foreign exchange risk exposure as management
considers its exposure is not significant.

As the exchange rate of HK$/MOP is relatively
stable, the Group does not expect any significant
foreign currency exposure arising from the
fluctuation of the HK$/MOP exchange rates. As a
result, management of the Group considers that
the sensitivity of the Group’s exposure towards
the-change in foreign exchange rates between
HKS$/MOP is minimall.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 HMBEMEREs

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from the Group’s bank deposits and borrowings.
Borrowings issued at variable rates and at fixed
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate
risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of prevailing
market interest rates arising from the Group’s
pledged bank deposits and bank balances, and
MOP best lending rate, Macau Interbank Offered
Rate (“MIBOR”) and Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from the Group’s
variable-rate bank borrowings. The Group does
not use financial derivatives to hedge against the
interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for its variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate
bank borrowings at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year and
50 basis points increase or decrease are used.
The pledged bank deposits and bank balances
are excluded from the sensitivity analysis as
management of the Group considers that the
interest rate fluctuation is not significant.

If interest rates have been 50 basis points
higher/lower for variable-rate bank borrowings
and all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December
2024 would increase/decrease by approximately
MOP507,000 (2023: MOP328,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 B¥RMERs
3.1 BBEREZEZ)
(b) EERE

Kin Pang Holdings Limited 21 AR A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refer to the risk that the counter-party fails
to meet its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The credit risk of the Group
mainly arises from trade receivables, contract assets,
deposits and other receivables, amounts due from
joint operations, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks
associated with its financial assets. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

The Group has six types of assets that are subject to
the ECL model:

—  Trade receivables;

—  Contract assets;

—  Deposits and other receivables;

—  Amounts due from joint operations;

—  Pledged bank deposits; and

- Bank balances.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, twelve-month ECL
(“12-month ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within twelve months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBEMEREs
3.1 HEEMBEE 2
(b) EERKZ)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets under the simplified
approach in accordance to HKFRS 9. The ECL on
these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables and collectively for other
debtors based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to the nature and size of debtors, historical
credit loss experience, ageing of overdue receivable,
customer’s repayment history and customer’s financial
position, and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information, such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle
the receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance under the general approach in accordance
to HKFRS 9, which is equal to 12-month ECL,
unless when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based
on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the
industries in which the Group’s debtors operate.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit rating;

e existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 HMBEMEREs

Kin Pang Holdings Limited 21 AR A

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) - Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty
is in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example,
when the counterparty has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past due,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Trade receivables and contract assets

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
performs credit investigation (including assessing
financial information, seeking advice from business
partners of the potential customers and performing
credit search) to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and defines credit limits by customer.
Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on a
regular basis. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 35.6%
(2023: 26.9%) and 77.1% (20283: 86.4%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers respectively
within the building and ancillary services segment.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B¥RMERs
3.1 BEEBEE®
(b) EERK®)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model on trade receivables
and contract assets. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for debtors with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables and collectively for other debtors based
on shared credit risk characteristics for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature and size of
debtors, and applying expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables
and contract assets. The expected credit loss rates
are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced from the past 1 year and are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking information such
as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
debtors to settle the receivables.

The Group also considered the forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors including gross
domestic product.

Measurement of ECL on an individual basis

As at 31 December 2024, an individual impairment
assessment was performed on contract assets with
outstanding balances of approximately MOP9,986,000
(2023: MOP9,986,000) and impairment allowance of
approximately MOP9,986,000 (2023: MOP9,986,000)
was provided.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 BRMERe
3.1 BBEREZEZ)
(b) EERB )

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)
Measurement of ECL on an individual basis (Continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected life
of the debtors, credit risk characteristics of debtors
with reference to the Group’s internal credit ratings,
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Such forward-
looking information is used by the management of
the Group to assess both the current as well as the
forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date.
The grouping is regularly reviewed by the management
of the Group to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated. The contract assets have
substantially the same risk characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. The Group
has therefore concluded that the loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rates for contract assets.

Measurement of ECL on a collective basis

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
Except for debtors that are with known financial
difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables subject to individual assessment as
disclosed above, the debtors are grouped under
a provision matrix into four (2023: four) internal
credit rating buckets (namely: Group 1, Group 2,
Group 3 and Group 4) based on shared credit risk
characteristics by reference to nature and size of
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current
financial position.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B¥RMERs

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BBEABEE®)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EER =)
Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued) B SN TE R & #)EE ()
Measurement of ECL on a collective basis (Continued) e Ra e S TR EEHE (&)
The following table provides information about TREER-_ZF-_WNFR-_T ==
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables F+-_A=+—HEBEZE S EWK
and contract assets which are assessed based HEMAEKEE(BEN T E 78
on provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit- FEEBE(EEERE) ZEEER
impaired) as at 31 December 2024 and 2023: A EBREERRNER
Weighted average Lifetime expected
expected credit loss rate  Gross carrying amount credit loss
MEESEREEHEER IREAE FENENEESE
Trade  Contract Trade  Contract Trade  Contract
receivables assets receivables assets receivables assets
g% g% €%
ElRE AHEE EUHRE ANEE RERFE ARHEE
% % MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
% % FBRMT FEMAT FTRMAT TRMAC

As at 31 December R=F=MF

2024 +=A=+-H
Group 1 £ 1.22 4.14 54814 137,269 (668) (5,689)
Group 2 b | N/ATiE R 0.10 - 2,064 - @
Group 3 =4 0.07 0.57 4,095 21,335 ®) (122
Group 4 £ 0.06 0.11 12,462 4,527 W) (5)
71,371 165,195 (678) (5,818)
Asat 31 December RZZZ=%F
2023 +-A=t+—H
Group 1 F—4 0.59 3.31 63,157 186,463 (371) (6,169)
Group 2 F-H N/AZNEF 0.17 - 2,334 - (4)
Group 3 Et | 0.05 5.70 6,362 20,164 ) (1,150)
Group 4 Eu| 100.00 0.32 387 5,544 (387) (18)
69,906 214,505 (761) (7,341)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

PZOZOZVZOZ0Z

%

3

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

3 HBEMEREs

3.1 EREBEE 2

(b)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECL on a collective basis (Continued)

Note:

Description

Group 1 Listed company/government authority

Group 2
Group 3

Group 4  Other private company

Private large company with long term relationship
Private company with long term relationship

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
and contract assets under the simplified approach.

EER#)
B HIB R AT E ()
REREEH EEHEEER®)
Bt

i
E—H  FEAT AT
548 BERBBENLLARAT

F=H ABERIAEERNLEAR
FUE  EMAEAR

TRFISRBAE LR R B R
SRR A WA B2 B
BEEFRZ 2D -

Trade receivables

B EWRIE
2024 2023
—E-MEF T
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT TR
Opening loss allowance at R—A—BREYEERE
1 January 761 743
Provision for impairment losses BB 1B RS 304 18
Receivables written off during B 7 B] UK 1] 1 A 4R AT B
the year as uncollectible FEMIFR IR (387) =
Closing loss allowance at R+ A=+—HBHFEREE
31 December e 678 761

Contract assets

EHEE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT TR
Opening loss allowance at R—RA—BNEVEERE
1 January 17,327 11,564
(Reversal of)/provision for WERSIE(EE), e
impairment losses (1,389) 5,763
Receivables written off during ATULE] TR G A S Y
the year as uncollectible FEMIFRIE (134) =
Closing loss allowance at R+ A=+—BHFEREE
31 December e 15,804 17,327

X




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 B¥RMERs
3.1 BEEMEE®
(b) EEREE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2024, reversal
of impairment losses recognised on contract assets
attributable to work already performed but not yet
billed to customers and retention monies amounted to
approximately MOP821,000 and MOP568,000 (2023:
impairment losses of approximately MOP4,632,000
and MOP1,131,000), respectively.

Deposits, other receivables and amounts due from
joint operations

For deposits, other receivables and amounts due
from joint operations, the directors of the Company
make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability based on historical settlement records,
past experience, and also quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportive
forward-looking information. Except for the amount
due from a joint venture with significant increase in
credit risk, the directors of the Company consider
that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
other balances since initial recognition and the Group
provided impairment based on 12-month ECL. As
at 31 December 2024 and 2023, except for the
impairment loss on amount due from a joint venture
of MOP877,000 and MOP877,000 respectively,
the Group assessed the ECL for deposits, other
receivables and amounts due from joint operations
were insignificant and thus no loss allowance was
recognised.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances

Credit risk on pledged bank deposits and bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit agencies. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
banks and financial institutions as they have no default
history in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss
rate of cash at bank is assessed to be immaterial and
no provision was made as at 31 December 2024 and
2023.

EZERFTAREAEE (&)
HE_ZE_WF+_A=+—H
IEFEE  fERAAHRAARR
HARENTERESNEER
RHREBEREEDRRBEEDH
& #7821,0002 P9 7T & 568,000 2
FAT(ZZE-=%: REBEYD
4,632,000 P97t & 1,131,00038 P9
JL) °

%L BMENRGIELREKS &
E

BiES « EMERKEREKES &
X¥BFIEME * AR RESRER
AEET  BAELREAIERR
BRENAIEETERTHER - &
AT B 1 E HR s 1T R BT o BRAE
W—RE&ELERENEERBRA
RIS RAREERE BB
IRFER AR E b5 M2 B R R I
EARIEN - AEEERE12(E
AEHEEBEFTIRAERE -
R-BE_NMEN T _=F+_H
=+—H  BREKR—EaEEER
ESREE1E D Bl A&877,00038 P T
877,000/ FFTob + NEBEFTE
Ze - EMEUGRIEREWN S &5
BRIEMEHREEBRYTERX
T B R TR o

ERFRITEA R R T/
ARRZEF T RABRREEF
BREREEFENEER TR
17 MEERRITERRRITER
HEERBAER - ANZFRITR
TRHBRET MBS  RE
BERHTEHRANEREOT
EEZEAEBE - At - RITRSE
ZEHMEEBERERAZALTE
R BER-ZF-_MER-_FT_=F
tZA=t+—AEEHR R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BRMERe

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HREKBEEZ)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) REBELER
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEERDECRERE - AKEE
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash RRHEFEREERAERENRE R
equivalents deemed adequate by management to REZEWKE - UMERAEER
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the ¥%REES  WHERESRER
effects of unexpected fluctuations in cash flows. INERENH R 2 o
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRANEENITECRE B
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial TE&LORNEMRANEFE o ZRIBE
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the AEEANRNEFBHRNEHE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based BRARURRENEHE -

on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

Weighted
average  Ondemand Total
effective  orless than 1-3 3 months 1-5  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years cash flows amount
g RER RHR

EBNE  WMERR 1EER SEAEME  1FESE RSN R
% MOPOOD  MOPOOD  MOPOOD  MOPOOO  MOPOOD  MOPOMO
% TEAT THfL TEAT TERT THfL TEAT

As at 31 December 2024 R=B-RE
+ZA=+-A
Trade and other payables B LAt ERTUE - 78,866 25,968 20,501 36,466 161,801 161,801
Lease liabilities HERR 5.96 238 706 1,285 467 2,696 2,600
Bark borrowings TN 406 106,371 - - - 106,371 106,371
Amounts due tojoint operations  FERTAEERTE - 6,409 - - - 6,409 6,409
191,884 26,674 21,786 36,933 211,211 217,181
As at 31 December 2023 s
tZA=t-H
Trade and other payables BAREfERFE - 93,924 13,035 9,064 38,650 154,673 154,673
Lease liabilities HERE 5.60 246 739 1,965 2,690 5,630 5,295
Bark borrovings Bk 438 73012 - - - 73012 73012
Amounts due fo joint operations  [ERAEERFA - 2,922 - - - 22,922 22,922
190,304 13,774 11,019 41,340 256,437 266,102

X7

0Z0

0Z0

030
0Z0

0Z0
X
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020
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Z0%0
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

3 HMBEMEREs

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

3.3

3.4

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
to their fair values. The fair value for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments, unless the
discounting effect is insignificant.

Capital risk management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include the bank borrowings, and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
retained earnings and other reserves. Management semi-
annually reviews and manages the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt as it sees fit and
appropriate.

Offsetting financial assets and financial
liabilities

No material financial assets and financial liabilities
were subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar arrangements as at 31 December
2024 and 2023.

3.2

3.3

3.4

DABEEMSE

KRB MR RIZ E AT R 2
SECREERERABENRAELER
NABERE - FREBNZARERE
BRRAKSEBRUSRTARBNERR
MISAERER KRR S DR REMIEL
et - BRIERAER P B L TEXRIER]

A
af ©

ExERER

AEEEREANTIZARS  BEX
SERELLENR)  ANERELE
5 B R 25 2 ) O P 1 R AR 77 2R A oK [E
o N EHERE R B EFRLLRET

AEENEARBREER (BT EER
TR RAREHEE AREER (B
BERTERA - REARNREMBRHE)
EEEEREREARANEZEER
BRANRAR  B¥FRi —RERNRE
WHETERE - BER - AEERKER
RRRERGENBERT » ERIRMNK
B BITHIRM AR EITHERHED
RAEER  VFEHEREEARE -

HEemEERESMEE

RZZE-_MER_FT_=F+=A
=+—H BMESERAcHEERSHE
BEAXRRIE - RHRITHEFBLE
B RIEU L ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Going concern

The Group prepares cash flow projections that cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2024. Taking into account the plans and measures as
described in Note 2.1, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the
next twelve months from the date of the statement of
financial position. The consolidated financial statements are
prepared on a going concern basis.

The assumption that the Group will be able to operate
as a going concern is a critical judgment that has the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. Whether the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern would depend
upon the Group’s ability to generate adequate financing
and operating cash flows through the successful fulfilment
of the plans as described in Note 2.1.

11
o
T

4 FAREEHHIERGE

fEEr RAE R EBELR M AMAR (2R
EHREEATHRAREHELRSAENTE
H) I THAERTAS o

AEBHRKIEL B REBER - REEE
HItEEMN S B RIFRANEBEERS
R-EAAERT—EAFRFENEERA
EREERETENARNEARBRA M
RRERH AT

(a) FHEEERE
AEERERRAEE _FT_NOF+=A
=t—BHEFAIR+ @A HHEAR
ERETRAR o KL BME2.1FratEt 8 &
Bk  ARBERERREEET /A
BERHES  YETEAMBKIKAR
A SRR+ — B A M B HI T R 81
BEE - MAMBHRRAFBELEESE

M3 o

REBRERFERLENRRBHEREH
B HERARBRAERNEEAAR
BEAFE - AEERDSHELLIAR
AEBEBAIN BITHE2. 1 Pt et 81
ERANBE RELRERERFES



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4 PRI =st¥lEiRi&st e
ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Revenue recognition for provision of building

(c)

and ancillary services and recognition of
contract assets

Revenue for provision of building and ancillary services is
recognised over time by measuring the progress towards
completion of the Group’s performance obligations as set
out in respective contracts. The Group has used the output
method to estimate the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value of
construction works completed to date (as evaluated by the
Group’s internal technicians and/or certified by External
Technicians as a proportion of the total contract value of
the relevant construction contracts. The Group regularly
reviews and revises the estimation of building and ancillary
services construction contract progresses whenever there is
any change in circumstances.

Loss allowance of trade receivables and
contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade receivables and contract assets.
The Group assessed individually and provided for credit
losses allowance for trade receivables and contract assets
which have impaired. If no reasonable and supportable
information is available without undue cost for ECL
measurement, the trade receivables and contract assets
were grouped by reference to the credit risk characteristics
and assessed collectively for credit losses allowance. When
measuring expected credit loss, the Group considers the
nature and size of the customer, credit loss experience,
ageing of overdue receivable, customer’s repayment
history and customer’s financial position, and adjusts by
taking into consideration current conditions and forward-
looking factors. The Group uses judgment in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the nature and size of customer and
number of days that an individual receivable is outstanding
as well as the debtor’s historical repayment history and
forward-looking information at the year end. Changes in
these assumptions and estimates could materially affect the
result of the assessment and it may be necessary to make
additional loss allowance to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(b) RN EEREAURA IR

(c)

ANEENER

RHEEREERBOBAZRAEE
E& G HP IR E B E K Z BE i ) i
R ARBEERBE LA G ERER
BHEENEE  EH2ELS5ETK
ML TREEERRERN AR A
BRHE RSN BT A B RE )5 1E R
REANNBEHEELD - ZEBR
BERECE - REEE SRR REFT
HEEREERFZESOERNGE

BEZRBRIERANEEZBRR
(-]

AEEEREEMBREELFEHRE
LA ETRREEER A ES
RKFBERGOEERRFENENES
BEE - AEEHERLRENE SR
WRIA K& KB BT BT S Mt iR
EEEBRRE - WRFTERBEEEE
R AT LT H B 2 BCARRY B T A
GREMAERXFHNEN  REZE
WHRIBERANEES2RERRRFEE
T U EEERBREFLEREN
i - RETERBEEBRRN  A&EZE
BEPHARBAR FEEELR &
HIRWRIRZ ik - BPERRERE
PoBAMR - A4S E BIARS M A IE £
AEEHRE - AEERFRREEF
HEE Ko AR K {8 51 8 W sk IR 8 H R BUA
REBNBEERCELATEILEER -
ERHEELZERRIEERANGTE
BEZ WA - ZEBRRRAFTHE
BRI REHFEERENEARE - B
RAELEN AR REMEEKER
AHERERIMET IR
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4 PRI =st¥lEiRi&st e
ESTIMATES (continued)

(d) Current and deferred income tax

(e)

Significant judgment is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such difference will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made. Deferred tax assets relating to
certain temporary differences and tax losses are recognised
when management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. The recoverable amount of a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on the higher
of fair value less cost of disposal (“FVLCD”) and value-in-
use (“VIU”) models. The methodologies are based upon
a number of key estimates and other information, both
internal and external, including (i) the revenue growth rate;
(i) the terminal growth rates; (iii) pre-tax discount rate in
VIU model; and (iv) estimation of market values of certain
assets in FVLCD, which are derived from market research.
These calculations require the use of estimates. Changing
the assumptions selected by the Group to determine the
level, if any, of impairment, including the pre-tax discount
rate or the growth rate assumptions, could significantly
affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of
operations.

11
o
T

(d) BPHARZAEREFRSH

(e)

EEMEREGER  FRELERH
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s CODM, which has been identified as the
management of the Group, considers the segment from a
business perspective and monitors the operating results of its
operating segment for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group had
one (20283: one) reportable operating segment, which was the
provision of building and ancillary services.

No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

Year ended 31 December 2024

5

DEPEF

ARMOER SRR RDE RN
EEE - RERBEAEERSH  BER
HEEHBNEERS  UHEASREE
REHE (AT -

REZE-F-mE+-A=+— Htif
AEBE—@(=F==F : —@) T2
A - BB ERERRER -

ERAREEN T 2R G EER LS

o

o
oK

DEBIA R EAR

TX R 2HmOEE D
B

RN L ONSES

BE-R-_NFE+-A=+—HLHFE

Building
and ancillary
services Consolidated
BER
EEEARTE ped=y
MOP’000 MOP’000
TiRFMT TiEMT
Segment revenue 2 EBA 675,230 675,230
Segment profit 7 2B 8,119 8,119
Other income and other gains/(losses) — EMUA R EMURZS (E1E) 4,792
Administrative expenses 1THRAX (30,985)
Finance costs BhE R AN (3,966)
Loss before income tax BrFTIS TR E R (22,040)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2023

5

DEBER =)
DEBUMARELE #)
BE-_Z-_=—#+_A=+—HIEE

Building
and ancillary
services Consolidated
BER
e E RS o)
MOP’000 MOP’000
F8F7T TR
Segment revenue DERUT A 582,928 582,928
Segment profit 7 2B E 4,548 4,548
Other income and other gains/(losses)  EMUA R EMUkzs (EE) (1,096)
Administrative expenses TR (29,797)
Finance costs BUE RN (6,182)
Share of results of investments BESEEARNEGRE
accounted for using the equity method %48 (25)
Impairment losses of amount due from a FEEi(EEEEEAIE N EK—HEE
joint venture under expected credit loss 13 7XIE 2 B R 1B
model (877)
Loss before income tax BTSSR E1E (33,429)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 2.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of other income and other gains/(losses),
administrative expenses and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation
and performance assessment.

The CODM makes decisions according to operating results
of each segment. No analysis of segment asset and segment
liability is presented as the CODM does not regularly review
such information for the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment. Therefore, only segment revenue and
segment results are presented.

11
o
T

QESBHEH BRI AR EEE
SHEEIAR - 9 BFBES S BERD RE
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information

Year ended 31 December 2024

5 9EEH @
Hit1o &P &

BE_ZF_NF+-A=+—HLEE

Building
and ancillary
services Unallocated Total
BER
EEERRIE Ko EC &t
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TRMT TRMT
Amounts included in the measure 5+ AFTE 7 2R3 FIAY
of segment profit: BFE
Depreciation of property, plant and #1% - = M &
equipment e (22,950) (530) (23,480)
Depreciation of right-of-use EREEENE
assets (607) (2,258) (2,865)
Impairment loss on trade TEEMEEBEERIE T
receivables under expected B 5 REWFIE R E
credit loss model E51E (304) - (304)
Reversal of impairment loss on BHEEEERAIET
contract assets under expected BREERERBRE
credit loss model [ 1,389 - 1,389
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continueq) 5 SE&ER®
Other segment information (Continued) HitoEER (2)
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-_E-_=F+-HA=+—HIEE
Building
and ancillary
services Unallocated Total
BER
AL EfRTS AOH A&f
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRPIT TFRFIT TR

Amounts included in the measure 5+ AFTE 7 2B FIAY
of segment profit: BFE

Depreciation of property, plant Y - B MREETE

and equipment (17,989) (701) (18,690)
Depreciation of right-of-use FREEENE

assets (607) (2,193) (2,800)
Impairment loss on trade TEEMEEEEERIE T

receivables under expected B 5 IR RE

credit loss model [E518 (18) = (18)
Impairment loss on contract RHEEERERIET

assets under expected credit EREEREERE

loss model (5,763) - (5,763)
Impairment loss on amount due ~ FEER{E B E5i8EAE

from a joint venture under e —fEE &5 FRIE

expected credit loss model KRB AR = 877) (877)

0203

X

XX

X

X

3



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information

(@) Revenue from external customers

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical area, which is determined by the country/
region where the services were provided, is as follows:

5

DERER =)
WEER
(a) EEFUIMA

AEEZBE (HIRHREAERR,
BET)ED 2INBEPWALT

2024 2023

—EmE —Eo=4

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TRPIT

Macau SR 600,804 549,985
Hong Kong BB 74,426 32,943
675,230 582,928

(b) Non-current assets
The Group’s non-current assets by geographic area are as

(b) FREEE

REEIZWEE D 2 FEREEENT :

follows:
2024 2023
—ENEF —E-=4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT T8RP 7T
Macau SEPS 121,287 90,374
Hong Kong BB 4,608 4,836
125,895 95,210
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information (Continued)
(b) Non-current assets (Continued)
Key Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2024, there were four
customers (2023: four) which individually contributed over
10% of the Group’s total revenue, the revenue contributed

5 9EEH @
WEER =)
(b) ERENEE )
FEXFE
HE -_Z_WNFEF+_A=+—HIF
B> REWNZ(ZE_=F: IZ)EF
ZWAMEAREELWAI0%IA E @ 525

from these customers were as follows: EFPERZWALT :
2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Customer A BPA N/ATE 83,330
Customer B =FB 75,892 114,733
Customer C =FC N/ATE 60,259
Customer D =FED N/ATEH 58,764
Customer E EFE 195,251 N/ATNE A
Customer F 2EF 112,958 N/AT 3 F
Customer G BEG 74,581 N/ATE

6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

6 XREEFFSHNEA

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with REMPEEEHZBASF
external customers
2024 2023
Tl —E-=4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT TBFIT
Recognised over time R — R A RERR

— Building and ancillary services —ZERRERE 675,230 582,928




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

6

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with
customers

The Group provides building and ancillary services to customers.
Such services are recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced
at customers’ site. Revenue is recognised for these construction
services based on the stage of completion of the contract using
output method.

The Group’s construction contracts include payment schedules
which require stage payments over the construction period once
certain specified milestones are reached. The Group requires
certain customers to provide upfront deposits range from 5% to
10% of total contract sum, when the Group receives a deposit
before construction commences, this will give rise to contract
liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue recognised
on the specific contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

A contract asset, net of contract liability related to the same
contract, is recognised over the period in which the construction
services are performed representing the Group’s right to
consideration for the services performed because the rights are
conditioned on surveys of work performed to date, customer’s
correspondences or other documents. The contract assets
are transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional.

Retention receivables, prior to expiration of defect liability
period, are classified as contract assets, which ranges from
one to five years from the date of the practical completion of
the construction. The relevant amount of contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables when the defect liability period
expires. The defect liability period serves as an assurance
that the construction services performed comply with agreed-
upon specifications and such assurance cannot be purchased
separately.

6

REEFFSHNBA®
REEFEHZEBHAERE

AEBRAETFRHEZEMEERS © WA
SENEPMAEMAGEHEA—HEE M
ZEERAERRTBHELES - AIZE
PR &R AN —REFHEAEKH —HEL
B - ZFEERBOKRABRIERA LT
B R EHVERER ©

AEBHNEZESNERNETRERRZME —
RER - AN EEERE 2 B R SRR
BRERX AREZRETEPEHNTAH
BEBERE10%MFAMNKIA - EXAEEEN
TRIRAMKEIZEER - iSEAR RMRFE
TEMARE  BEIFTEANERNKRABSE
BeeBEmL -

BHEEMNMREAR-SOBABNENEE)
REERBETHRE T UER - AXAKH
ZRMRERSHER - REARZFENTS
BURRIES BIEFMETH TIERE - TP H
BIEHEMXAEME - E-NKSEKNT
- AHNEEBREEZREF0A -

RURESNREETHEERNDERE
WEE HWARKRERRTAHENT—Z=
he - AREEMNHBSRERREETHE
ERRERIREREZRKFIA - RIEEE
HRERANTRERE S A BT RBRE
k- BREFRERTEEEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

6 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH 6 REEFEFSHNWA®
CUSTOMERS (Continued)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining REHERIMTFEFAANRBREHE
performance obligation for contracts with =
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance REZZBZNFE+=—A=+—BHBHEEENKE
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) in respect of ERBAMTRBRBHETNRSHEE(RE
building and andillary services as at 31 December 2024 and the PR 3k EB ) ARAEAK ) K T TR MR A B T8 B s ) a0
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: 3
2024 2023
—E_F T4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Within one year —FA 479,052 446,639
More than one year but not more than ~ — 4 A B R EBIERF
two years 284,790 275,473

763,842 722,112




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

Notes:

Hsz -

7 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 7 HsWgARHMURES - (E518)
(LOSSES)
2024 2023
—EME B4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Interest income M EWA 563 838
Interest income on loan to a joint m—IEA & EBEROF EHA
operation 64 88
Income from rental of equipment BTN 849 340
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEYE - ME LR EEE
equipment (66) (44)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—REMfBAR W 13 -
Gain on lease termination LI E RIS 2 1
Amortisation of deferred government IRIE TR 47 B SE (B 22 16(a))
grants (Note 16(d)) 165 165
Loss on prepayment of property, plant ¥ -« &= MR EHTEN ZIEEE
and equipment (Note (a)) (Kt (@) - (4,470)
Service income from a joint venture RE—HEERFERBKA 213 -
Sundry income (Note (b)) E WA (H1iEDb)) 2,989 1,986
4,792 (1,096)

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group initiated
an acquisition process for a construction machinery from a
supplier. Total amounts of approximately MOP4,470,000 were
remitted to two bank accounts as the purchase consideration for
the machinery. Subsequently, it was discovered that the email
address used for communication appeared to be a hacked email
address. The bank accounts designated by the suspected hacker
were found to be unrelated to the supplier, and the supplier
confirmed that they did not receive any payment from the Group.
The directors of the Company considered that the recovery of the
payment was remote, and a loss of approximately MOP4,470,000
was recognised.

Sundry income mainly represented sales of scrap material,
insurance claims and fees charged for provision of manpower
services (2023: Same).

(@

REBE-_T_=F+_"HA=+—HILFE"
AEERRBEEEREWE & TEEMRE
Fre REBERMERTERS NG H£L
4,470,000 FITTAE BB EEM A E o H
& - ZEHAEBANE T BT A5
ZEANEHEF B o RUZEEED
RITARP BN A H R RS - A /B
RIRE I B AR EE A ERRFR o ARF]
EEZRRREFIBBRN ALK - WHERE
#£#494,470,000/2F9 7T

HWAERIEHEER - RRRE LR
BEATRBEBNER(ZT =% : R) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

8 EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 HHMEEIDZMAX

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Material and subcontractor costs MR RS BRERA 420,675 403,547
Auditor’s remuneration Z AN B & 1,267 1,112
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BB MR BT E (HiE15)
equipment (Note 15) 23,480 18,690
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (fiE16)
(Note 16) 2,865 2,800
Employee benefit costs (including EERANKA(BFEESHE)
directors’ emoluments) (Note 9) (H13£9) 151,885 111,120
Legal and professional fees FRREXEER 6,440 4,754
Expense relating to short-term leases BRARBHEHERS 17,302 10,007
Transportation and delivery costs E R AT 42,908 26,415
Site expenses THFAX 5,641 8,654
Others EHAth 26,718 15,297
Total direct costs and administrative BERARITHF S 258
expenses 699,181 602,396

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING

XXX

IZOTOZOZO

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

EEEFIHAE  BEEEHE

2024 2023

—ENEF —EC-=4F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TSR T

Wages and salaries TERS® 146,444 107,772

Staff welfare and benefits EERA &= 4,733 2,871
Contribution to defined contribution TE BB FRET B A (3R

plans 708 477

151,885 111,120




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 EERFIEA BREEEME«
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (a) BRIRESHERE
(i) Directors’ emoluments iy ZESi<
The remuneration of directors for each of the years BEEREE_Z_NER T =
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 are set out FH—_A=T—HLERFENHE
below: AT ¢
Employer’s
contribution
Salaries to defined
and other  contribution Other
Fees benefits lans  emoluments Total
HeRk EHEMERGE .
e HitifEd  HEEHER Hittif £ it

MOP'000  MOP000  MOP000  MOP'000  MOP'000
TRMT TRMT TRMAT TRMAT TRMT

For the yearended HZE—E-MF+_=A
31 December 2024 =+—HILEFE

Executive directors ~ #/7Z2%F

Mr.Kong (Note 1) BRSEAE(Hf5#1) - 1,320 1 - 1,321
Ms. Choi et - 1,080 1 - 1,081
Mr. Chan Wai Keung  FRIZS&5E 4 (f1522)

(Note 2) 51 - - - 51
Independent non- BV HHITEE

executive directors
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing  SRIZ&R L4 206 - - - 206
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun ~ SR{EMRE4

Jacky 206 - - - 206
Mr. Zhao Zhipeng M HESEAE 206 - - - 206

669 2,400 2 - 3,071

For the yearended BHBZE—F==%+=H
31 December 2023 =t+—HILFE

Executive directors ~ #H/7Z2%F

Mr.Kong (Note 1) BRSEEE(ffz#1) - 1,320 1 - 1,321
Ms. Choi et - 1,080 1 - 1,081
Independent non-  BUIERITEE
executive directors
Mr. Cheung Kin Wing  5RiZ24 504 206 - - - 206
Mr. Cheung Wai Lun  REfRIEE
Jacky 206 - - - 206
Mr.Zhao Zhipeng ~ HEEHEEE 206 - - - 206
618 2,400 2 - 3,020
Notes: Bz -
1. Mr. Kong is also the chief executive officer of the 1. BAEETNARATITHAE -
Company.
2. Mr. Chan Wai Keung is appointed as an executive 2. BREREERZT-_MNF+A
director of the Company on 18 October 2024. TNREZEARERARRITE
=,
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 EERFIEA BREEEME«
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (Continued)

(a) EAIRES#E2 2
() Directors’ emoluments (Continued) iy ESB#£=)

The remunerations shown above represent remunerations
received from the Company and subsidiaries of the
Company by these directors in their capacity as employees
to the Company and no directors waived any emolument
during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No emoluments were paid by the subsidiaries of the
Company to the directors as an inducement to join the
subsidiaries of the Company, or as compensation for loss
of office during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
Nil).

Directors’ retirement and termination benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Nil).

No payment was made to the directors as compensation
for early termination of the appointment during the year
ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

The Company did not pay consideration to any third parties
for making available directors’ services for the year ended
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2024, there were
no loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of the directors, or controlled body corporates and
connected entities of such directors (2023: Same).

i T A E BN TE 2 S E B AR E(E
BARREENFHBEARERA
Nl Z B AR ER B H B - AR
ETMF+A=+—HIHF
B HMEEEHRECEHHE (=2
=)o

REEZZT-_mMF+=-_A=+—H
WEFE - KRR ZHIB A RN ER
BT EAKSIMALRR A
2 [ BB A BB 9 22 B ok 1 A B B
BHEE(CE_=F : &) -

EERARLELLLER
REE=ZZ-_MF+=-—A=+—H
IEFE - BEEMNESAREEEH
ARARHEHBAREHEENHE
th AR 75 it 4 B 3k B BGR R R A (=
T4 ) o

REE_Z_NWF+_A=+—H
IEFE - MEESREARIETE
MmEL S ERBE(ZEZ=4F :
) o

BEREESEREQE=FE
HERE
BE-Z_NE+-_HA=+—H1F
FE ARABMEREREES
RERATAE=ZAXMHRE(ZEZ
=)o

BRALUEE - HEFIREER
ZEESZHEERAZEA
HNER ZEERRHEMZSH
'aH
REE-_Z_WF+-_A=+—H
IEFE o BEAS Fa I HIH0E
ERZEEE AEERBAT A
MWEXR  EEFRNEMRZLHE
—E-=F: {HR) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 EERFIEA BREEEME«

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Benefits and interest of directors (Continued) (a) BAIRESHERS®)

(v) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in the Note 33, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of the subsidiaries of the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Group had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: Same).

(v) EERXS - THHSHPH

EXHEE

FRISEESSFIIMEE SN REE—F
“OFt—A=+—HLEFEEFRK
AR - AR R S E AT
MEARERRIMNT EAREES
BEA (BB R KEE)
AEBEXBGHEBNEARS - K5
EEX(ZT==%F: HRF) -

(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EBEEFHFMAL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include two directors respectively, whose
emoluments were reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 9(a) during the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
two). The emoluments paid/payable to the remaining
include three individuals (2023: three) are as follows:

AREBREESFMALTORIBERE

“EC-FWMR)EF ERNEE—
ToE+-A=1+— R ILtFEEHNFMH
[RBRAAK Q@2 FNRI DT BN/ FER
BT=R(CT-=F: =%) ALHH
BT

2024 2023

—E-MEF B

MOP’000 MOP’000

FRMT TR

Salaries and other benefits e R E AR 4,520 4,376
Contribution to defined contribution plans & 88t F T &IEY 3% 7 7
4,527 4,383
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS, INCLUDING 9 EERFIEA BREEEME«
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) ABESEHMALE)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: EHIN T AT EE -

Number of individuals

A
2024 2023
—F-MEF —ECo=F
Emolument band &G E]
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/5 7T - =
HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001%8 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7T £2,000,000/5 7T 1 2
3 8
During the year ended 31 December 2024, no emoluments BE-Z-_WF+-_A=+—HIHF
have been paid by the Group to the directors or the three B AEEVERESK L =F&S
highest paid individuals mentioned above as an inducement Bl A £ 2 B2 /E A 51 I A SN A
to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for INER B B B9 SE R SV R B (B S H e (8
loss of office (2023: Nil). ZE=F )
10 (REVERSAL OF)/PROVISION FOR 10 JEEAEEHEEX THRERE
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES OF FINANCIAL ($3[E), &
ASSETS UNDER EXPECTED CREDIT LOSS
MODEL
2024 2023
—E-MEF T =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment AT S B REESERE(FE) :
losses of:
— trade receivables — B S EWGIE 304 18
— contract assets —EHEE (1,389) 5,763
— amount due from a joint venture — Rl —HEEtERE - 877

(1,085) 6,658

11
o
T




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

11 FINANCE COSTS

11 BERA

2024 2023

—E-MEF —Eo=a

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TR T

Interest expense on bank borrowings RITIER 3,693 5,688

Interest expense on bank overdrafts RITES SR 25 269
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBERN M= (HE16)

(Note 16) 248 828

3,966 6,182

12 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

12 FREHLGER) FX

2024 2023
—E-MEF —E- =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR

Current tax RNER7 I8
Macau Complementary Tax SBPIFTS TR 118 677
Hong Kong Profits Tax BAEMFH 893 =
Over-provision in prior years (Note) B FE B E () (5,343) =
Deferred tax (Note 17) EERIE (M aE17) (17) 17
(4,349) 694

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% of the estimated
assessable profits above MOP600,000 for the year ended 31

December 2024 (2023: Same).

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands or the British Virgin Islands (2023: Nil).

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group has no assessable profits arising

in Hong Kong).

BE_Z_NWF+_A=+—HItFE ' B
P9 AT 1548 7o TR 1% 8 38600,00038 FI T M) (i 51 &
RFRAEA12%:1 E(ZT==F : HF) °

REREHELRBEBRESNHRA LA
B AREDEARMREREREBEERAR
HENEMRER(ZT_=F : &)

HE_Z_WF+_A=+—HLEFE &
BRI B TR At FE R TR B H916.5% 51 12
(ZZE==F : HRAEBEE B W EELNE
RERANE - BT ERTIRE B AIEE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

12 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (continued)

Note:  For the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group reversed the
tax provision of approximately MOP4,346,000 made in prior
years. Management have thoroughly revisited the situations
and concluded that there are grounds for the reversal as the
tax authority did not lodge any enquiry letter within the period of
the statutory time framework. As a result, a reversal of income
tax provision was made during the year. The remaining over-
provision of approximately MOP997,000 represents the over-
provision for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023,
based on the tax assessments issued by the tax authority.

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the tax rate of Macau as

12 FrBHiMZ @

Kt BEZT-_NMF+_A=+—HILLFE
AN 5= [B] 341 4F #94,346,00038 P9 7T 5 (2] 7 18
B EEECENTASREHER
7 B 75 75 4 B8 A VK T e PR PR I 4 3% L 1 1]
BHKE - WEEHELER - Bt - B
RE R E TS RE - FIRBEEELN
997, 000BPFITIEBE—T=_—_F R =%
—EF+ AT+ AL FEERHEK

B AR B HE /E L B

AREGRMAEHAEBRNEIE - RRAR
MEELNERSHEONBEZRNT

follows:
2024 2023
—EF T =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Loss before income tax BT ELATE R (22,040) (33,429)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of ~ ZBIRFTS L R 12%a1 E AT IE
12% (2,645) (4,011)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7 EAth 7] 4E & £ & /I FJ /8B A 7] /Y
operating in other jurisdictions PR R E (228) (894)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for 7N AIH1F: 5 sz BB 7S 5222
tax purpose 2,236 2,419
Tax losses not recognised RIERTLIAETE 1,730 3,277
Effect of tax exemptions granted to PR M A B A MR
subsidiaries registered in Macau HNeE (99) 97)
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBERE (5,343) =
Income tax (credit)/expense FTsfi(Ee) X (4,349) 694

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had estimated unused
tax losses of approximately MOP55,731,000 (2023:
MOP45,245,000) available for offset against future profits.
The tax losses are subject to the final assessment by the tax
authorities in the respective jurisdictions where the tax losses
arising from. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the estimated unused tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax
losses may be carried farward indefinitely.

11
o
T

RZZB-_WNFE+=—A=+—8 ' Z&EBE
2R Ep PR 5 8 B3 18 4955,731,00038 FF T ( = =
Z=1F : 45,245,000 97T ) AT A LA £ R 2R
wmA o BIIARIB ARG KERIEEEE
AR RRE RDERE R AIE & AR FTE o R ARIR
S F T B9 N AT SRR - B AR LA R B A
REBEBRERELCREEE - AERAREE
TE AR HA S o



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

13 LOSS PER SHARE 13 BIREE

(a) Basic loss per share (a)

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted

BREFEE

BRENEBRIREAABEE ARME
BERAFAD BT EBEINEFS

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. HETE o
2024 2023
—EME R =F
Loss attributable to the owners of the RARIES AELEE
Company (MOP’000) (F2FT) (17,691) (34,123)
Weighted average number of ordinary PETEERERZN S T
shares for the purpose of basic earnings ~ EBAX I FH & (FH%)
per share (in thousands) 1,100,000 1,092,000
Basic loss per share (MOP cents) FREEAEECRPIL) (1.61) (3.12)
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) BREEEHE

No diluted loss per share for both years were presented
as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue for both
years.

R E S E AL EE RITE

B BARA 2 MEFENSRETE

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

14 SUBSIDIARIES 14 B RAE]
Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 RZE—_WER—_E_=F+_A=+—
December 2024 and 2023 are as follows. Unless otherwise H: ARABEEMBARINGFEAT - R3S
stated, they have share capital consisting solely of ordinary BHRAEN  BENRAEREASEERE
shares that are held directly by the Group, and the proportion BEMNLER - A RS fERA
of ownership interests held equals the voting rights held by the SERERIRERE -
Group.
Place of Registered/
incorporation/ Place of paid up Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation share capital Equity interest held activities
AL,/
WEARAR Rz SR gt it/ R Ffsieig TEED
2024 2023
“BME  -3-c-F
Directly held by the Company
FARERRE
Clear Achieve Global The British Virgin Islands  Hong Kong United States dollars 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (the “BVI") (US$’) 200/US$200
RERKARAR EBGEARES &k 200%m([%))/ 100% 100% HEZR
([EBEBRAES]) 200%TT
Indirectly held by the Company
FRARERE
Abundant Triumph Group ~ The BVI Hong Kong US$200/US$200 100% 100%  Administrative support
Limited for the Group
BREEARAR AERBRES i 200%7T,/ 2005 T 100% 100%  RAEERMETEH
Greatway Construction Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2/HK$2 100% 100%  Civil engineering
Engineering Limited business
BERETRARLA BB B 2k 28T 100% 100% tARIREH
Kin Pang Constructionand  Macau Macau MOP250,000/ 100% 100%  Civil engineering
Engineering Company MOP250,000 business
Limited
RERLETRERAR  2F R 250,000%M97,/ 100% 100% TAIRER
250,000 7T
Kin Wah Machineryand ~ Macau Macau MOP250,000/ 100% 100%  Management of
Equipment Company MOP250,000 machineries
Limited
BERRZBERAR  RF AP 25000027,/ 100% 100% EREH
250,000 37T

X

X

020

0

XX
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

14 SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

14 IB QT »)

Place of Registered/
incorporation/ Place of paid up Principal
Name of subsidiaries establishment operation share capital Equity interest held activities
AL,/
WEARAR Rz SR gt it/ MERA Ffsiig TEED
2024 2023
“BME  -3-c-F
Indirectly held by the Company
NGt 7
Jianhuixin Digital The People of The PRC Renminbi (‘RMB’) - 100% Inactive
Technology (Chongaing)  Republic of China 50,000,000/RMB Nil
Company Limited' (the “PRC’)
REGETRM(ER)  HEARLNE i ARB(ARE]) - 100% EEX%
ERA (Ell) 50,000,000,/
ANRBET

U Jianhuixin Digital Technology (Chongging) Company Limited is 1
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the PRC. On
18 March 2024, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to dispose of the entire registered capital of Jianhuixin
Digital Technology (Chongging) Company Limited to an
independent third party with a consideration of RMB1,000.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

BEGHTFRIN(EE)ERAFA—HRTH
BRI BERE - R=FT_MF=A
T=H AEFFTZEERZ  ARBAR
#1,000 T MBI 5 =77 H & 2 E S BT RIi

(BE)ERABNZHEMESR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

PZOZOZVZOZ0Z

%

%

15 Y% - RBERR

Leasehold Furniture Plants
land and Leasehold and Motor and Office
buildings improvements fixtures vehicles ~ machinery  equipment Total
HELH fig
REEF NEEE  REREE RE  BEREH HORME Rt
MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000 MOP'000
TR FEh TEr TEMT TEMT TRMTL TRMTL
Cost A
At 1 January 2023 A\ZE_=F—f—H 11,024 207 449 5,500 105,512 664 123,36
Additions hE - - 16 - 32,599 110 32725
Disposals e - - - (124) - [40) (164)
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=F+-A=t-H
1 January 2024 R-Z-ME-F-H 11,024 207 465 5,385 138,111 73 165926
Addtions HE = = = 127 51,908 29 52,064
Disposals HE - - - ®) 041) - (1,089
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-ME+-A=1-A 11,024 207 465 5420 189,078 763 206,957
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZitHFE
At 1 January 2023 RZFZ=£-f-H 1,162 207 399 4751 43,402 563 50,504
Provided for the year EREE 367 - 2 352 17,882 67 18,690
Disposals e - - - ) - [40) (112)
At 31 December 2023 and R-E-=Ft-A=1-A
1 January 2024 R-E-ME-A-H 1529 207 41 5,031 61,284 610 69,082
Provided for the year EREE 367 - 18 219 22,764 52 23,480
Disposals HE - - - (76) (572) - 648)
At 31 December 2024 R-Z-ME+-A=1-A 1896 207 439 5,034 83476 662 91,014
Carrying values REE
At 31 December 2024 RZZ-ME+-A=1-A 9,128 - % 186 105,602 101 115,043
At 31 December 2023 R=EZ=£+=A=1-A 949 - 4 354 76,827 124 86,844

-




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

15

16

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

Depreciation expense of approximately MOP22,863,000 (2023:
MOP17,989,000) and MOP617,000 (2023: MOP701,000)
have been charged in direct costs and administrative expenses
respectively.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group has pledged certain
property, plant and equipment with carrying values of
approximately MOP9,128,000 (2023: MOP9,495,000) to secure
its bank borrowings and other banking facilities (including
performance guarantees) (Note 25).

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

This note provides information for leases where the Group is a
lessee.

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

15 Y% - BERRE @

472286300082 L (= & = = F :
17,989,000/2 9 75 ) &% 617,000 T (==
Z =4 : 701,000 ) MITEFRZE 5 B
B S ER A RITHRFE S AR -

R-ZE-_WE+_A=+—H AEBEE
% BRI (E 499,128,000 F L (ZE - =4 :
9,495,00038 97T ) K& T Y% - B M&
R AEREBITEREEMBITERE
(BREELOER) (H:E25) -

16 EAREERBEEASRE

AR REARAREEAREANRES
¥ o

(a) HEMBRARPEINEHE

2024 2023
—E-MEF T =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FRFIT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Office premises, warehouses, staff WA - BEE - BIFES
quarters and vehicles MR 2,541 5,327
Lease liabilities HERE
Current E 2,142 2,701
Non-current FERED 458 2,694
2,600 5,295

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were
approximately MOP174,000 (2023: MOP2,326,000).

T(ZE= =4 : 2,326,00082FF7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 16 FREEEREEEE»
LIABILITIES (continueq)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (a) ZEMBRRRPEZNEE 2
statement of financial position (Continued)
The carrying amounts of lease liabilities approximate their HEABENRAERIEAAEBE B
fair values and are denominated in the following currencies. ARSI EEEETE -
2024 2023
—E-MEF —ECo=F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT TR
MOP EFITT 1,315 3,150
HK$ BIT 1,285 2,145
2,600 5,295
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (b) ZEBEEREMEESRAPIER
statement of profit or loss and other M

comprehensive income

2024 2023
—E-MEF B
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets: f#REEETESLH :
Office premises, warehouses, staff WAME - BE - BEIFES
quarters and vehicles M)A 2,865 2,800
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEB BN AL
(Note 11) (Btst11) 248 325
Gain on lease termination (Note 7) BIEMEWE (HaE7) 2 1
Expenses relating to short-term leases B HAE RN
(Note 8) (B15£8) 17,302 10,007
Total cash outflow for leases HERBR R LEE 20,322 12,946
Depreciation expense of approximately MOP607,000 (2023: #7607,0002F T (=ZF = =4 : 607,000
MOP607,000) and MOP2,258,000 (2023: MOP2,193,000) BP9 ) 2,258,000t (ZE ==
have been charged in direct costs and administrative % : 2,193,000RFI L) MITERZE o

expenses respectively. R B EREAAN RATER B 2 R 0B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueq)

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these

are accounted for

For both years, the Group leases various offices,
warehouses, staff quarters and vehicles for its operations.
Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of one to
three years (2023: one to three years). One of the leases
has an extension option as described below. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable
period, the Group applies the definition of a contract and
determines the period for which the contract is enforceable.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held
by the lessor and the relevant leased assets may not be
used as security for borrowing purposes.

16 FHEBSERHEEE&E»
(c) AEBEWHEEFTEREARSN

RRMEFERN  AEEHESERA
= BB BIBESNAEARESR -
HESHUBEEES —E=F(2F_=
F:—E=F)Fx - HP—EHERAF
TP 0T IR 2 4 - B IRRIDIE
BRI EME LR - BREBEAEIGRRK
Rt o O RE AR HA K AY ik S BT [ B
MEER  ARERAAONTERLE
EA K RBIFITH R -

BREEABENHEHEEETWERER
S - FHE W ZE MR E 225 -
AHREEENSARNERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

Kin Pang Holdings Limited 21 AR A

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE

LIABILITIES (continueq)
(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these

are accounted for (Continued)

Extension option

The Group has an extension option in a lease for an
office entered into during the year ended 31 December
2024 (2023: Same). This is used to maximise operational
flexibility in term of managing the asset used in the Group’s
operations. The extension option held is exercisable only by
the Group and not by the lessor.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date whether
or not it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option. The management assessed and concluded that the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option at the lease commencement date. The potential
exposures to these future lease payments for the extension
option in which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise is summarised below:

Lease liabilities Potential future

16 EFHEEERESR

=17

(c) AEENHEFIREARTR )

IEHARIEE
AEBBREBE_T_WNE+_A
_+ BIEFETVMHASHERNTE

HZEEE(ZZ==F : 8R) - ltAR
FERALEEKEMAEE N Ax2E
FEEBENEEE - T e iREEEq
BRAEE (MIELBAAIITHE -

K%IB’%E 6 A HIRH A R T(E T
EERESLTAE - EEENBLRA
7% AEEYESEREENHEERS B
HIfTE L ER 2 - AREEA SR
EITIEEHR BN %S R R E K
VEERBRALT

Potential future

recognised lease payments Lease liabilities  lease payments
asat notincludedin recognised as at not included in

31 December lease liabilities 31 December lease liabilities
2024  (undiscounted) 2023 (undiscounted)

R AHE RTARE

R-F-ME BEMTRE i ——a BEMTH
+=A=+-H ARBEFR +-A=t-5 RRMERT
ERNEEEE (REEH) mRnHgaR (REER)
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMAT TRMAT TRMT TR

Office ~ Macau WAE—RM 167 1,522 649 1,522

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the
occurrence of either a significant event or a significant
change in circumstances that is within the control of the
lessee. During the year ended 31 December 2024, there is
no such triggering event (2023: Same).

11
o
T

SN - REE S EH A AR A
HBEANBRLEBREMHXBENBLEEAE
EH—?%EQE%EE?E??@EL,HJ% B o B
“EONET_A=T—HLEE -
*E%ﬂﬂfiﬂﬁ’ﬁéiﬁ(_?_fi 1R



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

16 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continueq)

(d) Deferred government grants

16 FHESERHEEAE#

(d) AEIEBXATH#ED

2024 2023

—E-MEF T =4

MOP’000 MOP’000

FEMT TR

At beginning of the year REA] 404 569
Amortisation B (165) (165)
At end of the year RER 239 404
Less: Non-current portion R IEREDE (74) (239)
Current portion mENED D 165 165

The deferred government grants represented grants
received for the purchase of certain item of right-of-use
assets, provided by the HKSAR Government under the
Construction Innovation and Technology Fund (“CITF”). As
a condition of receiving the fund, the Group has undertaken
not to dispose of the related right-of-use assets within the
next three years from the date of purchase. There are no
other unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to
these grants.

AEFE BRI 0 B HE AN SR B BB 15 Bl 1T B8 B
fT B2 ERRIH IR RES ([REXEH
EREERDER  ARBEETERAESR
EEENHEE - FAEXZESWES - K
SEFAFEHNBEEREEERECRE=F
APNSEHEETRE - WEMBARNTEEMD
AEITHRREESH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

17 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 17 BEBIEEE
Deferred tax is calculated in full on temporary differences under FEEFIBEREBERAERE12%2BAEY
the liability method using a tax rate of 12%. BRMEZERE o
Details of the movements in deferred tax liabilities during the FNEERIBAGEBFIBENOT ¢

year are as follows:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation
DN IEITE
MOP’000
TR
At 1 January 2023 RZTZ=F—H—H -
Charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss ~ F4R4 1828 & E b 2 HE WS R ABR
and other comprehensive income 17
At 31 December 2023 and 1 January 2024 RZEZ=F+=-A=+—HK
—ZEmHE—H—H 17
Credited to consolidated statement of profit or loss 5T A4r& 18 K H b 2 E SR
and other comprehensive income (17)

At 31 December 2024 R-FE-—mE+—-—F=+—H _

X

XX

020

0

X

%



18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

18 EZEIKRAE

2024 2023
Tl —Eo=4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFMT TSR IT

Trade receivables =) &0
— contracts with customers —BFEAH 71,371 69,906
Less: Loss allowance W RS (678) (761)
70,693 69,145

AEBBERTEPOE0REES - RIFHE
SAMNE S RUGRRE DT -

The Group generally allows credit period of 0 to 60 days to its
customers. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based

on invoice date is as follows:

2024 2023

—EmE —E-=F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TS8P T

Within 30 days 30H AR 60,085 44 441
31 to 60 days 31260H 2,609 13,671
61 to 90 days 61290H 4,733 9,499
Over 90 days EBiE90H 3,944 2,295
71,371 69,906

The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. AN BN L 2 AT A TR o

AEERRAE SV HREERFEIRBT X
AAERMEEER - LA B SRR

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all
trade receivables. Information about the impairment of trade RFEREREERE - BHEE S EKIE
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be RERAEEEFERBRKONELR - F2H
found in Note 3.1(b). B5ES.1(b) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18 BEZBINIE @)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AEEE S RWFIERNREEN N5 88t
denominated in the following currencies. B -

2024 2023

—EB-ME —E-=4F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TR

MOP JBRFITT 63,180 68,038

HK$ BIT 7,513 1,107

70,693 69,145

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 19 FAMRIA - BEREMEBURKIA

RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FRMT
Deposits (Note (a)) & (ffit@) 1,551 1,805
Prepayments to suppliers and TES IR kD 2 2 R E
subcontractors 7,290 6,533
Prepayment for property, plant and Y% - B K 2 TEN5RIE
equipment 7,984 2,664
Other prepayments HE MBI 3RIE 1,664 1,384
Other receivables (Note (b)) HAbEWGRIE (Hat ) 13,984 10,158
Amount due from a joint venture B —MEE &b ERIE 1,633 1,633
34,106 24177
Analysed for reporting purposes as: B B MFTED AT
Current assets MBNEE 25,795 21,138
Non-current assets EMENEE 8,311 3,039
34,106 24177
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

19 FAMRIA - EERHEMEBWRRKIA

19 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s prepayments, deposits and
other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

(&)

AEEBANFIEA - Re REMREIA R
EETIA TSI EEHE

2024 2023

—EMEF —E-=F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TRMT TIRFIT

MOP SBPFITT 33,325 23,448

HKS BT 781 729

34,106 24177

Notes: et -

@ RZZE_mNF+=—A=+—H0' ' RAEEN

(@ As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s deposits
balance is refundable rental deposit of approximately MOP85,000
(2023: MOP85,000) paid to Mr. Kong and Ms. Choai in relation to
the lease of premises owned by Mr. Kong and Ms. Choi as office
of the Group.

(o) As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s other
receivables is the amount of approximately MOP888,000 (2023:
MOP997,000) withheld by the customer for surety bonds.

BeEsnT AN TFEAERBLIHIER
EHREZRS 4850008 T(ZTE=_=4F :
85,0008 ) B I ARG LIEA
ZEEAAEBRAEHR -

R-Z-_mWE+—_A=+—8 XEEHM
BRFEBEEERSIBELAREMENNLD
888,000 FI 7L (==& = =4 : 997,0002 FT
JT) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 20 EHEE (AF)
(a) Contract assets (a) AHIEE
The Group has recognised the following assets related to AEBERRTIEAFPRHEREER
contracts in relation to provision for building and ancillary B ERBHEBHNENEE :

services with customers:

2024 2023
—E-F —E-=4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FRFMT
Unbilled revenue of construction BESHZ RARNKE
contracts 117,703 170,495
Less: Impairment loss allowance W OREE RS (11,740) (12,561)
105,963 157,934
Retention receivables of construction BESHZEVIRES
contracts 57,478 53,996
Less: Impairment loss allowance W (B EIE R (4,064) (4,766)
53,414 49,230
159,377 207,164
The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to BHNEETRZRASEZENRESR
consideration that is conditional upon satisfaction by the B AEPREASED TRHEET
customers on the construction work completed by the BRGNS  BEZIREGEEFRE &
Group and the work is pending for the certification by the ZIRDHTERRFARSE - E6H
customers or the work performed but not yet billed. The MK REIRER  SRNEERSBERS
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when & 5 WA -

the rights become unconditional.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) coninvesy 20 BHIEE (AE) =)
(a) AHEE®)

(@) Contract assets (Continued)

The Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period with reference to surveys of work
performed to date, customer’s correspondences or other
documents. The Group requires certain customers to
provide upfront deposits up to 5% to 10% of total contract
sum as part of its credit risk management policies.

The Group also typically agrees to a retention period
ranging from one to five years for 5% to 10% of the
contract value. This amount is included in contract
assets until the end of the retention period as the
Group’s entitlement to this final payment is conditional on
completion of defect liability period.

The Group classifies these contract assets as current
because the Group expects to realise them in its normal
operating cycle.

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract
assets as the end of each reporting period is as follows:

AEENZESNEREZEBRERD
BRENZONREREK  2FL25/1E
PRETTIRAZ  FEFERIEMBX
o AEEBERETEFPRHEANES
RSB E10%MATHIIRS - (ERHEEM
SERBORM —&F7D e

REBITER LRIBME%E10%HI A K
BERE—Z2AFRFREH FAKEE
15 Ut SR AR SRR RO RE NI ST R R B B (£ 1
BITAMEE  MUSREFAGHNEE -
BEEREMERRBL

ARBBHFENEAENERARD R
A AREEBREN L EREEBRNE
HET -

REBEPR - AOEBEENFEHRKO K
BEBENT

2024 2023

—EmE —E-=&

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR T FRF97T

Within one year —FA 110,571 184,776
More than one year —F 1% 48,806 22,388
159,377 207,164

Details of the impairment assessment are set out in
Note 3.1(b).

BERHEFIREHIEES.1(D) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

20 CONTRACT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) coninvesy 20 BHIEE (AE) =)

(b) Contract liabilities (b) EHEE
2024 2023
—F-MEF o=
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Contract liabilities ERAaE 1,357 =
The following table shows the amount of revenue TRINER A S BAEERE WS S5
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried- RELESHAERR
forward contract liabilities:
2024 2023
—F-MEF o=
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Building and ancillary services BEREERS - 12,638
No revenue were recognised during the year ended REEZE_T_NEFER_FT_=F+_"H
31 December 2024 and 2023 relates to performance =t —BIEFETERERER E—EF
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year. EETHENEEEBHE -
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of HEBEREHEBESHEBREEN—K
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: XAHERAT -
Construction contracts BESH
When the Group receives advanced payments before & 7N B 1E e LR 46 B =k A b L AR UL
or during the construction activities, this will give rise to BB W EASRFBREESNE
contract liabilities at the start of a contract, until the revenue & - ERABE R B BTERN
recognised on the relevant contract exceeds the amount of HIERERIE °

the advanced payment.

X

X

020

0

X

X

3



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

21 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 21 EERRTEFRERERAELSE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EY

(a) Pledged bank deposits (a) BIEBRITER
As at 31 December 2024, fixed deposits of approximately RZZEZWNE+ZHA=1+—8 ' ZFF|
MOP27,245,000 (2023: MOP49,883,000) interest-bearing R189% (T =4 : 1.06%) 5T B &
at 1.89% (2023: 1.06%) per annum were pledged to TE BT IR 427,245, 0008 o ( —ZE ==
secure the banking facility (including bank borrowings and % : 49,883,000} T) 2R - FLAE
performance guarantees) granted to the Group. RASEERNBRITRE (BERITER

RBRIFER) °

The Group’s pledged bank deposits are denominated in REB B EARITHERDILRU TR
the following currencies: #HE :
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=fF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FIRFT
MOP RFTT 16,945 22,073
HK$ BT 10,300 27,810
27,245 49,883
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) RERREEZFEY
2024 2023
—F-MEF —Eo=F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT BT

e

Cash at banks and maximum exposure RT3 4 & m s EERE

on credit risk 28,685 18,936
Cash on hand FERE 16 16
28,701 18,952
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M BHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

21 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 21 BIRMRTERHEEERRLE

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) BY =)
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (Continued) (b) BERBELZEY»)
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are denominated REBRSRRESEEBYM IR TERE
in the following currencies: aTE
2024 2023
—ECE —E=F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
MOP JEFITT 21,593 11,241
HK$ T 7,087 7,687
USD ETT 18 16
RMB ARE 3 8
28,701 18,952
22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 fgA&

Number of

ordinary

shares of
HK$0.01 Share Share
each capital capital

SREE

0.0187TH
SRR E i A
HK$'000 MOP’000
FET TRFIT

Authorised ETE

At 1 January 2023, 31 December
2023 and 2024

R-ZT_=%—HF—H"
—EC=FR-FTCN

F+—-A=+—H 10,000,000,000 103,000
Issued and fully paid ERITREZE
At 1 January 2023 RN-ZE-_=F—H—H 1,000,000,000 10,300
Issue of shares (Note) BT (H72E) 100,000,000 1,030
At 31 December 2023 and 2024 HRZ-Z=Z=F K

—TNE+HA

=+—H 1,100,000,000 11,000 11,330

Note: On 1 February 2023, an aggregate of 100,000,000 shares of Mt - R=FZ_=%F"HA—H ' £100,000,000

BEREEONETHRMNUEESTRX
RERET REMSKRAFELOR
10,835,000 78 JT (48 & 7% 11,330,000 2 F1
) HERF—REEES -

each HK$0.01 were allotted and issued by way of placing.
The net proeceeds<rom the placing amounted to approximately
HK$10,835,000 (equivalent to MOP11,330,000), which were
intended to be utilised for general working capital purposes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

23 fi#fE

23 RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to the provisions, if any,
of its memorandum and articles of association in paying
distributions or dividends to equity shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be able
to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Article 377 of the Commercial Code
of Macau Special Administrative Region, the subsidiary
registered in Macau is required to transfer part of its profits
of each accounting period of not less than 25% to legal
reserve, until the amount reaches half of its share capital.

Other reserve

Other reserve mainly represented the capital injection from
the pre-IPO investor during the Group reorganisation in
2017.

(a)

(b)

(c)

I 3iaE
BIaERIFSHEATERE &
X A AT A ) A R AR R 32 AN 90 R Bk A8
By - 1 ELAR A EAE KA Ko 40 I o {5 (2m
BIRR T AR ER

BRIFAR RN EREZ N D IKEAE
EHRAXNRAEEBBIET BN
&% - BRITEEARMEERFAERS
BRI DRSS

EEE
RBCORFI R RI1T R A # ) £ 377
ik PORFIEMOMBARARE S5
EE] 75 S D 170 LN B #9265 % B VB VA TE fef
B BERAERESREREBRAMNF
gLk e

Hitifi# e

HHEEEIRER _T—tFAKEE
HHMKEERAFEENREENT
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

4 5 REMEMNKRIA

2024 2023

—E-MEF —E-=4F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR FRFT

Trade payables (Note (a)) B SN FIE (A7) 106,382 116,450
Retention payables (Note (b)) ERRE 2 (K a2 b)) 30,989 30,320
Salaries payable EFHe 14,110 18,801
Accruals and other payables (Note (c)  FERTIE B R E AL FRIB(H1a2 () 12,736 16,462
164,217 182,033

Notes:

(@)  The credit period granted to the Group by suppliers/subcontractors
normally ranges from O to 60 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables based on invoice date is

Mzt -

@ HER DERRTAEENEENAESR

F0Z60H -

7

RIBER B HHE SENFIBRESTOT

as follows:
2024 2023
—EE —Eo=4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRMT TFERPIT
0 to 30 days 0%30H 57,251 89,447
31 to 60 days 31260H 17,570 9,341
61 to 90 days 61290H 7,535 3,607
Over 90 days HBiE90H 24,026 14,055
106,382 116,450

(o)  Retention payables to subcontractors are interest-free and payable b)) ENSEENRBSAEZEBEERSAEHN

RPEE IR A - SEM A RNRE 21
REREEEHER R —FREE -

at the end of the defect liability period of individual contracts. All
retention payables are expected to be settled within one year after
the expiry date of the defect liability period.




For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

24 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

ESZRHMEARE =

Hst - (&)

(Continued) () (&)
The Group classifies these retention payables as current because rEERZERNRBeIBEARD  BA
the Group expects to settle them in its normal operating cycle. AEEFEARREETE S ERAAKELS -
The retention payables by due dates are as follows: ERMREeRaA RIS 0T :
2024 2023
—E-mE —E =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
FRMT TR
Retention payable of construction contract BESNZEMNRE
Repayable within one year HAR—FNEE 5,813 3,077
Repayable more than one year HAR—FIREE 25,176 27,243
30,989 30,320
As at 31 December 2024, included in the Group’s accruals and © RZZEZHE+-A=+—81 rEEHNE

other payables are the amount of approximately MOP3,768,000
(2023: MOP5,523,000) received from the nominated subcontractor
as the surety bond, and the amount of approximately MOP898,000
(2023: MOP997,000) withheld from the payment to subcontractors
as the performance bonds of the building and ancillary services
provided to the Group.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate
their fair values are denominated in the following currencies.

FTEAREMENFIEBREERREEZMIEA
& TE 5 B r WX Y 493,768,000 FI 7T (=&
— =4 : 5,523,0008F7T) * A RAIERRA
SERENZENEERBHNENRE S
B [ 878 X [ H) 5 IB 1 B #) £898,0008
FITT(ZZE =4 : 997,000RF77T) °

{5 R EMEN TR REERE QA EE
HE - XA TIEREEE -

2024 2023

—EomE —EC=4F

MOP’000 MOP’000

TR TR

MOP YRPS T 140,657 171,398
HK$ BT 23,560 10,617
RMB AR - 18
164,217 182,033
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25

BANK BORROWINGS 25 SRITER
2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=a
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Secured: BHEA
— Bank overdrafts —iRITE Y - 2,603
— Bank borrowings —ERITER 87,871 65,527
Unsecured: A
— Bank borrowings —IRITIERK 18,500 5,082
106,371 73,212
The bank borrowings are at floating rates which carry interests at RITER D IEBPI TR EERFE SRR

MOP best lending rate, MIBOR and HIBOR plus/minus a spread.
The effective interest rate on the Group’s bank borrowings was
4.06% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2024 (2023:
4.38% per annum).

As at 31 December 2024, there were breaches of financial
covenants in the bank borrowings with a total amount of
approximately MOP3,846,000 (2023: MOP13,637,000),
including secured bank overdrafts of approximately MOP
Nil (2023: MOP2,603,000), secured bank borrowings of
approximately MOP3,846,000 (2023: MOP10,952,000)
and unsecured bank borrowings of approximately MOP Nil
(2023: MOP82,000). These matters triggered cross-defaults
and resulted in a breach of certain bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to approximately MOP44,098,000 (2023:
MOP30,418,000) as at 31 December 2024. All the above-
mentioned bank borrowings and secured bank overdrafts are
guaranteed by the Company and secured by pledged bank
deposits and property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately MOP18,366,000 (2023: MOP40,109,000) and
MOP9,128,000 (2023: MOP9,495,000), respectively.

11
o
T

ﬁlﬂ%%}%%&@%fﬁﬂﬂ%ﬁgbu/ﬁ%%
HFEBFRFE - BHE_T_WE+_A
=+t—HRIEE  AEERTEFNERSE
FEEL06%(ZZT==F : FFH|%4.38%) °

RNZZTE_WE+_A=+—H BT
KA 43,846,000 BFF T (- T — =4 :
13,637,000/ 70 ) FE B 75 B E LM IE
Mo Hh B EGEFRTEOTIRMT
(ZZE =4 :2603,0002F7T) + A K
ER1T1E 7 4)3,846,0000BFI L( =T - =4 :
10,952,0007% 9 7T ) LA Kz 4 4 37 58 17 12 FX 4
TRMIL(ZZT =4 : 82,0008 L) °
EREEBERINEN  TEHAEER
—E-NF+—A=+—HHHE TRITE
TE ) #)44,098,0000B P9 o ( ZE = =F :
30,418,000/8F97L) - FiE _EiltiRITIEK R B
IR ITE X AR D BIEIER - WA S K
fiﬁﬁm&%% B K RSB EIRE &5

2 B4 418,366,0008FF T ( —F — =4 :
40,109,0002F3 7t ) 59,128,000;8F L (==
— =% : 9,495,00008F97T) °



25 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

In March 2025, the bank issued a letter to waive the breached
financial covenants in the bank borrowings amounted to
approximately MOP3,846,000 for the year ended 31 December
2024,

As at 31 December 2024, the remaining bank borrowings of
approximately MOP58,427,000 (2023: MOP29,157,000) contain
a repayment on demand clause. Out of such amounts, the bank
borrowings of approximately MOP Nil (2023: MOP5,000,000)
that have original contractual repayment due one to two years
were classified as current liabilities (2023: Same).

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

25 RITER =

RZE-_RF=F  BTEHRGREEE

—E_NE+=—A=+—HItFEMRITE
RN TE R wa iE 405 F8 493,846,000/ 97T ©

RZE-_WME+=-_A=+—8 ' B R1T
& 3K #) 58,427,000 T (=T = = F :
29157000/ PITC)BI B IR EREBIER - £
o RENEFHAE—FEMENRITER
H= &F‘%rc(—jffi 5,000,00032F5 7T )

wotaARSEE(ZE

=F AR -

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair RITEBEANEREEREEQAABERES - WA
values and are denominated in the following currencies. THEEFERTHE o
2024 2023
—E-MEF B
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FRFIIT
MOP RPTT 106,371 73,212

The Group’s bank borrowings and other banking facilities
(including performance guarantees) had been secured by the
pledge of the Group’s assets and the carrying amounts of the
respective assets are as follows:

AREBEMRITERREMBTRE(BREED
ER)DNERAEREREE(FREREBREE

FEREEMT ¢

2024 2023
—ECME T =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FEPIT
Property, plant and equipment Y - R K& 9,128 9,495
Pledged bank deposits EHEPRITIFR 27,245 49,883
36,373 59,378
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

26 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 26 R¥ERIZEIoN R T A

2024 2023
—E-MEF —Eo=
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR TR
Financial assets EHMEE
At amortised cost REESHP AN GT 2
— Trade receivables — B S EWGRIE 70,693 69,145
— Deposits and other receivables —1&& REMEWGRIE 17,168 13,596
— Amounts due from joint operations — U A & TSR 5,300 6,262
— Pledged bank deposits — B ERIRI TR 27,245 49,883
— Cash and cash equivalents —RE MIREEEBY 28,701 18,952
149,107 157,838
Financial liabilities SRAaE
At amortised cost BN AT E
- Trade and other payables — B 5 MEMERFIA 161,801 154,673
— Amounts due to joint operations — B A EEFRIA 6,409 22,922
— Bank borrowings —IRITIEFR 106,371 73,212
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 2,600 5,295
277,181 256,102

X

X

020

0Z0

T

%

3



27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted, pursuant to a resolution passed on 24 November
2017, for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any full-
time or part-time employee of the Company or any member
of the Group, including any executive directors, non-executive
directors and independent nonexecutive directors, and any
suppliers, customers, agents, advisors and consultants of the
Group. Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the Scheme
will remain in force for 10 years.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the aggregate number of shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme, and other schemes offered by the Company, as
from the date of adoption of the Scheme, shall not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue on the listing date (i.e. 1,000,000,000
shares). The overall limit on the number of shares which shall
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme, and other schemes
offered by the Company, shall not exceed 30% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The total
number of shares issued, and to be issued, upon exercise of
options granted in accordance with the Scheme to each eligible
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The option shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant for a period of
28 days (exclusive of the date on which the letter containing the
offer is delivered to the participant). HK$1 shall be payable by
the participants on acceptance of the offer of the Option.

The exercisable period of the share options granted is
determinable by the board of directors, but no later than 10
years from the date of grant of the options. The subscription
price for the shares in respect of which options are granted is
determinable by board of directors, but shall be no less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the options, which must be a trading day; (i) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options; and
(iii) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

No share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the scheme during the year ended 31 December 2024
and 2023 nor outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

27 BBRRERTE

AR E R R 8 ([ %581 ) TIRIER —
Z—tF+-A-THRBENRBERR
W EZENRREEER TARRRAEH
EAXREAR 2 2R FRRBES B
AEBETAATES  FRTESFRBIUF
HITESUAREMAHER  BF (K2 &
RNFEAAR - BRIERBRIEHIENW - &&T
BB I0F -

BIEZTE - BFRMZAEE BREAREZ
STEI R AR A RENEMET S TR EAAT
EREREETEmMAIERITHRG BEE
HABHBEBETAHEEZETRMHAI10% (D
1,000,000,000 & J& 17 ) o HR IR % T 8 A
A ERENEME SIS R B H R ITERET
B M ARAT B AR AT 1T 1 A% BT RO R 19 X
B4 LR NSHAARD R NREE ZETRAR
30% ° E{EM121E B HAR - RIEZEE T
ZEER2EATHERERTER B
TR TEITHRDEETEBBARFE
BITIRANE1% - BRI A BB EA LT
ENREIR A28 B (T BIEEE BRI Hx
EFEZ2EATEH)  REABREZNE
BEBANTEZMIETT °

ERBRENTERHNIHESSET @ &
TREXRERLBERZEAHEI0F -
BREREMP cBRONREEARESSE
i ETMEER TSR ENRSE  ()RED
BREAB(WARRS B )BT HRE
RATEHARABROHWTE : (REERLE
Pt BRI AER S B X e B MERM
FAARRIBAD FEWHE ¢ R (i) AR B
DEE

REBEEZZT_NFER_ZT-_=9F+=-A4
=t+—HLFE  BEZGIETEERDS
1716~ sESHsR AR A BERRAE - Sk FR S HIR
A4 1 AR T AR AR AR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

27 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 27 BigtERtEl =)
As at the date of this report, the total number of outstanding RARER A - ZErEIE A TR E 2 K%
share options available for grant under the Scheme was o B P 48 27 5100,000,000/8 (=B = =4 -
100,000,000 (2023: 100,000,000) shares, which represented 100,000,000/% ) * fh A2 A8 5% B B 3 47A%
approximately 9.1% (2023: approximately 9.1%) of the shares of MEKIA%(ZEZ=1F : £99.1%) °
the Company in issue as at that date.
28 JOINT OPERATIONS 28 SEXK
The following sets out the joint operations indirectly undertaken TREIARFRZE_WFR =T ==
by the Company as at 31 December 2024 and 2023: T A=+ AEBENENEEER
Country of business/ % of ownership interest
Name Principal activities incorporation (Indirect)
BEREESASL
= FEXH £5 R AL FRIEER (R#)
2024 2023
—TCWmE —To=#
Consoércio Companhia de Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 50% 50%
Kin Pang — MC Dynasty services
B —AEaEgE R EEEIRT P IPEE 50% 50%
Consorcio Companhia de Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 20% 20%
J&T - Kin Pang — MC Dynasty services
izl —RESERE REGEEMRTG BFT - 3PEE 20% 20%
Consorcio Companhia de Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 60% 60%
Kin Pang — Cheung YB services
B —REAELE REGEEIRT BFT - 3PEE 60% 60%
Consorcio Companhia de Provision of construction Macau, unincorporated 60% 60%
Kin Pang - J&T services

B - Eafrge R RERS BT - IBAE 60% 60%

X

X
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0
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

29 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD

29 RAESENEARZIRE

2024 2023
—EME B4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FIRFITT
At the beginning of the year REF - -
Investment & - 25
Shares of losses NIGEE - (25)
At the end of the year REFLR - -
(a) Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: (@) ZEEENEZHBHT :
Country of % of voting rights held
business/ % of ownership interest by the Group Nature of
Name Principal activities  incorporation (Indirect) (Indirect) relationship
5% /R AL WEREREM AEEREREEE ST
1 FEER FrEEx () (Ri) RELE
2024 2023 2024 2023
“BME -T-=£  ZBCME -3-c-f
Lesso Home Household  Trading of Macau 40% 40% 40% 40%  Joint venture
Construction construction
Materials, Limited materials
(“Lesso”) (Note)
BHRERMARAR EERENE R 40% 40% 40% 40% RELE
([Ew 1) (A2
Note: On 13 November 2023, the Group entered into a share Kz RZZE-_=%F+—A+=0 ' A5EEH

transfer agreement with Pan-Deco Investment, Limited, in
which, the Group acquired additional 20% equity interest
of Lesso for a consideration of MOP25,000. As a result,
the Group’s interests in Lesso has increased from 20% to
40%. According to the articles of association, all relevant
decisions were made unanimously. Under HKFRS 11,
Lesso was classified as a joint venture and has been

accounted for in the consolidated financial statements

using equity method.

Pan-Deco Investment, Limited 5] 37 i% 17 &
FEipiE 0 HpANEB AR E25,0002F T
FEOMN RS B 1 20% A HE » AL - AEER
CE 1M B 2R R 20% 35 = 40% © IRIFAR BT
2B - FTEMEAESER —BURB -
BEEBVERELEAFE115E - BaHlE

RAEEEE  WEHRAE

TS HAR AN

Szoas
=R
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30 CAPITAL COMMITMENT 30 BAEIE
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=4F
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT TR
Capital expenditure in respect of the BRAWKEDZE  BELRRELEFTDN
acquisition of property, plant and BiEARRERE BB HRERNEE 2
equipment contracted for but not BARTH
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 6,384 5,417

31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2024, performance guarantees of
approximately MOP92,084,000 (2023: MOP298,775,000)
were given by a bank in favour of the Group’s customers
as security for the due performance and observance of the
Group’s obligations under the contracts entered into between
the Group and their customers. The Group has indemnified the
bank for any claims from customers under the guarantees due
to the failure of the Group’s performance. The performance

31 AREE

MN-ZE-WE+—-A=+—8 - RITULE
EEF A% AEL#192,084,00038F9 7T ( —
T — = 4F :298,775,0003RFF 7T ) HY B AHEIR
ERAEBZ BRI RETASEHERF
SIVHANETNZETINER - AEERE
F RSB R B L MR EEREE B E (A
RFERTT - BOERBRAEHNIREERE
fRRR - BAERDBERITHRERD 718
HRMFEL RZE_HFEFR T =F

guarantees will be released upon completion of the contract
works. The performance guarantees were granted under the
banking facilities with details as set out in Note 25. At as 31
December 2024 and 2023, the management of the Group does
not consider it is probable that a claim will be made against the
Group.

T-A=Z+—H8 AKEEEERR X E&E
AR AAR BRI A AR o

X
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32 ZERERERMET
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Cash generated from operations (a) EEMBRE
2024 2023
—EBME =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TR T8PPI
Loss before income tax BRETIS BRI E 18 (22,040) (33,429)
Adjustments for: KR
Depreciation of property, plant, and M - BB REETTE
equipment 23,480 18,690
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 2,865 2,800
Finance costs B 3,966 6,182
Interest income A B WA (563) (838)
Gain on lease termination EIEFEER W (2 (1)
Amortisation of deferred government A AE BT 478 B 8
grants (165) (165)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand  HEWZE - WENEHREIR
equipment 66 44
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary SR B A Fl R e (13) =
Loss on prepayment of property, plant  #1% - E M RETERR
and equipment E518 - 4,470
Share of result of investments AMEERAERENEARZ
accounted for using the equity B HEE
method - 25
Provision for impairment losses of trade & 5 FEWZ B R B E1E 2
receivables B 304 18
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment AHBEEREBEZ (BE),/
losses of contract assets BE (1,389) 5,763
Provision for impairment losses of ER—FE & S FERIE L
amount due from a joint venture BEE RS - 877

Operating profit before working capital 438 & & Z BRI EFE

changes 6,509 4,436
Changes in working capital: EEELEE -
Trade receivables Z 5 W GRIA (1,852) (36,959)
Prepayments, deposits and other TERFIE « e RHAREUY
receivables AR (4,609) (1,870)
Contract assets =¥ ’7%% 49,176 102,798
Amounts due from joint operations FEUT A & TR 962 (4,239)
Trade and other payables %%&ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ/ B (17,798) 873
Contract liabilities AHEE 1,357 (12,638)
Amounts due to joint operations JEfS & & ETIE (16,513) 22,922
Cash generated from operations LEMEHES 17,232 75,323
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32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32 REHERERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEVE  BERREMESNE
equipment
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from RirEHeRER  BEWE  BEK
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: REMSHRIERE
2024 2023
—E-F —E-=fF
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FRFT
Net book amount REDFE 385 52
Loss on disposals of property, plant and HE&EWE - M= KR EER
equipment (66) (44)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H&E#% - K= K& EHT15 7308
and equipment 319 8

DX

|



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

32 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32 HFAERERERME

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continueq)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (c) MEIHEENEEZHIR

financing activities

This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising

AEEI S 2N FEREEHELE A

from financing activities for each of the years presented. BEEE) o
Bank Lease Interest
borrowings liabilities payable Total
RITERK HEAE AR st
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TFRFITT TRFIT FRFITT FIRFITT
(Note 25) (Note 16)
(Kt:£25) (K1zt16)
At 1 January 2023 R -=4%F
—H—H 127,743 5,730 - 133,473
Financing cash flows RMEBHSRE (54,531) (2,614) 6,182) (63,327)
New leases entered SN HFEE = 2,326 = 2,326
Lease termination LIRS = (147) = (147)
Interest expenses MERAXZ - - 6,182 6,182
At 31 December 2028 HRZZE==%F
and 1 January 2024 +—A=+—HBK
—E U4
—H—H 73,212 5,295 - 78,507
Financing cash flows MERERE 33,159 (2,772) (3,966) 26,421
New leases entered I HFEE - 174 - 174
Lease termination HBIEHE - 97) - (97)
Interest expenses BRI - - 3,966 3,966
At 31 December 2024  AZZ U4
+=RA=+—H 106,371 2,600 - 108,971
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Names and relationships with related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party, to
joint control over the party or exercise significant influence
over the other party in making financial and operation
decisions, or vice versa.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
following parties/companies were related parties with
transactions or balances with the Group during the years
ended 31 December 2024 and 2023:

Name of related parties

33 Eit A RS
(a) FBEES RIEREEHRIR

BAEE T - RZIRA e

ol

Relationship with the Group

BAE S 218 RSB IR
Mr. Kong Director and shareholder of the Company
BESE4 RABIEERRE
Ms. Choi Director of the Company and the spouse of Mr. Kong
R+ RNATEEREELE 2B
Constructor Civil Kong Kin | Entity controlled by Mr. Kong
Bl R EER BRESIEHCER
Consorcio Companhia de Kin Pang A joint operation
— MC Dynasty

NS —AESERE
Consodrcio Companhia de J&T
— Kin Pang — MC Dynasty

PiE-EE-REaERE

Consorcio Companhia de Kin Pang — Cheung YB

2 —RIESIERE

Consorcio Companhia de Kin Pang — J&T
2 —PiEalegs

Lesso

A

11
o
T

—IEEEER
A joint operation

—IREEEK
A joint operation
—IBEERK
A joint operation
—IHEEER
A joint venture
—IRAEEEK

W— BN ERAREEEN ST
HREE S — T RE S —HERIER B
ML ARARREEEBAY

RAREERAE  NIE&H/ReElAR
HE-_Z_NFR_ZFT =
=+ BUHFERAEEFR SR ESR



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 BAMIE RS @)

(b) Transactions and balance with related parties (b) EREAS RZREERR
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated Briza ISR K EB o FT B & 51 -
financial statements, the Group has following significant REEEBAWM A HEBUNTEAR S R4
transactions and balances with related parties: R
Transactions with related parties EARAM S 23X B
2024 2023
—E-MEF B4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TiRMT FRPT

Construction services from Constructor & (B 2242 53 i 58 pY 7 4L ARG

Civil Kong Kin | 4,972 3,067
Lease payment of office to Mr. Kong and [REESEE R GLZ LI MR AE

Ms. Choi (Note (i) ME L)) 507 507
Service income from Lesso 2K B %E i B RIS A 213 —
Materials purchased from Lesso B <E i R M 1,800 2,762

Note: Kiat -

()  Asat 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of the right- () RZZTZWEE+=—A=+—H HHEE
of-use asset and lease liability relating to the lease property VBB EREEERAESENE
are approximately MOP159,000 (2023: MOP637,000) and H{ED B /&#159,0008F t( — T ==
MOP167,000 (2023: MOP649,000), respectively. F : 637,0008 37T ) & 167,000/8F3 7T

— T~ =4 : 649,000}2F7T) °

The above-mentioned transactions were conducted in RS EER X BERHET - I
the normal course of business and were charged at terms LIRS H R E B AETR U E -

mutually agreed by the relevant parties.
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216 Kin Pang Holdings Limited Z 5% AR A 7]

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 BAMIE RS @)

(b) Transactions and balance with related parties (b) EAEtARZREEERE)
(Continued)
Balance with related parties EREAHE Ru4E e
2024 2023
—EBCME T =4
MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FIRFT
Trade payables (Note () B SN SRIB (A7)
— Construction services from — 2R B EEfd SR R ARy 2 A
Constructor Civil Kong Kin | a#H (760) (177)
— Lesso — <A (271) (505)
(1,031) 682)
Amounts due from joint operations FEU A & TSR IB (A7)
(Note (i)
— Consércio Companhia de Kin Pang - — 25— S AL -
MC Dynasty, non-trade related EE 5 1H - 6,262
— Consércio Companhia de Kin Pang - — 22— REAELS -
Cheung YB, non-trade related & 51 1 -
— Consércio Companhia de Kin Pang -  — 25 — R EAELS -
J&T, non-trade related FEE 5 1H 5,299 =
5,300 6,262
Amounts due to joint operations (Note (i) FE& & 7S RIE (H1 £ (i)
— Consércio Companhia de J&T — —HE—EIE-PREAE
Kin Pang — MC Dynasty, non-trade w0 3EE S8R
related - (22,922)
— Consércio Companhia de Kin Pang - — 22— S A ELE -
MC Dynasty, non-trade related JEE 5107 (6,409) =
(6,409) (22,922)
Notes: HiaE -

()  As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the trade payables to
the related parties were unsecured, interest-free and with
credit terms of 30 days.

(i)  As at 31 December 2024 and 2023, the carrying amounts of
amounts due from joint operations and amounts due to joint
operations were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand:

X

X

ZOZOZ0

X
%

) MR-ZE-_mNER_ZFT_=%+_-A4
=+—H8 - ENREL B AEKE
% B MEEHA30H -

iy R=ZFTE-—HmER=_ZF=-_=%+=A
=t+—HB ' BREEEBKRERENLSE
BEBFBENEROEAERR 25K
RERIEE -



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 33 BAMEE RS 2

(c) Key management compensation (c) EEEEASEHM
The executive directors of the Company are regarded AAAHTESRATETEAE - &
as key management. Details of the key management AEETEABFMFIBENRNEGE MG
compensation are disclosed in Note 9(a) to the R EFEI (@) P EE -
consolidated financial statements.
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BERTETRABZFN I BFMNE
determined by the remuneration committee having regard B22RENALTsRRARTHEBEE
to the performance of individuals and market trends. JE °
34 DIVIDENDS 34 KB
No dividend has been declared or paid by the Company for the HE_Z-_WF+_A=+—HLEFE K
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil). RAESRIKTEMRE(ZEZ=F :
/) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 AT BIRREREEES

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

(a) AQATMHARE

2024 2023
—EmE —E-=4F
NOTES MOP’OO_O MOP’000
Kzt TRMT T8RP IT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRENEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB A RIMIEE 12,620 12,620
Amounts due from subsidiaries A S NGIE O 44,551 45,414
57,171 58,034
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments TES5RIE 295 264
Bank balances and cash RITERNIRS 181 570
o a6 | 834
Total assets HEE 57,647 58,368
EQUITY S
Share capital &N 22 11,330 11,330
Reserves fEtE 35(b) 32,466 37,955
Total equity EfES 43,796 49,285
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities mEBE
Accruals and other payables FEETE R R EMFERS
208 1,305 1,054
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTB B A Rl IE 12,546 8,529
Total liabilities HaE 13,851 9,583
Total equity and liabilities HESRaE 57,647 58,868

The statement of financial position of the Company was

approved by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2025 and

was signed on its behalf.

Mr. Kong Kin |
BEfEE%E

Executive Director

HiTEF

11
o
T

RRABFBRANRCEEZTEN_F
“HFE=AZ+NBH#E  XHTIA

THRERE -

Ms. Choi Fong Lan
#REBEZL
Executive Director

HiTEE



For the year ended 31 December 2024 HEZ —Z —NF+-A=+—HILFE

35 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 35 A BB RREREEEE »

RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

(b) Reserves movement of the Company

(b) ADTMEELE

Share Other Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BeipiEE Hitifit s 258 A%
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TRFT TEFT TRFIT TEFT
As at 1 January 2023 R—B=—=#—H—H 80,932 (969) (46,881) 33,082
Loss for the year FAEIE - - (5,427) (5,427)
Issuance of shares BTG 10,300 - - 10,300
Balances as at R-Z-=%+=A8
31 December 2023 and =E+—AR=2B-MOF
1 January 2024 —A—B2&8 91,232 (969) (52,308) 37,955
Loss for the year FAEE - - (5,489) (5,489)
Balance as at R-F-NE+=H
31 December 2024 =+—Hz## 91,232 (969) (57,797) 32,466
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHME

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—HLEFE
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ToNE o= —T-—f —T-—% _"E_TF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TRMT FRMT TR TR TR

(Restated)
(& =51)
RESULTS ES
Revenue A 675,230 582,928 598,823 958,955 694,359
(Loss)/profit before tax HAT(EE) /i (22,040) (33,429) (9,568) (21,197) 16,219
Income tax credit/ (expense) FriEwiE e,/ (Fx) 4,349 (694) (2,043) 417 (8,332)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER),/FHE (17,691) (34,123) (11,611) (20,780) 12,887
(Loss)/profit for the year AT ATEGEER
attrioutable to: (&518),/ ) -
The owners of the Company ~ NATIEAR A (17,691) (34,123) (11,611) (20,780) 12,887
As at 31 December
W+=A=+—H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

—EME -—T-o=F —FT--—fF —FT-—HF —E-FTEF
MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000 MOP’000
TR FEMT FRMT FRMT TR

(Restated)
(KE7))
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EZEER&E

Total assets BEE 443,006 467,754 534,953 583,440 478,430
Total liabilities MG 282,227 289,284 333,660 370,520 243,526
Net assets FEE 160,779 178,470 201,293 212,920 234,904

Equity attributable to the ARARMER ANE(HER
owners of the Company 160,779 178,470 201,293 212,920 234,904
Total equity B 160,779 178,470 201,293 212,920 234,904

This report is published in both English and Chinese languages. 7245 Jh LA 8232 FIIB% o 4AFR S AR ZANTZ AR (Al 15,
Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese and English & & B AR X hin &2%E o
versions, the English version shall prevail.
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